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material effect on each of its major federal financial assistance programs. All of the City’s major federal
programs are evaluated for the adequacy of internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations.
The City’s Single Audit report for the year ended June 30, 2010 included no instances of material
weaknesses in the internal control structure, nor were any significant violations of the applicable laws
and regulations reported. The report is publicly issued under a separate cover.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) follows the independent auditor’s report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements.
This letter of transmittal is intended to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with
it.

Profile of the Government

The City of Boston, incorporated as a town in 1630 and as a City in 1822, is located on the Shawmut
Peninsula, at the confluence of the Charles and Mystic Rivers. The City lies adjacent to Boston Harbor,
which is a part of Massachusetts Bay and leads ultimately to the North Atlantic Ocean. The Charles River
separates Boston from Cambridge and Watertown, while the Mystic River determines the boundaries
between Chelsea and Everett. The Neponset River separates the southern neighborhoods of Boston
from the Town of Milton and City of Quincy.

Boston: A City of Neighborhoods

While many cities are defined by
their skylines, Boston is
distinguished by its vibrant
neighborhoods. Indeed, Boston’s
strength, diversity and vitality are
all rooted in its neighborhoods,
where neighborhood pride and
cultures from all over the world
are cherished and celebrated.
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The City of Boston exists under Chapter 486 of the Acts of 1909 and Chapter 452 of the Acts of 1948
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, which, as amended, constitute the City’s Charter. The Mayor is
elected to a four-year term and serves as chief executive officer, of the City. The Mayor has general
supervision of and control over the City’s boards, commissions, officers and departments. The legislative
body of the City is the City Council, which consists of 13 elected members serving two-year terms.

Thomas M. Menino, Mayor of the City of Boston, was reelected in November 2009 to a historic fifth
4-year term, expiring in January 2014. The Mayor remains committed to promoting citywide initiatives
in the areas of public education, public safety, housing, and neighborhood development as well as
economic development. The City provides a wide range of governmental services in these areas as well
as in the areas of social services, public health, transportation, human services, and basic city services.

The City budgets and maintains its books and records on a statutory basis of accounting prescribed
by the Massachusetts Division of Local Services, Bureau of Accounts. This basis of accounting differs
from GAAP. The accounts of the City are organized on a fund basis. Each fund is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by providing a separate set of
self-balancing accounts, which comprise each fund’s assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, and
expenses. Included in the basic financial statements are governmental activities, business-type activities,
each major fund, the aggregate discretely presented component units, and aggregate remaining fund
information. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize
their operational and/or financial relationship with the City. The State-Boston Retirement System (SBRS)
has been presented as a blended component unit because it provides services almost exclusively to the
primary government. The notes to the financial statements further discuss the City as a financial
reporting entity.

The General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adopted. The budgets for all
departments included in the General Fund of the City, except the School Department, are prepared
under the direction of the Mayor and City Council. The School Department budget is prepared under the
direction of the School Committee. Original and supplemental appropriations are submitted by the
Mayor, approved by the City Council, and lapse at year end unless encumbered. The legal level of
control over appropriations is at the department level. Amendments to the original budget must be
approved by the City Council, except for a reallocation of appropriations of up to $3 million, which the
Mayor may approve. Further, the City Auditor, with the approval of the Mayor, may make transfers from
any appropriation to any other appropriation for purposes of eliminating deficits before closing the
books for the fiscal year.

Local Economy

Boston is the economic hub of both the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the New England
region. The economy of Boston is diverse and rests primarily on financial, governmental, business and
professional services, as well as educational and medical sectors, which provides stability to the region
in an otherwise turbulent fiscal environment.
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In 2009 Boston had a population of 645,169 as estimated by the U.S. Census Bureau, and had
668,748 jobs, as stated by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis. The ratio of jobs to population indicates
that Boston provides a direct source of employment and income for an area that extends well beyond its
borders. Measured in terms of jobs, Boston’s economy comprises approximately 16.2% of the
Massachusetts economy and 7.4% of that of the six New England states.

As a government center, the City is the capital of the Commonwealth and is host to several other
governmental agencies. According to the Boston Redevelopment Authority, there were an estimated
77,737 federal, state, and local government workers in the City in 2010. Certain large state government
offices, federal regional offices, U.S. Postal Service facilities, state-chartered authorities and
commissions (such as the Massachusetts Port Authority and the Boston Water and Sewer Commission),
and the City’s local government agencies and departments are all located within the City.

Boston’s medical and educational institutions are an important component of its economy,
providing employment opportunities for residents of the City and Metropolitan Boston. Expenditures by
the institution’s patients, students, and visitors are important to the City’s trade and service sectors.
Twenty-two inpatient hospitals are located within the City, including Massachusetts General Hospital,
Brigham and Women’s Hospital, Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center, Children’s Hospital, Tufts New
England Medical Center, and Boston Medical Center. The City is also the home of the medical and dental
schools of Harvard, Tufts, and Boston Universities. Health services represent 123,209 jobs, or nineteen
out of every one hundred jobs within the City. Thirty three colleges and universities reside in Boston,
accounting for 137,767 students, according to the New England Board of Higher Education. Boston, with
only 10% of the state’s population, has 30% of the statewide college student enroliment.

Despite continued deteriorating economic conditions across the country, Boston has been able to
sustain better than average results. Currently, the U.S. unemployment rate is higher than Boston’s, the
nation’s level of job loss has been greater, and although Boston’s real estate markets have been
experiencing rising vacancy rates, it is still outperforming most other major real estate markets in the
U.S. Unemployment rates in Boston reached 7.9% in November 2010, as compared to the
unemployment rates of the U.S. and Massachusetts which were 9.3% and 8.1% respectively. For the
year 2010, foreclosure deeds were up from 2009 by 6.1%. However, foreclosure deeds in Boston in the
4" qguarter of 2010 were at the lowest level in three years. By comparison, statewide foreclosure deeds
as reported by the Warren Group were up 32% from 2009 to 2010.

Financial markets have continued to express confidence in Boston’s fiscal health during the past
year. In March 2011, rating service bureaus Moody’s Investors Service and Standard and Poor’s
reaffirmed the City’s bond ratings at Aaa and AA+ respectively. The credit reports from both agencies
highlighted Boston’s strong management throughout economic cycles as well as having historically
strong reserves while exhibiting positive financial performance.

Financial Overview

In FY10 and FY11, the City incurred its first decreases in General Fund equity in more than thirteen
years. Despite this decrease in General Fund equity, the City preserved its policy of maintaining a GAAP
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unassigned fund balance in the General Fund that is 10.0% or higher than the current fiscal year’s GAAP
General Fund operating expenditures. The GAAP unassigned fund balance at the end of fiscal year 2011
was $511.0 million and $141.9 million was assigned, which totals a fund balance of $652.9 million. The
unassigned fund balance represents approximately 20.8% of GAAP General Fund operating
expenditures.

The City is required to have a balanced budget in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws
(M.G.L.), Chapter 59, Section 23. As part of the State Department of Revenue’s tax rate certification
process, the City must balance all appropriations, fixed costs, and prior year deficits with the approved
property tax levy, estimated local revenues, and available prior year surpluses in order to obtain
authorization to issue property tax bills. Over half of the City’s revenues come from the property tax
levy; however, the increase in the levy from year to year is limited by state law. The City was granted its
first new revenue stream in more than twenty years with the state’s approval of a local option meals
tax. This tax was approved by the Boston City Council in August 2009 and implemented October 1, 2009.
The state also granted a local option for a 2 % increase to the City’s existing 4 % room occupancy tax
which was approved and implemented along with the meals tax. Due to the fact that this is the first year
these taxes were fully budgeted, excises increased by 15% in fiscal year 2011. Please see the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis Section for additional information on financial trends.

In fiscal year 2011, employee pension and healthcare costs represented 16.7% of the general fund
budget. Healthcare costs increased 1.6% from 2010, which was much less than the 4.9% increase from
2009 to 2010. The City has managed to contain these costly demands on the General Fund by adopting
M.G.L.,, Chapter 32B, Section 18A. Prospectively, as of July 1, 2010, retirees, their spouses and
dependents who are Medicare eligible were required to enroll in a Medicare supplement plan. This
shifted Medicare eligible costs from the City to the federal government, thereby reducing health care
costs while providing retirees with comparable health insurance. These costs were down 3.3% in fiscal
year 2011. In FY10, the City established an irrevocable Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability
Trust Fund in accordance with the provisions of M.G.L., Chapter 32B, Section 20. In FY11, in order to
partially fund the annual required contribution associated with the OPEB liability, the City appropriated
$35.0 million from the General Fund as well as the entire balance of $50.1 million from the OPEB
Stabilization Fund into the OPEB Liability Trust Fund. The City’s OPEB financing plan balances the duty to
deliver valuable public services while acknowledging the cost of providing health benefits for our
employees, both now and when they retire. More details and information on the OPEB liability can be
found in Footnote 12 of the Basic Financial Statements.

The City’s second largest source of revenue, state aid, decreased by $18.0 million in FY11. This
decrease in state aid is expected to continue in the next fiscal year by 7.3%, prompting management to
exhibit sound financial decision-making. Since FY09, the City has received $179.5 million in American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act grant awards from the federal government and the Commonwealth. In
FY11, ARRA funds awarded were $57.1 million, which was used for personnel retention in the Boston
Public Schools and the Police Department, in addition to targeted programming.
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Building on the City’s history of prudent financial planning, the foundation of the City’s FY12 budget
is enhanced by internal and external partnerships to strengthen the City’s personal connection with the
people of Boston and produce new efficiencies in basic city service delivery. The collaborations across
agencies and with the community are evident throughout the budget. This renewed emphasis on
collaboration sets the City up for continued success as Boston emerges from the downturn, and in the
years to come. Despite a challenging economic climate, the City has not only managed through these
difficult times, but also set the stage for a strong recovery. In FY12, property tax is expected to grow by
4.4% due to an economically diverse tax base. The municipal budget for FY12 necessitates creative
partnerships that deliver better than ever for Boston’s residents: common goals, uncommon results.

Long Term Financial Planning

Boston’s five-year $1.7 billion capital plan, “Together, We CAN,” is an investment program for the
City’s future. The underlying framework for the plan emphasizes (1) the strategic use of infrastructure to
promote economic development, neighborhood revitalization, quality education, health care, and public
safety, (2) comprehensive planning to lay the foundation for future growth, and (3) effective
government management to deliver necessary municipal services efficiently. The program name
“Together, We CAN” reinforces the idea that “Cities Are Neighborhoods” and that the capital plan is a
strategic tool shaped by many hands and designed to enhance the livability of a city that draws strength
from its neighborhoods.

All projects in the capital plan are categorized as Upkeep, New/Major Renovation, Upgrade, and
Planning or Matching Funds. The Capital Budgeting Program of the Office of Budget Management (OBM)
tracks the overall distribution of these categories to maintain a balance between the upkeep of existing
assets and the continual expansion and improvement of others. The distributions of allocations this year
— 23% for New/Major Rehabilitations, 22% for Upgrades, 53% for Upkeep, 1% for Planning, and 2% for
matching roadwork maintains the relative balance of these project categories.

In an effort to realign the City’s administrative office space as well as revitalize City neighborhoods,
design will begin on the new $115.0 million Dudley Square BPS Headquarters administrative office
building. Once the School Department relocates to the Dudley Square building, its current headquarters
at 26 Court Street will be renovated and back-filled by other City departments, reducing the number of
administrative office buildings from nine to four. This will provide significant efficiencies as well as cost
savings.

Financing for the FY12-FY16 Capital Plan comes from General Obligation (G.0O.) bonds, state and
federal funds, trust funds, and other funds. G.O. bonds represent 64.8% of all project funding. The
capital plan assumes $715.0 million in new G.O. borrowings over the next five years to support ongoing
capital needs. Effective debt management ensures that the City can meet its capital infrastructure and
facility needs. The Treasury Department manages all borrowings according to the City’s debt
management policies. These policies address issues such as debt affordability and limitations on the
level of variable rate debt the City will use. The City’s goal is to rapidly repay debt, maintain a
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conservative level of outstanding debt, and ensure the City’s continued positive financial standing with
the bond market.

State and federal funds in the five year capital plan are currently estimated at $175.9 million and
$352.7 million respectively. Two specific programs included in these amounts are the School Building
Assistance (SBA) program and the Massachusetts Department of Transportation’s Chapter 90 program.
The SBA, which is administered by the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA), provides an
important revenue source for school renovation and construction. The MSBA reviews and prioritizes
future project requests, and reimburses at rates ranging between 40% and 80%. For the FY12-FY16 plan,
total payments from the state are estimated at $42.7 million to offset debt service costs for projects
previously approved by the MSBA. Chapter 90, which is administered by the Massachusetts Department
of Transportation’s Highway Division, allocates funds by formula through state bond authorizations and
through the state budget to all cities and towns in the Commonwealth. Based on recent allocations, $14
million in Chapter 90 funds will be provided in FY12.

The City continues to aggressively pursue grant funds, maximize the use of Chapter 90 funds for
road and sidewalk projects, and actively manage its projects to ensure that spending does not exceed
projections and that priority projects move forward. Together, these strategies will enable the City to
maintain a reasonable level of capital spending and borrowing and prudently manage its outstanding
debt.

For more information on ongoing and upcoming City projects, the Capital Planning division features
a mapping section on the City of Boston’s website (www.cityofboston.gov/maps). The parks and
facilities within the five-year capital plan are now searchable by neighborhood, department, or status
and displayed in an interactive map. OBM continues to increase its capacity to map other infrastructure
projects, such as street lighting, for analysis based on location. Adding geographic information provides
a new way of evaluating projects based on demographics, the relationship between projects, and a
project’s proximity to other programs or resources.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Boston for its CAFR for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This was the sixteenth consecutive year that the City of Boston has
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental
unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both GAAP
and applicable state and local legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of only one year. We believe that our current
report meets the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for a certificate.
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Boston
Massachusetts

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2010

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

Gty 5

Executive Director
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KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center
60 South Street
Boston, MA 02111

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Boston, Massachusetts:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Boston (the City), Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of certain entities, which represent 1.4% and 0.4% of the assets and revenues of the
governmental activities, respectively, 4.6% and 18.6% of the assets and revenues of the aggregate
remaining fund information, respectively, and 23.6% and 16.4% of the assets and revenues of the
discretely presented component units, respectively. Those financial statements were audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts
included for these entities, are based on the reports of the other auditors. The prior year Statement of
Revenues and Expenditures Budgetary Basis General Fund — Budget and Actual partial comparative
information has been derived from the City’s 2010 financial statements and, in our report dated
November 19, 2010, we expressed an unqualified opinion on the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Budgetary Basis General Fund — Budget and Actual.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The financial statements of the permanent funds, private-purpose trust funds and OPEB trust
fund were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of
other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Boston, Massachusetts, as of June 30,
2011, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21,
2011 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

As described in note 2(n) of the financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, as of July 1, 2010.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 14 and the schedules of funding progress and
employer contributions on page 64 are not required parts of the basic financial statements, but are
supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We have applied
certain limited procedures which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining, individual fund
statements and schedules and the statistical section as listed in the accompanying table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The 2011 information included in the combining, individual fund statements and schedules has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011, taken as a
whole. We have also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States, the City’s basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010, which are not
presented with the accompanying financial statements. In our report dated November 19, 2010, based on
our audit and the reports of other auditors, we expressed unqualified opinions on the respective financial
statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information. The 2010 information
included in the combining, individual fund statements and schedules was subjected to auditing procedures
applied in the audit of those basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010, taken as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

KPMme LIP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 21, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

The City of Boston (the City) provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis to present additional information to
the readers of the City’s basic financial statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
City is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Readers are encouraged to consider this information in conjunction with
the additional information that is furnished in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s financial statements. The City’s basic
financial statements include three components: 1) Government-wide Financial Statements, 2) Fund Financial
Statements, and 3) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains required supplementary information
regarding historical pension information and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan information. The components
of the financial statements are described in the following sections.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include two types of financial statements that present different views of the City — the
Government-wide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial Statements. The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
supplement the financial statement information and clarify line-items that are part of the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements provide a broad view of the City’s operations in a manner similar to a private
sector business. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the City’s financial position,
which assists in assessing the City’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year. These are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This basically means they follow methods
that are similar to those used by most businesses. They take into account all revenues and expenses connected with the
fiscal year even if cash involved has not been received or paid. The Government-wide Financial Statements include two
statements:

o The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the government’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets may serve as a useful indicator
of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

J The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave). This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the City.

Both the above financial statements have separate sections for the three different types of city programs or activities.
These three types of activities are:
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o Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (federal and state grants). Most services normally associated with city government fall into this category,
including general government, human services, public safety, public works, property and development, parks and
recreation, library, schools, public health programs, state and district assessments, and debt service.

. Business-type Activities — These functions normally are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges to external users of goods and services. These business-type activities of the City
include the activities related to the City’s Convention Center Bond Fund and Hospital Bond Fund.

o Discretely Presented Component Units — These are legally separate entities for which the City has financial
accountability but function independent of the City. For the most part, these entities operate similar to private sector
businesses and the business-type activities described above. The City’s four discretely presented component units are
the Boston Public Health Commission, the Boston Redevelopment Authority, the Economic Development Industrial
Corporation, and the Trustees of the Boston Public Library.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative
offices. Additional information about the City’s component units is presented in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Government-wide Financial Statements can be found immediately following this discussion and analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The City, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The Fund Financial Statements focus on individual parts of the City government, reporting the City’s operations in more
detail than the Government-wide Financial Statements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories.
It is important to note that these fund categories use different accounting approaches and should be interpreted
differently. The three categories of funds are:

Governmental Funds — Most of the basic services provided by the City are financed through governmental funds.
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
Government-wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the Government-wide Financial Statements, the Governmental
Fund Financial Statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources. They also focus on the
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the
government’s near term financing requirements. This approach is known as using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this approach, revenues are recorded when
cash is received or when susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when liabilities are incurred and due. These
statements provide a detailed short term view of the City’s finances to assist in determining whether there will be
adequate financial resources available to meet the current needs of the City.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the Government-wide Financial Statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
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long term impact of the government’s near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and the governmental activities. These reconciliations are
presented on the page immediately following each governmental fund financial statement.

The City presents four columns in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The City’s three major governmental funds are the General Fund,
the Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund. All non-major governmental funds are combined in the “Other
Governmental Funds” column on these statements. The Governmental Fund Financial Statements can be found
immediately following the Government-wide Financial Statements.

Of the City’s governmental funds, the General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adopted. The Statement
of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis is presented after the governmental fund financial statements. This
statement provides a comparison of the original and final budget and the actual expenditures for the current and prior
year.

In accordance with state law and regulations, the City’s legally adopted General Fund budget is prepared on a
“budgetary” basis instead of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Among the key differences between
these two sets of accounting principles are that “budgetary” records property tax as it is levied, while GAAP records it as
it becomes susceptible to accrual, “budgetary” records certain activities and transactions in the General Fund that GAAP
records in separate funds, and “budgetary” records any amount raised that covers a prior year deficit as an expenditure
and any available funds raised from prior year surpluses as a revenue, while GAAP ignores these impacts from prior
years. The difference in accounting principles inevitably leads to varying results in excess or deficiency of revenues over
expenditures. Additional information and a reconciliation of “budgetary” to GAAP statements is provided in note 4 to
the financial statements.

Proprietary Funds — These funds are used to show activities that operate more like those of commercial enterprises.
Like the Government-wide Financial Statements, Proprietary Fund Financial Statements use the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. No reconciliation is needed between the Government-wide
Financial Statements for business-type activities and the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. There are two types of
proprietary funds — enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds charge fees for services provided to
outside customers including local governments. Enterprise Funds provide the same type of information as the Business-
type activities of the Government-wide Financial Statements within governmental activities, only in more detail. The
internal service fund provides health insurance services predominantly to other funds, departments or agencies of the
City. Therefore, its activities are included in the Government-wide financial statements within governmental activities.
The Proprietary Funds Financial Statements can be found immediately following the Governmental Fund Financial
Statements.

Fiduciary Funds— These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the Government-wide Financial Statements because the resources of
these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like
that used for proprietary funds. They use the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.
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The City’s fiduciary funds are the Employee Retirement Fund (the State-Boston Retirement System), which accounts for
the transactions, assets, liabilities, and net assets of the City employees’ pension plan; the Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB) Liability Trust Fund, which is an irrevocable trust established for the accumulation of assets to reduce
the unfunded actuarial liability associated with the City’s obligation for other postemployment benefits; and the Private
Purpose Trust Funds, which includes money held and administered by the City on behalf of third parties.

The Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements can be found immediately following the Proprietary Fund Financial
Statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
Government-wide and the Fund Financial Statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found immediately
following the Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information, which includes a
schedule of funding progress and a schedule of employer contributions for the State-Boston Retirement System and the
City’s OPEB Trust Fund.

CURRENT YEAR FINANCIAL IMPACTS

e In fiscal year 2011, the City made an additional one-time payment totaling $82.0 million to the Employee Retirement
Fund. The decision to make the payment in FY11 was one of two pension decisions made with FY12 and beyond in
mind. The City’s legal requirement to update its pension schedule resulted in a new schedule that recognized the
large asset losses that occurred in 2008. The additional payment in FY11, along with extending the schedule two
years, helped lower the amounts required to fund the pension liability in FY12 and the years to follow. The
additional payment was incorporated into the City’s annual appropriation bill from the State-Boston Retirement
System.

e The City of Boston’s OPEB obligation significantly impacts the government-wide financial results. Each year, the City
is required to recognize an additional portion of its unfunded actuarial accrued liability, which will continue to add to
the deficit in unrestricted net assets. In FY11, a payment of $35.0 million was made to the OPEB Trust Fund along
with the transfer of assets totaling $50.1 million from the stabilization fund to the OPEB Trust Fund. This
appropriation is a fraction of the FY11 $262.9 million annual required contribution (ARC) to fund the City’s total
liability for retiree health benefits. The City anticipates appropriating an additional $35.0 million toward reducing
this liability in FY12.

e In March 2011, the City sold $38.3 million of Convention Center Advance Refunding Bonds. These bonds, combined
with the appropriation of $45.0 million from the City’s Room Occupancy Excise Funds and $10.2 million in other
available funds refunded all of the City’s $93.5 million outstanding 2002 Convention Center Bonds. The decision to
refund the Convention Center Bonds will reduce the City’s debt service costs in the future, providing a total savings
of $5.0 million for the life of the bond. The refunding of the Convention Center Bonds eliminates the Convention
Center enterprise fund. In 2011, the City has reported the final activity of the fund.
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e |n FY2011, the City was ordered by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Labor Relations to allocate a
damage payment totaling $16.5 million for members of the Boston Police Patrolmen’s Association (BPPA) who were
employed from October 1994 to September 2003. The unfair labor practice filed with the Division of Labor Relations
was for overtime wrongly assigned to employees outside of the BPPA.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
This analysis is based on the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities found directly after Management’s
Discussion and Analysis.

Government-wide Highlights

Net Assets — Primary Government — The total assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at fiscal year ended June 30, 2011
by $465.7 million (presented as net assets). At year end, the City had a deficit in governmental activities unrestricted net
assets in the amount of $110.5 million. This represents the City’s election to fund certain long-term liabilities as they
come due, rather than as they are incurred.

Changes in Net Assets — Primary Government — The City’s total net assets decreased by $89.5 million in fiscal year 2011.
Net assets of governmental activities decreased by $141.5 million, while net assets of the business-type activities
increased by $52.0 million.

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The City’s
combined net assets (governmental and business type activities) totaled $465.7 million at the end of 2011, compared to
$555.1 million at the end of the previous year.

The components of net assets comprise the following: the investment in capital assets such as land, buildings,
equipment, and infrastructure (road, bridges, and other immovable assets), less any related debt used to acquire that
asset that is still outstanding — this amount is $402.6 million indicating that the net book value of the City’s capital assets
exceeds the amount of capital debt outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequentially, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the City’s governmental activities net assets, $158.7 million or 35.2%, represents restricted net assets, or
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Internally imposed designations of
resources are not presented as restricted net assets. The remaining balance of net assets represents the deficit in
unrestricted net assets. The deficit in unrestricted net assets increased $41.4 million from 2010.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is reporting a positive net asset balance for the government as a whole. The
positive balance in business-type activities is a result of the defeasance of Convention Center Bonds in part with general
obligation bonds reported in governmental activities.
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ASSETS:

Net Assets (Deficit) - Primary Government

CUrrent @ssetS.....cccviiiieiiiiiiici e

Capital assets

Other @SSELS....cuveirieiirreieiirieeeee ettt

Total asset:

LIABILITIES:

Noncurrent liabilities........ccocereririerenineeeese e
Current labilities.......ocveverereeeeeceeee e

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted ...
Unrestricted...

Total net assets (deficit)

(In thousands)

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

1,348,075 S 1,423,188 $ 31,807 66,457 $ 1,379,882 S 1,489,645
1,364,414 1,348,199 - - 1,364,414 1,348,199
119,766 129,424 59,094 74,581 178,860 204,005
2,832,255 2,900,811 90,901 141,038 2,923,156 3,041,849
1,795,736 1,685,794 66,818 164,652 1,862,554 1,850,446
585,664 622,705 9,251 13,554 594,915 636,259
2,381,400 2,308,499 76,069 178,206 2,457,469 2,486,705
402,646 427,097 - - 402,646 427,097
156,989 234,339 14,832 14,901 171,821 249,240
(108,780) (69,124) - (52,069) (108,780) (121,193)
450,855 $ 592,312 $ 14,832 (37,168) $ 465,687 $ 555,144
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Changes in Net Assets (Deficit) - Primary Government
(In thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services.. S 144375 S 157,049 S - S - S 144375 S 157,049
Operating grants and contributions 501,441 547,812 1,172 5,567 502,613 553,379
Capital grants and contributions. 33,338 12,555 - - 33,338 12,555
General revenues: - -
L 1,713,354 1,658,726 58,508 43,887 1,771,862 1,702,613
Grants and contributions not restricted...........ccccouvevennne 187,322 171,174 - - 187,322 171,174
Investment income. 21,724 17,221 3,561 3,567 25,285 20,788
Miscellaneous.. 23,195 21,901 - - 23,195 21,901
Total revenues 2,624,749 2,586,438 63,241 53,021 2,687,990 2,639,459
Program expenses:
General GOVErMMENT.......c.ocueuuriueeiereeireie st 80,968 106,435 - - 80,968 106,435
Human services... 49,974 52,310 - - 49,974 52,310
Public safety. 875,111 930,779 - - 875,111 930,779
Public works 133,830 131,883 - - 133,830 131,883
Property and development... 117,871 118,456 - - 117,871 118,456
Parks and recreation 31,956 31,204 - - 31,956 31,204
47,320 50,050 - - 47,320 50,050
1,317,108 1,314,601 - - 1,317,108 1,314,601
Public health programs............ccccevvrennen. 70,619 71,453 - - 70,619 71,453
Interest on long-term debt . 40,329 39,832 - - 40,329 39,832
Convention center - - 9,025 13,751 9,025 13,751
HOSPILALcveveveiceei st - - 3,336 3,635 3,336 3,635
Total program expense 2,765,086 2,847,003 12,361 17,386 2,777,447 2,864,389
Excess (deficiency) before transfers... (140,337) (260,565) 50,880 35,635 (89,457) (224,930)
Transfers... (1,120) 30,000 1,120 (30,000) - -
Change in net assets (141,457) (230,565) 52,000 5,635 (89,457) (224,930)
Net assets (deficit) — beginning of year..........c.cecevuerrverinenes 592,312 822,877 (37,168) (42,803) 555,144 780,074

Net assets (deficit) — end of year. S 450,855 $ 592,312 § 14,832 $ (37,168) $ 465,687 $ 555,144




10 e City of Boston Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Revenues - Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year 2011
25% B Taxes and Payments in lieu of
Taxes
65% B Program Revenues
Other
10%
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$1,200,000
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$400,000
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Expenses - Governmental Activities FY11
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Governmental Activities

The City’s governmental activities net assets decreased by $141.5 million over the prior fiscal year. The following net
changes occurred during the course of operations in fiscal year 2011: In the assets accounts, cash and investments
decreased by $35.8 million, receivables increased by $107.4 million, and capital assets increased by $16.2 million. In the
liability accounts, there were decreases in warrants and accounts payable of $30.7 million, unearned revenue of $5.4
million, and accrued liabilities of $9.6 million. Additionally, an increase of $40.9 million was recorded relative to the
City’s other postemployment obligation in 2011.

During fiscal year 2011, the City’s revenues increased by 1.5%. The City’s largest sources of revenues were property
taxes, excise taxes, and payment in lieu of taxes of $1.71 billion (65.3% of total revenue) and $679.1 million of program
revenues (25.8% of total revenue). Taxes increased by $54.6 million from the previous year. Program revenues
decreased by $38.2 million for fiscal year 2011. This is largely due to decreases in MSBA reimbursements.

The City’s expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for schools ($1.31 billion), public safety ($875.1
million), public works ($133.8 million), property and development ($117.8 million), general government ($81.0 million),
public health programs ($70.6 million), and human services ($50.0 million). The City was aggressive in containing costs in
2011 as a result of decreases in state funding, cutting expenses by $81.9 million.

In 2011, governmental activities expenses exceeded program revenues (i.e., user charges, operating grants, and capital
grants) by $2.08 billion. This shortfall was covered primarily through taxes ($1.71 billion) and unrestricted grants and
contributions ($187.3 million).

Comparative data on these revenues and expenses is itemized in the reporting of the Changes in Net Assets (Deficit) —
Primary Government earlier in this Management Discussion and Analysis.

Business type Activities

Net assets from business-type activities increased $52.0 million during fiscal year 2011. This change in net assets
resulted primarily from the defeasance of Convention Center Bonds in part with general obligation bonds reported in
governmental activities.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUND STATEMENTS

This analysis is based on the Governmental and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. As noted earlier, the City uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Fund Highlights

Governmental Funds — Fund Balances — As of the close of fiscal year 2011, the City’s governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $934.2 million, a decrease of $29.0 million from the prior year. Of this total amount,
$511.0 million represents the unassigned fund balance. This amount is comparable to the prior year’s “unreserved and
undesignated” fund balance of $606.0 million. The decrease in fund balance is largely due to the one-time additional
payment to the Employee Retirement Fund.
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Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financial requirements. In particular, unassigned
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s financial position at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund - Fund Balance — The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The City’s General Fund — Fund
Balance Policy states in part to maintain a GAAP unassigned fund balance in the General Fund that is 10%, or higher, of
GAAP General Fund operating expenditures for the fiscal year. The GAAP unassigned fund balance at the end of fiscal
year 2011 was $511.0 million, which represents approximately 20.8% of GAAP General Fund operating expenditures.

However, because the City is required to follow the statutory basis of accounting rather than GAAP for determining the
amount of unassigned fund balance that can be appropriated, it is the statutory (not the GAAP) fund balance that is used
to calculate “free cash.” Free cash is the amount of statutory fund balance in the General Fund, as certified by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Department of Revenue, which is available for appropriation and is generated when
actual revenues, on a cash basis, exceed budgeted amounts and encumbrances are less than appropriations, or both.

The City has established the General Fund-Fund Balance Policy to ensure that the City maintains adequate levels of fund
balance to mitigate current and future risks (i.e., revenue shortfalls and unanticipated expenditures). The policy in full
states that the City shall maintain a GAAP unassigned fund balance in the General Fund that is 10% or higher than the
current fiscal year’s GAAP General Fund operating expenditures; and that the City shall only consider the certification of
free cash (as defined by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Department of Revenue) in years where the
appropriation of free cash shall not cause the fiscal year’s GAAP unassigned fund balance to go below 10% of the fiscal
year’s GAAP General Fund expenditures while maintaining a budgetary undesignated fund balance between 5% and 10%
of budgetary operating expenditures.

The City shall only consider the appropriation of certified free cash to offset: (1) certain fixed costs such as pension
contributions and related postemployment health benefits and/or (2) to fund extraordinary and nonrecurring events as
determined and certified by the City Auditor.

Special Revenue Fund — Fund Balance — The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for predefined purposes. The fiscal year 2011 Special Revenue
Fund balance is reported at $172.3 million, an $864 thousand decrease from fiscal year 2010. This decrease is due to a
decrease in state aid.

Capital Projects Fund — Fund Balance — The Capital Projects Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. The
fiscal year 2011 Capital Projects Fund balance is $68.4 million, a $23.1 million increase from fiscal year 2010. The
increase in fund balance is attributable to the excess balance of unspent bond proceeds from the issuance of general
obligation bonds to fund capital projects.

Other Governmental Funds — Fund Balance — Other Governmental Funds account for assets held by the City in
permanent trust funds. The fiscal year 2011 Other Governmental Funds fund balance is $40.6 million, a $3.0 million
increase from fiscal year 2010. The increase in fund balance is largely due to investment returns during fiscal year 2011.
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Enterprise Funds
The City’s enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the Government-wide Financial Statements
for business-type activities. This information is presented on the same basis of accounting, but in more detail.

The City’s enterprise funds net surplus for fiscal year 2011 was $14.8 million. The net surplus in the enterprise funds is a
result of the defeasance of the Convention Center Bonds in part with general obligation bonds reported in governmental
activities.

Budgetary Highlights

General Fund budgetary highlights include ending fiscal year 2011 with a $5.9 million surplus. This represents the City’s
26th consecutive year with a balanced budget. One significant change from the final budget to actual budget was in the
area of judgments and claims. The final amended budget reflects additional amounts reserved to fund a possible
positive judgment on a lawsuit filed by the City’s police unions.

Favorable results were reported for General Fund revenue sources, including an $18.7 million increase in excises, $14.7
million in Pilots, $7.3 million in Departmental and other revenue, and $7.4 million in licenses and permits.

The overall expenditure deficit of $14.2 million is a result of a reserve for anticipated settlements in judgments and
claims. Additionally, public works and public safety saw deficits of $5.2 million and $5.5 million, respectively. The deficit
in public safety was a result of the expense for educational benefits for uniformed police officers.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities, as of June 30, 2011, has a net book value of $1.36
billion, made up of costs totaling $2.8 billion less accumulated depreciation of $1.4 billion. This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress. Infrastructure
assets are items that are normally immovable and have value only to the City, such as roads, bridges, streets, sidewalks,
drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items.

The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was approximately 1.2% in terms of
net book value. However, actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital assets were $92.4 million for the year.
Most of this amount was used for the purpose of constructing or reconstructing buildings and building improvements.
Depreciation charges for the year totaled $75.3 million. Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found
in note 8 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Long Term Obligations

Debt Administration — The authority of the City to incur debt is governed by federal and state laws that restrict the
amounts and purposes for which a municipality can incur debt. At year end, the City had $1.03 billion in General
Obligations Bonds principal outstanding — an increase of $73.5 million over last year.

The key factor in this increase was the issuance of the April 1, 2011 Series A general obligation bonds totaling $86.1
million which were issued to finance various capital projects in the City. Further, $38.3 million Series B were issued for
the purpose of advance refunding the City’s Convention Center Bonds. Additionally, the City took advantage of Federal
programs made available by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009, by issuing the 2011 QSCB
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Series C bonds. Also, $14.4 million Series D Bonds were issued for the purpose of currently refunding certain outstanding
general obligation bonds of the City.

In March 2011, in conjunction with the City’s annual bond offering, the rating service bureaus Moody’s Investors Service
and Standard & Poor’s assigned the City’s bond ratings at Aaa and AA+, respectively. General Obligation Bonds are
backed by the full faith and credit of the City, including the City’s power to levy additional taxes to ensure repayment of
the debt. Accordingly, all general obligation debt currently outstanding has been approved by a vote of the City Council.

Notes and Leases Payable and Other Long Term Obligations — The City’s general long term notes and leases and other
long term obligations increased by $31.9 million, or 3.5%, during the current fiscal year. As in 2010, the key factor for
this increase is the recognition of additional OPEB liability of $40.9 million.

Additional information on the City’s long term debt obligations can be found in note 10 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

GASB has issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The objective of
this pronouncement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information and provide clearer fund balance
classifications. Previously, fund balance was reported as reserved, unreserved — designated and unreserved -
undesignated. Effective for fiscal year 2011 reporting, fund balance will be reported as restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts can be spent.
Additional information on GASB Statement No. 54 can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

FUTURE PRONOUNCEMENTS
GASB has issued Statement No. 64, which is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. The City does not
anticipate this statement to impact the City’s financial statements.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of the City’s citizens,
taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to: City of Boston, Auditing Department, Boston City Hall, Room
M 4, Boston, MA 02201. Alternatively, these requests may also be made through email, by contacting the Auditing
Department at CityAuditor@cityofboston.gov.
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Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and investments S 1,094,675 S - S 1,094,675 S 81,711
Cash and investments held by trustees... 42,251 23,472 65,723 52,322
Receivables, net:
Property and other taxes.. 23,261 - 23,261 -
138,414 - 138,414 -
36,750 - 36,750 57,002
Other assets.... 9,742 - 9,742 12,929
Due from primary government.. - - - 195
Due from comMPONENt UNILS.....c.cvvveeeueueverrineniniieeieisireseeieieeeseneens 2,982 8,335 11,317 -
Total CUITENt @SSELS.....cucviiiierereeeieeeeie e 1,348,075 31,807 1,379,882 204,159
Noncurrent Assets:
Intergovernmental receivables.. 53,836 - 53,836 -
Notes and other receivables... 63,463 - 63,463 99,169
Other assets - 871 871 86,708
Capital assets:
NONAEPIreciable.......c.cvviieieeiriririiceee s 84,501 - 84,501 30,468
Depreciable, net 1,279,913 - 1,279,913 52,263
Due from component units.... 2,467 58,223 60,690 -
Total noncurrent assets.. . 1,484,180 59,094 1,543,274 268,608
Total assets 2,832,255 90,901 2,923,156 472,767
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable..........oceceeirericiieninieeeesisnins 94,469 - 94,469 24,039
Accrued liabilities - current:
Tax abatement liability........ccoovvireeeuerrinineeeeersceeene 28,000 - 28,000 -
Compensated absences.... 49,745 - 49,745 -
Judgments and claims.... 64,244 - 64,244 -
Payroll and related costs... 128,093 - 128,093 -
Deposits and other 80,496 1,421 81,917 3,807
Current portion of long-term debt and leases... 111,330 7,830 119,160 1,429
Due to component UNits........occeiicininiriiniinicieeeas 195 - 195 -
Due to BMC. . - - - 2,099
Due to primary government... . - - - 11,317
Unearned revenue 29,092 - 29,092 8,185
Total current liabilities.... 585,664 9,251 594,915 50,876
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds due in more than one year 972,540 66,818 1,039,358 19,606
Notes and leases payable due in more than one year.. 49,980 - 49,980 -
Other noncurrent liabilities 195,922 - 195,922 141,526
Other postemployment benefits obligation... 577,294 - 577,294 56,851
UNEArNEd MEVENUE.......cerieteieicereree ettt - - - 40,648
Due to primary government . - - - 60,690
Total noncurrent liabilities.. 1,795,736 66,818 1,862,554 319,321
Total liabilities 2,381,400 76,069 2,457,469 370,197
NET ASSETS:
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt..........cccoceeerirrennnnee 402,646 - 402,646 51,873
Restricted for:
Capital projects 25,080 - 25,080 -
Nonexpendable trust 4,974 - 4,974 -
Expendable trust 34,915 - 34,915 59,226
Debt service 727 14,832 15,559 -
Federal and state grants.. 91,293 - 91,293 -
UNFESEICEEM. ..ottt renee (108,780) - (108,780) (8,529)
Total net assets S 450,855 S 14,832 S 465,687 S 102,570

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government.........ccocceeeeeiveeneane S 80,968 S 26,784 S 2,155 S 15,691
HUMAN SErVIiCES....uuuiieiiiieeeeeeeeeeireeeeeenanns 49,974 45 8,369 -
Public safety.... 875,111 89,485 26,741 1,697
Public WOrkS......cccovveiieerieeeecieee e, 133,830 12,029 115 12,811
Property and development.................... 117,871 5,471 79,537 494
Parks and recreation.......c.ccccceeevvveecineens 31,956 756 2,561 1,549
LiDrary..coeeccveeeereeeceeccree et eereeeree s 47,320 354 2,312 -
Yol 3o Lo - 1,317,108 9,451 379,651 1,096
Public health programs........ccccecveevveenne 70,619 - - -
Interest on long-term debt..................... 40,329 - - -
Total governmental activities........... 2,765,086 144,375 501,441 33,338
Business-type activities:
Convention center......ccccceeevvevvveveevveennnnn, 1,516 - 1,172 -
Hospital bonds 3,336 - - -
Total business-type activities............ 4,852 - 1,172 -
Total primary government............. S 2,769,938 S 144,375 S 502,613 S 33,338
Component Units:
Boston Public Health Commission............... 201,008 79,136 45,408 429
Boston Redevelopment Authority 19,654 7,696 4,852 -
Trustees of the Public Library of
the City of BOStON......cccvevvevieieeiecie e 9,355 1,452 4,285 -
Economic Development and
Industrial Corporation of Boston............. 31,637 15,960 14,651 -
Total component units .................. S 261,654 S 104,244 S 69,196 S 429
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general pUrpOSES......cccvvvvierivieririe e esieesieeeane
(o E U PPRR PNt

Payments in lieu of taxes
Grants and contributions not restrict
Investment income
City Appropriation
Miscellaneous

Special item
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Transfers

ed

Total general revenues and transfers........ccccceveeeeererrresrrcsnnnennneeeneeenneeneens

Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit) - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year.........ccccuvunnnnas

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

S (36,338) S - (36,338) S -
(41,560) - (41,560) -
(757,188) - (757,188) -
(108,875) - (108,875) -
(32,369) - (32,369) -
(27,090) - (27,090) -
(44,654) - (44,654) -
(926,910) - (926,910) -
(70,619) - (70,619) -
(40,329) - (40,329) -
(2,085,932) - (2,085,932) -
- (344) (344) -
- (3,336) (3,336) -
- (3,680) (3,680) -
(2,085,932) (3,680) (2,089,612) -
- - - (76,035)
- - - (7,206)
- - - (3,618)
- - - (1,026)
- - - (87,785)
1,525,494 - 1,525,494 -
122,399 58,508 180,907 -
65,461 - 65,461 -
187,322 - 187,322 -
21,724 3,561 25,285 12,331
- - - 69,808
23,195 - 23,195 19,809
R - - 4,250
- (7,509) (7,509) -
(1,120) 1,120 - -
1,944,475 55,680 2,000,155 106,198
(141,457) 52,000 (89,457) 18,413
592,312 (37,168) 555,144 84,157
S 450,855 $ 14,832 $ 465,687 $ 102,570

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Cash and investments held by trustees
Receivables, net:
Property and other taxes
Intergovernmental
Departmental and other.
Total Receivables
Due from other funds
Due from component units
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Warrants and accounts payable

Accrued liabilities:
Payroll and related costs
Deposits and other.
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Due to component unit
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable.

Restricted

ASSIZNEd....ccueeieierieeeeee e,
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances...

Other Total
Special Capital Governmental Governmental

General Revenue Projects funds Funds
823,210 S 128,083 88,394 S 946 S 1,040,633
- - 1,838 40,413 42,251
23,261 - - - 23,261
63,689 117,942 10,619 - 192,250
26,172 73,752 - 125 100,049
113,122 191,694 10,619 125 315,560
1,973 6,709 1,457 - 10,139
5,449 - - - 5,449
943,754 S 326,486 102,308 S 41,484 S 1,414,032
51,773 S 20,921 20,907 S 868 S 94,469
126,222 1,871 - - 128,093
20,133 45,129 2,827 - 68,089
86,477 81,751 10,176 - 178,404
6,023 4,546 - - 10,569
195 - - - 195
290,823 154,218 33,910 868 479,819
- - - 4,974 4,974
- 91,293 68,398 35,642 195,333
141,891 80,975 - - 222,866
511,040 - - - 511,040
652,931 172,268 68,398 40,616 934,213
943,754 $ 326,486 102,308 $ 41,484 $ 1,414,032

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

Total fund balance - governMental fUNAS.........ccoovviiiiuinunnnenieieirirrr s ssssssssssssesssessenessssssesenens S 934,213
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 1,364,414
Adjust deferred revenues to record revenues 0N an acCrual DasiS.........ccuevvverieiieneeiieieeie et ete e e e sre e s saeebeeaeeneens 146,062
Internal service funds are included in the government-wide statements.... 49,971
Bond issuance costs are capitalized in the government-wide StatemMEeNts.........cccueveiiieeierieriiee e 9,742
Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those
liabilities consist of:
General obligation bonds and notes... . (1,062,907)
Capital [eases......cccvvevveeververeeenenn (28,123)
BoNd isSUE PremMiumS/diSCOUNTS, NEL......ecicieieieieeeeeeeee e et et este e e st e stesaestesteseestesteseestesaessessessessesseessessessessessensensene senean (55,032)
Deferred DONA GaINS (IOSSES)....ccueruiriereriirririsisiseeteeee e eree et et etetestetestesaessesbesbessessesseesasseeseeseeseeseensesses sreeseensensensansansens 12,212
ACCIUE INTEIEST ON DONAS......eiiiiicieicieectecce ettt ettt e et e e teebeeabeeaeeeteesaeeebaeeseeaseenseeabesssesssesssesssen serseessesseesseeseanns (10,842)
COMPENSATEA @DSENCES. ...ttt ettt s e s b et e bt et e e a b e s a e e ss e e sa e e bt e abesateeaeeebeesaee seenbesatesatenueenbeenseesenns (176,673)
T L1 SOOI (8,693)
UL F= {0 o TY oY KT o o el =11 o RSSO (117,695)
Other posteMPIOYMENT DENETITS.....cuiiiiiiie et e e et e e e et e s e e s e e be e beesteeseenseessen senbeessesnsensean (577,294)
I DL o =1 4T =T o €TSS (28,000)
Pollution remediation (500)
(2,053,547)
Net assets of governmental aCtiVities.......cccciiiiiriiiiiinnnunnneeieieirirerrr s s s s s sssssssssssssssssesensenenes 3 450,855

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:
Real and personal property taxes.........ccecvecveenenn

Excises

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government
Human services
Public safety
Public works
Property and development
Parks and recreation
Library
Schools

Public health programs

Judgments and claims
Retirement costs
Other employee benefits

Investment income.
Licenses and permits
Departmental and other
Intergovernmental
Total revenues.........

State and district assessments............cceeuveeee.

Capital outlays
Debt service
Total expenditures...

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Long-term debt and capital leases issued.............

Refunding bonds issued
Payments to escrow agents

Premiums on long-term debt issued...........ccccen...

Transfers in (out)

Fund balance - beginning of year
Fund balance - end of year

Total other financing sources (uses)........
Net change in fund balances...................

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Special Revenue Capital Projects Funds Funds
1,526,361 S - S - S - S 1,526,361
124,214 - - - 124,214
65,461 - - - 65,461
64,751 21 - - 64,772
4,733 33 - 7,190 11,956
41,676 74 - - 41,750
65,498 34,659 - 2,846 103,003
395,374 283,658 28,722 - 707,754
2,288,068 318,445 28,722 10,036 2,645,271
65,459 7,492 - 5,622 78,573
29,233 6,775 - - 36,008
516,725 9,607 - - 526,332
105,318 4,317 - - 109,635
35,138 76,469 - - 111,607
16,634 3,132 - - 19,766
30,532 3,024 - - 33,556
812,949 161,883 - - 974,832
70,092 288 - - 70,380
811 - - - 811
195,976 - - - 195,976
294,200 - - - 294,200
152,042 - - - 152,042
2,588 2,383 135,434 - 140,405
132,156 1,626 - - 133,782
2,459,853 276,996 135,434 5,622 2,877,905
(171,785) 41,449 (106,712) 4,414 (232,634)
- 1,366 154,743 - 156,109
- - 52,720 - 52,720
- (1,118) (14,372) - (15,490)
- 11,401 - - 11,401
117,523 (53,962) (63,299) (1,382) (1,120)
117,523 (42,313) 129,792 (1,382) 203,620
(54,262) (864) 23,080 3,032 (29,014)
707,193 173,132 45,318 37,584 963,227
652,931 S 172,268 S 68,398 S 40,616 S 934,213

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to
the Statement of Activities

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds. . . . tereeeeeesesesessrennnnsnnnnnen

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful

lives. Capital outlays ($92,395) exceeded depreciation expense ($75,296)

AN AISPOSAIS (S884)....uvvevevetieiietereteetete ettt ettt bt e et b bt e s e s e b b ebeae st e b et esase st e s esesase e s sebes ennas

Tax revenues in the statement of activities that are not reported as revenues in the

BOVEINMENTAI FUNTS....eiiiitieieetee et st e st et e e te e b e sbtesaeesaeenaeenbeente saesnee

Proceeds of long-term debt (5207,464) increase long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the
governmental funds. Repayment of bond, note, and lease principal ($129,563) and
payment to the escrow agent ($15,490) are expenditures in the governmental

funds, but reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the

amount by which proceeds exceed repayments and €SCrow payments........ccecveeeereereeneeneenessesneenns

Bond premiums net ($7,135) increase the long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the governmental
funds. Deferred losses on refunding ($2,222) decrease long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the
governmental funds. Bond issuance costs, net ($542) are expenditures in the
governmental funds, but are deferred assets in the statement of assets. This is

the amount by which premiums and deferred losses on refundings exceeded

ISSUNCE COSES.uuuiiruiieeiteeittee ettt e sttt e et e et e sttt s sat e e st e e s bt e e sabeeeabeeensbe e s st e s sabeesabeeeaneeesaseesnateensbaes seesnseesnnnaenns

Intergovernmental revenues decrease receivables on the statement of net assets,

but are included in the operating statement of governmental funds...........ccoceverenenenenienenencneeee,

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds. This amount represents the increase in liabilities for
judgments and claims ($1,957), compensated absences ($193), other
postemployment benefits ($40,942) offset by a decrease in liabilities for Landfill

closure and post closure costs ($102) and interest payable (S1,151). ....cccoeveveverireerereenereeereeeeeseenena

Net loss from the internal service fund, which is presented in the statement

of activities, but not in the governmental funds....

Change in net assets of governmental activities........ccceiiiiiiiiiriiiiirssssnnenneeeneneeeeeenenennenneenen.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

........................ $ (29,014)

........................... 16,215

........................... (4,909)

............................ (62,411)

........................... (8,815)

........................... (8,882)

........................... (41,839)

. (1,802)
............ $ (141,457)
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Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Budgetary Basis

General Fund - Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2011 (with comparative actual amounts for 2010)
(Amounts in thousands)

2011
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 2010 Actual
REVENUES AND OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS:
Real and personal property taxes, Net........cccceeevevevennnes S 1,502,324 S 1,502,324 S 1,504,566 S 2,242 S 1,440,193
EXCISES. e itteieeeeectteee e e et e e eesree e e e eerree e e e eabae e e e eeaaaeeeeeenns 140,345 140,345 159,041 18,696 144,034
Commonwealth of Massachusetts..........ccccceevveerivvrennenn. 395,700 395,700 395,201 (499) 413,209
Departmental and other revenue..........cccecvevceeeveeeennnen. 137,094 137,094 144,438 7,344 68,706
FINES ettt e e e et e e e et e e e e anes 70,133 70,133 65,051 (5,082) 70,376
Payments in lieu of taXes........ccccveveevieeneeneeseeseeceeieene 57,303 57,303 71,999 14,696 60,920
INVEStMENT INCOME...cccviiiiiiiiieeciee et 2,000 2,000 1,392 (608) 3,182
Licenses and Permits.........ccccevvveeveeeeeeeesieseeseeseeeee e 32,490 32,490 39,887 7,397 30,558
Other available funds.........coeeeiieieieecceecee e 72,139 72,139 48,139 (24,000) 72,088
Total revenues and other available funds................ 2,409,528 2,409,528 2,429,714 20,186 2,303,266
EXPENDITURES:

General GOVEINMENT.....c.ccveeierie e 77,442 77,806 75,879 1,927 70,932
HUM@N SEIVICES....ccciiieeee ettt et ree e e 29,304 29,670 29,377 293 29,466
PUDIIC SAfety..ccciciiciecie e 498,541 499,243 504,759 (5,516) 507,558
Public works... . 100,567 101,032 106,239 (5,207) 97,138
Property and development.........ccceecveeceeieecieesieesieenieenne 27,676 30,205 30,145 60 29,485
Parks and recreation........cccceeeceeeecieecireeeeceee e 16,517 16,838 16,747 91 16,916
[ o T VTR 30,369 30,378 30,378 - 29,862
LYol 3T o L3R 821,383 821,382 821,375 7 817,830
Boston Public Health Commission...........ccccvveeviieecveeennnns 69,793 69,808 69,808 - 70,000
Judgments and claims.......cccocevereecieeeesee s 3,500 3,500 21,022 (17,522) 15,970
Other employee benefits.. . 252,784 249,481 243,624 5,857 225,242
Retirement COStS.......uuviiiiiiiiiiee e e 196,207 196,207 195,998 209 112,608
Debt reqUIreMENTS......cevveeeeeiecie et 132,412 130,930 126,410 4,520 124,848
State and district assessmMents.........ccccveeerveeecveecineeeeneen. 153,033 153,048 152,043 1,005 146,323
Total expenditures.........cccceeeeecreeeeeeereccsneeeeesecessnnens 2,409,528 2,409,528 2,423,804 (14,276) 2,294,178

Excess of revenues and other available
funds over expenditures...........cceeeueeeerereesseeneineens 5 - S - S 5,910 5 5,910 S 9,088

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2011
(Amounts in thousands)
Enterprise Fund

Convention Hospital Revenue
Center Bonds Bonds Total Internal Service
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and INVESTMENTS....cocveveeiereeeeeee et e sens S - S - S - S 54,042
Cash and investments held by trustees — restricted - 23,472 23,472 -
ReCEIVADIES, NEL......eviceeeeeeeeee e - - - 164
Due from component units — restricted.......c.ccoevverevereennnne - 8,335 8,335 -
Total current assets........ccceerereeeennccieerrerennnenceeeeeeenennns - 31,807 31,807 54,206
Noncurrent assets:
Due from other funds........ccecveeieveeviereesee e - - - 430
Due from component units — restricted..........cccoveeeecreennenne - 58,223 58,223 -
Other assets — restricted........ooveeevveeeieeeeireeecrree e e, - 871 871 1,885
Total noncurrent assets.........cceevreeeenereeerereeennnneseeenens - 59,094 59,094 2,315
Total @SSetS....cocuriiiiiiinsnnniiiniissnnnissssssnnenssssssssnsssens - 90,901 90,901 56,521
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accrued labilities ........oveceevieeiieeecece e - - - 6,550
Accrued interest payable - 1,421 1,421 -
Current portion of long-term debt.........ccceceiveininneninnne. - 7,830 7,830 -
Total current liabilities. - 9,251 9,251 6,550
Noncurrent liabilities:
REVENUE BONGS......uiiiiieeciieecee e - 66,818 66,818 -
Total noncurrent liabilities........cccceeeeeeeciririeeennccennnens - 66,818 66,818 -
Total liabilities.......ccceeririeeneceiiiiriereeeeeereeeeeneeeeeeeene - 76,069 76,069 6,550
NET ASSETS:
Restricted for debt Service........ooveeiiriiie e - 14,832 14,832 -
(8T =T ot =T RSP - - - 49,971
Total Net aSSetS....c.cceeereeereerereeereersnercreenssessneesssessseenns S - S 14,832 S 14,832 $ 49,971

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)
Enterprise Funds

Convention Hospital
Center Bonds Revenue Bonds Total Internal Service
OPERATING REVENUES:

Contributions.........ccceveeeveeveeenneens S - S - S - S 83,249

State aid - pledged for debt service.......ccocevvvevercvrienennn 58,508 - 58,508 -
Total operating revenues..........ceeeereerieeccsssnnnneenennens 58,508 - 58,508 83,249

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Health benefits.......c.cccveeviieeeiceece e - - - 85,051
Total operating expenses. - - - - 85,051
Operating income (loss) 58,508 - 58,508 (1,802)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):

Intergovernmental - state grants........cccceveeevereeveenenieenne 1,172 - 1,172 -

Investment earnings - pledged for debt service.............. 294 3,267 3,561 -

INLErEST EXPENSE...eecvieeieeeeeieseeeere st ete e ete e te e esae e esaens (1,516) (3,336) (4,852) -

Loss on extinguishment of debt..........cocovevievenerienenns (7,509) - (7,509) -
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)................... (7,559) (69) (7,628) -

Income (loss) before transfers.........ccceevceeeereeeereccccrcrnnenens 50,949 (69) 50,880 (1,802)

Transfer to general fund.... (39,569) - (39,569) -

Transfer from capital projects........cocceeeeecenvenenenncnennens 38,219 - 38,219 -

Transfer from special revenue..........cccocveeevvecesieieennns 2,470 - 2,470 -
Change in net assets........ccovvvueereiiiiiniiissisnneeeeennnns 52,069 (69) 52,000 (1,802)

Total net assets (deficit) - beginning of year...................... (52,069) 14,901 (37,168) 51,773
Total net assets - end of year.......ccccceveeerecreeeeccrneeecssneens S - S 14,832 S 14,832 5 49,971

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

Enterprise Funds

Convention Hospital
Center Bonds Revenue Bonds Total Internal Service
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from other governments..........c.ccccoeeeevereceereeenenee. S 58,508 S - S 58,508 S -
Cash received from employees and employer........ccvcveverieerennnne - - - 83,210
Cash Paid tO VENUOIS......ccuvreeiieierieeeesee e te st - - - (85,876)
Net cash provided by (used in) operations........cccccceeeeeevnnenee 58,508 - 58,508 (2,666)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Grants received from State.........ccocveeveeeveiecieceeeecreeere e 1,172 - 1,172 -
Interest paid 0N debt.......cooeeiiriiiine e (1,216) (3,560) (4,776) -
Transfers from other funds 40,689 - 40,689 -
Transfers to other funds..........ocvveeeeeiieeciecceee e (69,569) - (69,569) -
Repayment of long-term debt..........ccevevervieneenenieieniesereeseeene (101,014) (7,525) (108,539) -
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities...........ccceu... (129,938) (11,085) (141,023) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
INVESTMENT INCOME.....iiiiiiiiiie e 294 538 832 -
Principal received 0N NOtE.......cccueiviieiiiirie e - 8,021 8,021 -
Interest received on note...... - 2,729 2,729 -
Net cash provided by investing activities.......ccccceeeeeiiiiiinennnns 294 11,288 11,582 -
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.................. (71,136) 203 (70,933) (2,666)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year........ccccceeeeeeeecvennnnens 71,136 23,269 94,405 56,708
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year.........cccccecvvurrrricnnnenrccsannnnn. S - S 23,472 S 23,472 S 54,042

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating iNCOME (10SS).....coveieirirerierieeee ettt S 58,508 S - S 58,508 S (1,802)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

ACCcoUNtS reCeIVabIE .....cceevuieierieeerce e - - - (30)
Other @SSELS....eiiieuieierieieeterte ettt - - - (843)
Due from componeNnt UNitS.......ceeeevereerierieenienieeneseeneeeens - - - (9)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............cccoceveverenns - - - 18
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities.......... S 58,508 S - S 58,508 S (2,666)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011
(Except Employee Retirement Plan, which is year ended December 31, 2010)
(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equIValeNnts.......c.coveerierierieniieeeecreee e
Receivables:
Interest and dividends.

Investments, at fair value:
Short-term:

Domestic...............

International.........

Equity:

Domestic...............
International.........
Fixed-income:
Domestic...............
International.........
PRIT Pooled Fund.......

Real estate

Venture capital funds.
Total iINVEStMENTS.....c.ociiieiiieicieecreceeee e
Securities lending short-term
collateral investment POOL.........cccerereriririiiieieeee e
Other assets.......c.ccoueuneee.

LIABILITIES:

Total assets

Accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other [iabilities.........cceeeveverieneeneseeeeeeeeeeee

Securities

purchased........

Collateral held on securities [enNding........ccccevcverveeriieneeneeneceeieee

NET ASSETS

Total liabilities

Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.....................

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Employee

Retirement OPEB Trust Private-
Plan Fund Purpose Trusts  Agency Funds
$ 114,716  $ - S 89,384 S 5,801
20,624 - - -
90,340 - - -
140,642 - - -
- - 1,358 -
251,606 - 1,358 -
67,958 - - -
7,577 - - -
1,037,245 60,024 - -
742,532 13,031 - -
504,879 38,023 - -
178,939 - - -
1,145,318 - - -
272,659 - - -
440,475 - - .
4,397,582 111,078 - -
214,410 - - -
- - 30 -
4,978,314 111,078 90,772 5,801
26,754 40 3,546 5,801
114,507 - - -
216,333 - - -
357,594 40 3,546 S 5,801
$ 4,620,720 $ 111,038 $ 87,226 $ -
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Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Except Employee Retirement Plan, which is year ended December 31, 2010)
(Amounts in thousands)

Employee
Retirement OPEB Trust Private-
Plan Fund Purpose Trusts
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
EMPIOYELS ..ottt et S 463,656 S 232,667 S -
EMPIOYEES....uviieceiiee ettt e e 126,450 - -
Donations and Other........ccccvveveviiviiiviiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, - - 20,084
Total contributions.......ccceeeieeireeiieeireireereerrerreereees 590,106 232,667 20,084
Investment earnings:
Realized and unrealized gains on investments................... 440,862 5,696 6,684
INVESTMENT INCOME..... i - 2,689 1,140
Interest and diVIdeNdS.......cccocueeeeereriieeiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 94,165 - -
Less iNVesStMENt EXPENSES.....cuiivcveeercireeerireeeseieeeescreeee e (15,648) (300) -
Net investment earnings........ccceeeveeiiieecrienniienncnennnns 519,379 8,085 7,824
Securities lending activities:
Securities lending iINCOME.........ccoccieieeciiieccee e 1,814 - -
Less borrower rebates and fees........ccccceveiveeiicieesiciieenns (685) - -
Net income from securities lending activities............ 1,129 - -
Total net investment income.......ccccceeeerenirieieenrennnes 520,508 8,085 7,824
Intergovernmental.......ccccoeeeeeciee e 12,850 - -
Total additions......ccccivieeiiiiiiniiiiiiniicnreeererenns 1,123,464 240,752 27,908
DEDUCTIONS:
BN It iiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 444,535 149,674 -
REIMDUISEMENTS....ccieiiiieeeee et e e 9,533 - -
Refunds of coNtribULIONS........eeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 42,627 - -
Administrative expenses and other.......ccccccveecieeiiiciieeinciieennns 5,835 - 24,107
Total deductions.......ccvverreireeireeirenirenireeireeeeeseennens 502,530 149,674 24,107
Change in net assets.....ccccevveeireniirencrennnerenerenenenennes 620,934 91,078 3,801
Net assets - beginning of year........ccceiiiveeciriieecciiircccrreeens 3,999,786 19,960 83,425
Net assets - eNd Of YEAr......cccccrerererrrrrirrrrsssrsssrssnsessssssesesssssannns S 4,620,720 S 111,038 S 87,226

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

1. The Financial Reporting Entity

The accounting policies followed in preparing the accompanying basic financial statements are as follows:

a. Primary Government
The City of Boston (the City), incorporated as a town in 1630 and as a city in 1822, now exists under
Chapter 486 of the Act of 1909 and Chapter 452 of the Acts of 1948 of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts (the Commonwealth), which, as amended, constitute the City’s Charter. The Mayor is
elected to a four-year term and serves as chief executive officer of the City. The Mayor has general
supervision of and control over the City’s boards, commissions, officers, and departments. The
legislative body of the City is the City Council, which consists of 13 elected members serving two-year
terms.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the City and its component units. The component
units discussed below are included in the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their
operational or financial relationships with the City.

b. Retirement System

The State-Boston Retirement System (SBRS) is a defined benefit contributory retirement system created
under state statute. It is administered by a Retirement Board comprising five members: the City Auditor,
who serves ex officio; two individuals elected by participants in the system; a fourth member appointed
by the Mayor; and a fifth member chosen by the other members. The SBRS provides pension benefits to
retired City, Boston Redevelopment Authority, Boston Housing Authority, Boston Water and Sewer
Commission, and the Boston Public Health Commission employees. Although legally separate, the SBRS
provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the City and thus has been reported as if it were part of
the primary government; a method of inclusion known as blending. The financial statements of SBRS
are included for its fiscal year end which is December 31, 2010.

c. Discretely Presented Component Units Disclosure
These component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the City but are included because the City is financially accountable for and is able to impose its
will on the organizations. Unless otherwise indicated, the Notes to the Financial Statements pertain only
to the primary government because certain disclosures of the component units are not significant
relative to the total component units and to the primary government. A description of the component
units, criteria for inclusion, and their relationship with the City are as follows:

i. Boston Redevelopment Authority (BRA) — The BRA is a public body politic and corporate
constituting the City’s redevelopment authority and exercising the powers of a planning board for
the City. The BRA is governed by a five-member board, four of whom are appointed by the Mayor.
Its purpose is to provide planning support for major construction and redevelopment activity in the
City.

ii. Economic Development and Industrial Corporation of Boston (EDIC) — The EDIC is a body politic
and corporate and an instrumentality of the Commonwealth. It is governed by the same persons
appointed as members of the BRA board. The EDIC has various powers to assist industrial
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development projects in the City and, together with the BRA, assists the City with its economic
development function.

iii. Boston Public Health Commission (PHC) — The PHC is a body politic and corporate and public
instrumentality of the Commonwealth, established by Chapter 147 of the Acts of 1995. PHC is
governed by a seven-member board, six of whom are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by
the City Council, and one of whom is the chief executive officer of the Boston Medical Center
(BMC). The PHC is responsible for the implementation of public health programs in the City.

iv. Trustees of the Public Library of the City of Boston (TPL) — The TPL is a nonprofit organization
qualified as a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Trustees of
TPL are appointed by the Mayor. The TPL was established to benefit the public library system of the
City.

The financial statements of the discretely presented component units are included for their respective
fiscal year ends, which is June 30, 2011.

Complete financial statements of these discretely presented component units can be obtained through
the City Auditor’s office, Room M-4, City Hall Plaza, Boston, Massachusetts 02201. In addition,
condensed financial statements for the discretely presented component units are included in note 19.

d. Related Organizations
The Mayor is also responsible for appointing members of the governing bodies of the Boston Housing
Authority, Boston Industrial Development Finance Authority, and Boston Water and Sewer Commission;
however, the City’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making these
appointments.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies of the City conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is
a summary of the more significant policies followed by the City:

a. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Changes in Net Assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.
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The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, and Fiduciary
Funds, even though the latter are excluded from the Government-wide Financial Statements. Major
individual Governmental Funds and major individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns
in the Fund Financial Statements.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

i. Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary
Fund Financial Statements. The Agency Fund within the Fiduciary Fund has no measurement of
results. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements for recognition have been met.

ii. Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Fund Financial Statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are “susceptible to accrual” (i.e., both measurable and available). Revenues not considered
to be available are recorded as deferred revenue.

The City applies the susceptible to accrual criteria to property and other taxes and
intergovernmental revenues. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental
revenues, there are essentially two types of revenues. In one, resources must be expended on the
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be reimbursed to the City; therefore, revenues
are recognized based upon the amount of expenditures incurred subject to availability
requirements. In the other, resources are virtually unrestricted and are usually revocable by the
grantor only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are
reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.
Property and other taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which taxes have been levied or
earned, provided they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Generally, intergovernmental
revenues are recognized as revenue provided they are earned during the year and collected within
one year after year-end.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to long-term liabilities including compensated
absences, other postemployment benefits, workers’ compensation and judgments and claims, are
recorded only when payment is mature and due.



Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in both the Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of GASB. Governments
also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from the collection of revenue pledged to repay
debt. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are excise taxes. The principal
operating revenues of the City’s internal service funds are receipts from employer and employee
for health insurance premiums. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include administrative expenses, vendor payments, and health benefits. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Description of Major Funds
Governmental funds — The City reports the following major governmental funds:

1. The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

2. The Special Revenue Fund accounts principally for the activities funded by federal and state
grant revenue sources and certain other revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures
for specified purposes.

3. The Capital Projects Fund accounts for bond proceeds and grant revenues used for the
acquisition or construction of the City capital facilities.

Proprietary Funds — The City reports the following major Proprietary Funds:

4. The Convention Center Bond Fund accounted for the City activities related to the financing
for the construction of a state-owned convention center. In 2011, the City refunded the
Convention Center debt, thereby eliminating the Convention Center Bond Fund. As of the
end of 2011, the fund had no net assets.

5. The Hospital Revenue Bond Fund accounts for the activities related to the Boston City
Hospital Revenue Bonds. These Bonds are payable solely from the mortgage note payments
received from the PHC. These Bonds are repaid from a pledged revenue source from PHC.

Fiduciary Funds — The City reports the following fiduciary fund types:

6. The Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for
the benefit of individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The City operates
four pools used for the improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries, educational
scholarships and sporting equipment, creation of public utility and beauty, and co-mingled
nontestamentary trusts.

7. The Pension Trust Fund accounts principally for the activities of the State-Boston Retirement
System, a blended component unit, which accumulates resources for pension benefit
payments to retired employees of the City and other entities.

8. The OPEB Trust Fund is an irrevocable trust fund established for other postemployment
benefits. The assets are appropriated from the General Fund and accumulate to reduce the
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unfunded actuarial liability of health care and other postemployment benefits. The assets of
the trust are currently not used for direct payments of benefits.

9. The Agency Funds are used to report funds held by the City in a purely custodial capacity.
The City currently operates a drug evidence account for proceeds from property seized from
illegal drug-related activities. These funds are then used to offset the costs of technical
equipment or expertise and investigations.

The City also uses an internal service fund to account for its self-insured health costs. Although the
fund is presented in a separate column in the accompanying proprietary fund financial statements,
it is not considered a major fund.

c. Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, investments with original maturities of three months or
less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

d. Basis of Investment Valuation
Investments are presented in the accompanying basic financial statements at fair value. Where
applicable, fair values are based on quotations from national securities exchanges, except for certain
investments of SBRS, which are described in notes5 and 11. Further, income from investments is
recognized in the same fund as the related investments.

The City invests in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which is an external
investment pool and is not SEC-registered. The fund is state-regulated and is valued at current share
price.

e. Interfund Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
the Government-wide Financial Statements as “internal balances.”

f.  Uncollectible Tax and Other Receivables
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Amounts considered to be uncollectible
are based on the type and age of the related receivable.

g. Capital Assets

Capital assets include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), and intangible assets such as easements, land use rights, computer
software, trademarks and patents. Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the Government-wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $25,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation. Any significant construction commitments are encumbered at year-end in the City’s
Capital Project Fund.
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The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ useful lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 30
Building improvements 30
Infrastructure 30
Land improvements — major 30
Land improvements — playgrounds 15
Computer upgrades 10
Equipment and machinery 10
Intangible assets, computer software and licenses 5
Computers and related equipment 3
Furniture and fixtures 3
Motor vehicles 3

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement, termination, or
death, certain employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave (subject to certain
limitations) at their then current rates of pay. The portion of the liability related to unused sick and
vacation time that has matured or is due as of June 30, 2011 is recorded in the Governmental Fund
Financial Statements. The entire amount of the liability is reported in governmental activities in the
Government-wide financial statements. The liability for vacation leave is based on the amount earned
but not used; for sick leave, it is based on the amount accumulated at the balance sheet date that would
be paid upon termination (vesting method). The liability for both amounts is calculated based on the pay
or salary rates in effect at the balance sheet date.

Long-Term Obligations and Related Costs

In the Government-wide Financial Statements, and proprietary fund types in the Fund Financial
Statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. The unamortized portion is presented in the Government-wide and
Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Assets. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges.

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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j.

Net Assets and Fund Balance
In the Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements, net assets are reported in the
following categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and
outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets.

Restricted: Net assets the use of which is subject to constraints imposed by external parties,
including creditors, grantors, and laws and regulations of other governments, or imposed by City
Charter or enabling legislation. Nonexpendable amounts are required to remain intact under such
constraints.

Unrestricted: Remaining net assets not considered invested in capital assets, net of related debt or
restricted.

For purposes of net asset classification, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, fund balance is reported in the following categories:

Nonspendable: Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or
they are legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted: Amounts the use of which is subject to constraints imposed by external parties, including
creditors, grantors, and laws and regulations of other governments, or imposed by City Charter or
enabling legislation.

Committed: Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. For the City, this
formal action takes the form of statutes which are passed by the City Council and approved by the
Mayor.

Assigned: Amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent for use for specific purposes, but are
considered neither restricted or committed. Under M.G.L. Chapter 190, Acts of 1982, the City
Auditor has the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes on behalf of the City.

Unassigned: Amounts in the general fund that are not otherwise constrained for a specific purpose
more narrow than the general operations of the City. The City maintains a formal policy that
unassigned fund balance in the General Fund be at least 10 percent of the current year’s General
Fund GAAP basis operating expenditures.

For purposes of fund balance classification, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as
they are needed. When unrestricted resources are used, committed resources are used first, followed
by assigned and unassigned resources, respectively.
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k. Tax Abatement Refunds
Matured tax abatement refunds that are due and payable at June 30 have been recorded as a liability in
the General Fund. A liability for estimated future tax abatement refunds have been recorded in the
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

I.  Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs
State and federal regulations require the City to place a final cover on its Gardner Street landfill site
when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site
for 30 years after closure. At June 30, 2011, 100% of the Gardner Street landfill site had been used and
had not accepted solid waste for several years. While most of the landfill closure construction was
completed in prior years, there still remains 12 acres of the landfill to be capped as of June 30, 2011.

The total current cost of landfill closure and postclosure care is an estimate, subject to changes resulting
from inflation, deflation, technology, or other changes in applicable laws or regulations. Such costs are
recognized as expenditures in the General Fund to the extent that they are due or matured and are
expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. The total liability is reported in the
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets. Expenditures related to the Gardner Street landfill site
postclosure care in fiscal year 2011 were $102 thousand.

m. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the accompanying basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

n. Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54). GASB 54 requires the use of new fund
balance classifications that compose a hierarchy primarily based upon the extent to which the
government is bound to follow constraints on the use of governmental fund resources. These
classifications are described in note 2(j). GASB 54 also clarified the definitions of the governmental fund
types. The effect of implementation of GASB 54 on the City’s financial statements was limited to the use
of the new fund balance classifications. Implementation did not result in a change in beginning fund
balances nor did it affect the types of governmental funds reported by the City

3. Short-Term Debt
During fiscal year 2011, the City had no short-term debt issued or outstanding.

4. Budgetary Data
The General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adopted. The budgets for all departments
included in the General Fund of the City, except the School Department, are prepared under the direction of
the Mayor and City Council. The School Department budget is prepared under the direction of the School
Committee.
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Original and supplemental appropriations are submitted by the Mayor, approved by the City Council, and
lapse at year-end unless encumbered. The legal level of control over appropriations is at the department
level. Amendments to the original budget must be approved by the City Council, except for a reallocation of
appropriations of up to $3 million, which the Mayor may approve. Further, the City Auditor, with the
approval of the Mayor, may make transfers from any appropriation to any other appropriation for purposes
of eliminating deficits before closing the books for the fiscal year. After the close of the fiscal year, the City
Auditor may, with the approval of the Mayor, apply any income, taxes, and funds not disposed of and make
transfers from any appropriation to any other appropriation for the purpose of closing the accounts for the
fiscal year. There were no supplemental appropriations in fiscal year 2011.

The City must establish its property tax rate each year so that the resulting property tax levy will comply
with the limits required by Proposition 2-1/2 (note 6). The tax levy must equal the sum of (a) the aggregate
of all annual appropriations for expenditures; plus (b) the reserve accounts described in the following
paragraph; plus (c) provision for the prior fiscal years’ deficits, if any; less (d)the aggregate of all
nonproperty tax revenues projected to be received by the City, including available funds, in amounts
certified or approved by the Commonwealth for tax rate purposes.

In accordance with the 1986 amendments to the Funding Loan Act of 1982, the City has established two
reserve funds. The first is a budget reserve fund, which is required to be funded in stages to a final level of
2-1/2% of the prior year’s overall departmental appropriations, except the School Department, by the
beginning of fiscal year 1990. It is available to be applied to extraordinary and unforeseen expenditures. The
second is a separate reserve fund of 1% to 2-1/2% of the current year appropriation of the School
Department to be applied to over expenditures in that department.

The City’s General Fund budget is prepared on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The “actual” results column in the Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures — Budgetary Basis — General Fund is presented on a “budgetary basis” to provide a meaningful
comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget and GAAP basis,
where applicable, are that:
i. Revenues are recorded when cash is received, except for real estate and personal property taxes,
which are recorded as revenue when levied (budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).
ii. Encumbrances and continuing appropriations are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures
(budget) but have no effect on GAAP expenditures.
iii. Certain activities and transactions are presented in separate funds (GAAP), rather than as
components of the General Fund (budget).
iv. Amounts raised for the prior years’ deficits and available funds from prior years’ surpluses are
recorded as revenue items (budget), but have no effect on GAAP revenues.



In addition, there are certain differences in classifications between revenues, expenditures, and transfers.
The following reconciliation summarizes the differences between budgetary and GAAP basis accounting

principles for the year ended June 30, 2011 (in thousands):
Excess
(deficiency) of
revenue and

Other other
financing financing
Revenue Expenditures sources, net sources
As reported on a budgetary basis S 2,429,714 2,423,804 - 5,910
Adjustments:
Revenues to modified accrual
basis (24,123) - - (24,123)
Expenditures, encumbrances, and
accruals, net - 36,049 - (36,049)
Reclassifications:
Convention Center fund transfer (39,569) - 39,569 -
Other transfers (77,954) - 77,954 -
As reported on a GAAP basis S 2,288,068 2,459,853 117,523 (54,262)

5. Deposits and Investments

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available to the
City. Deposits, including demand deposits, money markets, and certificates of deposit in any one financial
institution, may not exceed 60% of the capital and surplus of such institution unless collateralized by the
financial institution involved. Investments may be made in unconditionally guaranteed U.S. government
obligations having maturities of a year or less from the date of purchase, or through repurchase agreements
with maturities of no greater than 90 days in which the underlying securities consist of such obligations.
Other allowable investments include authorized bonds of all states, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper
rated within the three highest classifications established by rating agencies, and units in the MMDT. The
highest commercial paper classifications for Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s (S&P) are as follows:

Commercial Paper Credit Ratings

Moody's S&P
Superior P1 Al+or Al
Satisfactory P2 A2
Adequate P3 A3

The Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts oversees the financial management of the MMDT, a
local investment pool for cities, towns, and other state and local agencies within the Commonwealth. The
City’s fair value of its investment in the MMDT represents the value of the pool’s shares.

Primary Government (except the pension trust fund)

a. Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the City’s deposits or investments may
not be returned. The City carries deposits that are fully insured by FDIC insurance or collateralized, and
deposits that are not collateralized and are uninsured. As of June 30, 2011, the bank balances of
uninsured and uncollateralized deposits totaled approximately $237 thousand. All of the City’s
investments are held by third parties in the City’s name.
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Investment Policy

The City’s primary concern in connection with its investment activities is a concern shared by all
municipal governments: the preservation of capital. The City’s investment policy establishes a domain in
which all of the City’s investment activities may be safely conducted while it strives to use its capital
resources as efficiently as possible. The frontiers of that domain are fixed by Massachusetts General
Laws (M.G.L.) c. 44, sec.55, which prohibits Massachusetts communities from investing in certain
categories of high-risk investments; limits the amount of the City’s bank deposits in any one financial
institution; and establishes qualifying criteria for banking institutions. Further, all investments held by
third parties are to be held in the City’s name.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The following is a listing of the City’s fixed income investments (in thousands) and related
maturity schedule (in years) as of June 30, 2011:

Investment type Fair value Less than 1 1-5

External investment pool S 507,520 507,520 -
Mutual funds 65,034 65,034 -
U.S. Treasury notes and bonds 6,861 - 6,861
Domestic corporate 3,809 - 3,809
Repurchase agreements 423,538 423,538 -

S 1,006,762 996,092 10,670
Credit Risk

It is the City of Boston Trust Funds’ policy that there shall be no specific limitation in regard to credit
worthiness of securities, except the overall average quality of each fixed income portfolio shall be AA or
better. The City’s fixed income investments as of June 30, 2011 were rated by S & P and/or an
equivalent national rating organization, and the ratings are presented below using the S & P rating scale
(in thousands):

Investment type Fair value Rating
Mutual funds S 65,034 Not Rated
External investment pool 507,520 Not Rated
Domestic corporate 3,809 AAAto B
S 576,363

Concentration Risk

The City adheres to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 44, sec. 55 when managing concentration risk. M.G.L.
c. 44, sec. 55 contains several restrictions limiting where and under what circumstances the City may
deposit its funds.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit. As of June 30, 2011 the City held one international equity mutual fund valued
at $13.0 million. Although this investment is not denominated in a foreign currency, the underlying
securities are denominated in various foreign currencies.
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State-Boston Retirement System (SBRS or the System)

a. Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the System’s deposits may not be
returned. The System carries deposits that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insurance or collateralized with securities held by the System or the System’s agent
in the System’s name. As of December 31, 2010, all of the System’s deposits were insured or
collateralized.

b. Investment Policy
The provisions of M.G.L. C. 32, Sec 23(2) govern the System’s investment practice. Diversification is
attained through varied investment management styles that comply with Massachusetts state law. This
is accomplished through the retention of investment managers that adhere to M.G.L. C. 32, Sec. 3(3),
the “Prudent Person” rule.

The System has retained an investment consultant to work with the Retirement Board in a fiduciary
capacity to assure that strategic investment diversification is attained, to employ investment managers
with expertise in their respective asset classes, and to closely monitor the implementation and
performance of the respective investment strategies.

The System is currently invested in stocks (domestic and foreign), fixed income securities (domestic and
foreign), real estate, private equity, and hedge funds.

c. Interest Rate Risk
The following is a listing of the System’s fixed income investments (in thousands) and related maturity
schedule (in years) as of December 31, 2010:

Less More
Investment type Fair value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10

U.S. Treasury notes and bonds S 29,742 - 9,700 4,410 15,632

U.S. agencies 26,657 - 2,459 4,872 19,326

Domestic corporate 340,434 13,873 146,814 147,635 32,112

Municipal 2,134 2,134

International corporate 56,066 1,234 18,995 15,056 20,781

International government 122,873 - 60,818 43,314 18,741

Short-term investment funds 75,535 75,535 - - -
Asset-backed:

CMOs 31,689 - 525 362 30,802

Mortgage-backed 57,660 1 - 2,849 54,810

Other 16,563 - 7,426 4,637 4,500

S 759,353 90,643 246,737 223,135 198,838

The System’s guidelines do not specifically address limits on maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The manager of each fixed income
portfolio is responsible for determining the maturity and commensurate returns of their portfolio.

The collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) held by the System as of December 31, 2010 are highly
sensitive to changes in interest rates.
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d. Credit Risk
The System allows investment managers to apply discretion under the “Prudent Person” rule.
Investments are made, as a prudent person would be expected to act with discretion and intelligence, to
seek reasonable income, preserve capital, and, in general, avoid speculative investments.

The System’s fixed income investments as of December 31, 2010 were rated by S & P and/or an
equivalent national rating organization and the ratings are presented below (in thousands) using the S &
P rating scale:

Fair Not
Investment type value AAA AA A BBB BB B CCC rated
U.S. agencies S 26,657 19,353 1,057 1,144 391 - - - 4,712
Domestic corporate 340,434 3,928 23,775 93,002 32,831 43,485 70,616 748 72,049
Municipal 2,134 - 688 1,446 - - - - -
International corp. 56,066 21,525 477 3,961 12,787 6,243 4,592 - 6,481
International gov't 122,873 64,363 31,329 11,488 2,348 1,623 953 - 10,769
Short-term
investment funds 75,535 75,535 - - - - - - -
Asset-backed:
CMOs 31,689 22,655 1,856 1,341 36 - - - 5,801
Mortgage-backed 57,660 49,691 - - - - - - 7,969
Other 16,563 15,446 - 38 55 - 1,024
S 729,611 272,496 59,182 112,382 48,393 51,389 76,216 748 108,805

In addition to the above schedule, the System has approximately $29.7 million invested in
U.S. government securities, which are not rated as they are explicitly guaranteed by the
U.S. government.

e. Concentration Risk
The System has no investments, at fair value, except for pooled funds, that exceed 5% of the System’s
total investments as of December 31, 2010.

The System adheres to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 32, sec. 23(2) when managing concentration risk.

f. Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit. Similar to the investments in domestic equities, the System employs or
encourages its investment advisor to employ diversification, asset allocation, and quality strategies.

Risk of loss arises from changes in currency exchange rates. The System’s exposure to foreign currency
risk is presented on the following table (in thousands).
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Cash and
short-term
Currency investments  Fixed income Equity Alternative Total
Australian dollar S 322 1,205 35,078 - 36,605
Brazilian real 1,066 428 15,081 - 16,575
Canadian dollar 765 6,463 9,048 - 16,276
Danish krone 121 3,279 3,287 - 6,687
Euro currency 589 40,412 181,193 5,732 227,926
Hong Kong dollar 279 - 26,254 - 26,533
Indian rupee 3 657 13,850 - 14,510
Indonesian rupiah 18 2,495 4,687 - 7,200
Israeli Shekel 8 - 706 - 714
Japanese yen 1,313 45,080 115,192 - 161,585
Malaysian ringgit 223 1,693 2,921 - 4,837
Mexican peso 91 2,232 4,549 - 6,872
New Taiwan dollar 275 - 1,663 - 1,938
New Zealand dollar 30 1,029 250 - 1,309
Norwegian krone 392 3,233 6,452 - 10,077
Pakistan rupee 1 - 913 - 914
Peruvian Nouveau Sol - 855 - - 855
Philippine Peso - 893 - - 893
Polish zloty 3 1,894 467 - 2,364
Pound sterling 354 11,212 94,274 - 105,840
Singapore dollar 292 8,760 12,515 - 21,567
South African rand 57 - 8,728 - 8,785
South Korean won 88 3,327 9,481 - 12,896
Swedish krona 614 4,007 19,186 - 23,807
Swiss franc 46 2,052 38,529 - 40,627
Turkish Lira - - 3,213 - 3,213
Total securities

subject to

foreign

currency risk S 6,950 141,206 607,517 5,732 761,405
U.S. dollars (securities

held by international
investment managers)* 7,563 37,733 135,015 - 180,311
Total international
investment
securities S 14,513 178,939 742,532 5,732 941,716

* Short-term investments include cash of approximately ($14).

g. PRIT Pooled Fund
The Commonwealth enacted Chapter 112, Section 17 of the Acts of 2010 that requires the System to
invest all assets, current and future, related to Boston Teachers in the Pension Reserves Investment
Trust (PRIT) fund. The PRIT fund is an external investment pool that is not registered with the Securities
Exchange Commission.

The fair value of the PRIT fund is based on unit value as reported by management of the PRIT fund. The
PRIT fund issues separately available audited financial statements with a year end of June 30.

On July 1, 2010, the System transferred 27% of its assets, or $1.1 billion, to the PRIT Fund. As of
December 31, 2010, the System had $1.1 billion invested in the PRIT pooled fund.
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h. Derivatives
The System trades financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of its investing
activities to assist in managing exposure to market risks. The System uses forward foreign currency
contracts to hedge against the risk of future foreign currency fluctuations.

6. Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each January 1. By law, all taxable
property must be assessed at 100% of fair cash value. Also by law, property taxes must be levied at least
30 days prior to their due date. Once levied, these taxes are recorded as receivables, net of estimated
uncollectible balances. Property tax revenues have been recorded using the accrual and modified accrual
basis of accounting as described in note 2.

The City bills and collects its property taxes on a quarterly basis following the January 1 assessment. The due
dates for those quarterly tax billings are August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1. Property taxes that
remain unpaid after the respective due dates are subject to penalties and interest charges.

Based on the City’s experience, most property taxes are collected during the year in which they are
assessed. Liening of properties on which taxes remain unpaid occurs annually. On December 15, 2010, all
properties with unpaid fiscal year 2010 property taxes were liened. The City ultimately has the right to
foreclose on all properties where the taxes remain unpaid.

A statewide property tax limitation known as “Proposition 2-1/2” limits the amount of increase in the
property tax levy in any fiscal year. Generally, Proposition 2-1/2 limits the total levy to an amount not
greater than 2-1/2% of the total assessed value of all taxable property within the City. Secondly, the tax levy
cannot increase by more than 2-1/2% of the prior year’s levy plus the taxes on property newly added to the
tax rolls. Certain provisions of Proposition 2-1/2 can be overridden by a citywide referendum.

7. Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the government’s individual major funds, nonmajor funds, and internal
service fund, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows (in thousands):

Other
Special Capital nonmajor Internal
General revenue projects funds service Total
Receivables:
Property taxes $ 18,277 - - - - 18,277
Other taxes 140,944 - - - - 140,944
Intergovernmental 63,684 117,942 10,619 - - 192,245
Other 33,258 73,752 - 125 164 107,299
Gross

receivables 256,163 191,694 10,619 125 164 458,765

Less allowance for
uncollectibles (143,041) - - - - (143,041)

Net total
receivables $ 113,122 191,694 10,619 125 164 315,724




a.

Long-Term Receivable

The City participates in the Commonwealth’s school building assistance program, which is administered
by the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA). The MSBA provides financial assistance (up to
90% of total costs) to the City to build and/or renovate schools. As of June 30, 2011, under this program,
the City was due funds totaling $63.7 million.

In the General Fund, the receivable is offset by deferred revenue because the revenue is not considered
available. The following is a schedule of the five-year paydown (in thousands) as of June 30, 2012
through 2016, and in five-year increments thereafter:

Anticipated
revenue
Fiscal year(s):

2012 S 9,848
2013 8,833
2014 8,475
2015 8,176
2016 7,344
2017 - 2020 21,008

Total S 63,684

Notes Receivable

Section 108 is the loan guarantee provision of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
program. Section 108 provides communities with a source of financing for economic development,
housing rehabilitation, public facilities, and large-scale physical development projects. Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) provides grants to local governments, which in turn provides loans to
developers. As of June 30, 2011, under this program, the City determined that $63.4 million was
collectible. This amount is recorded in the City’s Special Revenue fund.

Deferred Revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue
reported in the governmental funds were as follows (in thousands):

Unavailable Unearned Total
Delinquent taxes receivable (General Fund) S 17,612 - 17,612
Due from component units - 3,693 3,693
Section 108 receivable 63,463 - 63,463
School building assistance receivable 63,684 1,233 64,917
Chapter 90 - 8,943 8,943
Other 4,553 15,223 19,776

Total unavailable/unearned revenue for
governmental funds S 149,312 29,092 178,404
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8. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows (in thousands):

a. Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

S

Beginning Ending

balance Increases Decreases balance
25,128 - - 25,128
50,969 79,258 (70,854) 59,373
76,097 79,258 (70,854) 84,501
159,016 6,368 - 165,384
1,720,283 39,539 - 1,759,822
257,865 18,164 (3,760) 272,269
475,567 19,920 - 495,487
2,612,731 83,991 (3,760) 2,692,962
38,697 8,323 - 47,020
941,895 31,907 - 973,802
194,142 19,631 (2,876) 210,897
165,895 15,435 - 181,330
1,340,629 75,296 (2,876) 1,413,049
1,272,102 8,695 (884) 1,279,913
1,348,199 87,953 (71,738) 1,364,414

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows (in thousands):

Governmental activities:
General government
Human services
Public safety

Public works, including depreciation of general infrastructure assets

Property and development
Parks and recreation
Library

Schools

Public health

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities S

3,162
1,859
14,576
15,954
3,949
7,273
3,526
24,758
239

75,296
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9. Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances

Individual fund and discrete component unit receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2011 are as follows
(in thousands):

Interfund balances Receivable Payable
General S 1,973 6,023
Special revenue 6,709 4,546
Capital projects 1,457 -
Internal service 430 -
Balances at June 30, 2011 S 10,569 10,569
Discrete component unit balances Receivable Payable
Primary government:
General S 5,449 195
Hospital revenue bond 66,558 -
72,007 195
Discretely presented component units:
TPL - 878
PHC 195 71,129
195 72,007
Balances at June 30, 2011 S 72,202 72,202

The purpose of the internal balances is to fund cash flows due to timing differences between receipts and
disbursements and to record the amount due from PHC for the hospital revenue bond debt service.
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10. Long-Term Obligations

Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of the long-term obligations of the governmental activities of the City as of
June 30, 2011 (in thousands):

Outstanding,

Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within
rates of year Additions  Reductions end of year one year
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds 2.0-5.75% S 470,835 127,810 43,145 555,500 45,785
General Obligation Refunding Bonds .125-5.0% 481,995 52,720 63,910 470,805 50,800
Total governmental general obligation bonds payable $ 952,830 180,530 107,055 1,026,305 96,585
Add (deduct):
Unamortized bond premiums/discounts net 55,032
Unamortized excess of reacquisition price over net carrying

amount of defeased bonds (12,212)

Current portion of long-term debt (96,585)

S 972,540

Outstanding,
Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within
rates of year Additions  Reductions end of year one year
Notes, Leases and Other long-term obligations:

Notes payable 4.25-7.18% S 40,285 - 3,683 36,602 3,231
Leases payable 35,504 26,934 34,315 28,123 11,514
Judgments and claims 18,465 - 3,230 15,235 14,445
Workers’ compensation 97,273 31,003 25,816 102,460 43,249
Health and life claims 6,527 85,074 85,051 6,550 6,550
Compensated absences 176,480 67,516 67,323 176,673 49,745
Landfill closure and postclosure care costs 8,795 - 102 8,693 200
Pollution remediation 500 - - 500 -
Other postemployment benefits 536,352 291,056 250,114 577,294 -

Total notes, leases, and other long-term obligations S 920,181 501,583 469,634 952,130 128,934

The payment of long term obligations of the governmental activities, except for health and life claims, is
the responsibility of the City’s General Fund. Health and life claims are the responsibility of the City’s
Internal Service Fund.
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The annual debt service requirements of the City’s general obligation bonds, notes and leases payable as
of June 30, 2011, including subsidies to be received for Build America Bonds and Qualified School
Construction Bonds, are as follows (in thousands):

General obligation bonds: Principal Interest Subsidy Total
Year(s) ending June 30:
2012 S 96,585 43,923 (3,527) 136,981
2013 91,315 40,091 (3,527) 127,879
2014 83,310 36,128 (3,527) 115,911
2015 77,815 32,414 (3,527) 106,702
2016 73,300 28,944 (3,527) 98,717
2017-2021 296,000 98,576 (16,738) 377,838
2022-2026 244,215 41,610 (9,956) 275,869
2027-2031 63,765 6,364 (690) 69,439
S 1,026,305 328,050 (45,019) 1,309,336
Notes Payable:
Year(s) ending June 30:
2012 S 3,231 1,667 - 4,898
2013 3,745 1,477 - 5,222
2014 4,016 1,285 - 5,301
2015 2,110 1,117 - 3,227
2016 2,038 1,019 - 3,057
2017-2021 10,213 3,372 - 13,585
2022-2026 4,355 1,913 - 6,268
2027-2030 6,894 881 - 7,775
S 36,602 12,731 - 49,333
Leases Payable:
Year(s) ending June 30:
2012 S 11,514 422 - 11,936
2013 7,218 275 - 7,493
2014 4,501 166 - 4,667
2015 2,419 97 - 2,516
2016 1,697 51 - 1,748
2017 774 17 - 791
S 28,123 1,028 - 29,151

On April 1, 2011, the City issued $166.1 million of general obligation and refunding bonds, $127.8 million
for various municipal capital projects, and $38.3 million for the purpose of refunding the Convention
Center Fund Special Obligation Bonds (along with other funds available to the City) totaling $93.5
million. Interest on the bonds are payable semiannually each April 1 and October 1 until maturity in
fiscal years 2031, 2027 and 2018, respectively.

Included in the $127.8 million issuance noted above, are $41.6 million of Qualified School Construction
Bonds (QSCBs) offered under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), which allows the
City to issue the bonds at reduced net interest rates. In this program, the City receives reimbursement
from the federal government for some or all of the interest expense.



48 e City of Boston Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

On May 4, 2011, the City issued $14.4 million of refunding bonds for the purpose of refunding certain
outstanding general obligation bonds of the City totaling $15.4 million. Interest on these bonds are
payable semiannually each April 1 and October 1 until maturity in fiscal year 2026.

The cash flow difference and economic gain (the difference between the present value of the debt
service payments on old and new debt) obtained from the April 1, 2011 refunding were $26.2 million
and $6.5 million, respectively. For the May 4, 2011 Series D refunding, the cash flow difference and
economic gain were $1.3 million and $1.3 million, respectively.

The City has entered into various capital lease agreements for equipment acquisition. Payments under
these agreements are subject to annual appropriation and, by statute, are not included in the City’s debt
limit calculations. The remaining principal payments for these leases as of June 30, 2011 are $28.1
million. The gross amount of assets acquired under the equipment lease agreements totals $102.7
million as of June 30, 2011. The City’s commitment under operating leases is not significant.

Business-type activities

The following is a summary of the long-term obligations of the business-type activities of the City as of
June 30, 2011 (in thousands):
Outstanding,

Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within
Bonds payable: rates of year Additions Reductions end of year one year

Convention Center Fund:

Special Obligation Bonds dated 4/1/02 4.0% —5.259S 93,505 - 93,505
Hospital Bond Fund:

Special Obligation Refunding Bonds, Boston City

Hospital, dated 8/1/02 2.0-5.0 80,605 - 7,525 73,080 7,830
Total business-type obligations S 174,110 - 101,030 73,080 7,830
Add (deduct):
Unamortized bond premiums 1,806
Unamortized excess of reacquisition price over net carrying
amount of defeased bonds (238)
Current portion ot long-term debt (7,830)
S 66,818

The annual debt service requirements of the Boston City Hospital, Series B, revenue bonds outstanding
as of June 30, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Principal Interest Total
Year(s) ending June 30:

2012 S 7,830 3,253 11,083
2013 8,140 2,934 11,074
2014 8,465 2,602 11,067
2015 8,805 2,212 11,017
2016 9,245 1,761 11,006
2017-2021 30,595 2,344 32,939

S 73,080 15,106 88,186

The revenue refunding bonds for the Boston City Hospital (BCH) do not constitute general obligations of
the City and the annual debt service of these bonds has been assumed by PHC. PHC expects to meet its
obligation on the bonds through application of a portion of the rent payable to the PHC by the Boston
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Medical Center (BMC) for its lease of the former BCH. Under certain circumstances, including a default
by BMC under the lease, City revenues may be required to satisfy the debt service requirements on the
Series B bonds.

The City has pledged future mortgage note payments from the PHC, to repay the principal and interest
on the revenue refunding bonds for BCH. Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are
expected to require 100 percent of the mortgage note repayments. The total principal and interest
remaining to be paid on the bonds is $88.2 million. Principal and interest paid for the current year and
mortgage note repayments received from PHC were $11.1 million and $11.3, respectively.

The proceeds of the 2011 Series B bonds issued in April 2011, together with other funds available to the
City, were applied to advance refund the City’s outstanding $93.5 million Convention Center loan. The
defeasance of the Convention Center Fund bonds also resulted in the close-out of the Convention
Center Fund, which was included in business-type activities.

No Obligation Debt

The City has outstanding industrial, commercial, and housing development bonds payable solely from
revenues of the respective enterprises that do not constitute an indebtedness of the City and are not
charged against its general credit. This aggregate amount is immaterial to the financial statements.

Defeased Debt

The principal amount of debt refunded through in-substance defeasance transactions for both
governmental and business-type activities and still outstanding at June 30, 2011 was approximately
$227.1 million.

Debt Capacity

The City is subject to a dual general debt limit: the normal debt limit and the double debt limit. Such
limits are equal to 5% and 10%, respectively, of the valuation of taxable property in the City as last
equalized by the State Department of Revenue. Debt may be authorized up to the normal debt limit
without state approval. Authorizations under the double debt limit, however, require the approval of
the Commonwealth’s Secretary of Administration and Finance. Additionally, there are many categories
of general obligation debt, which are exempt from the debt limit but are subject to other limitations.

As of June 30, 2011, the City may issue $3.96 billion of additional general obligation debt under the debt
limit. General obligation debt of $480.4 million, subject to the debt limit, and $79.5 million, exempt from
the debt limit, are authorized but unissued as of June 30, 2011.

11. Retirement Plans

a. Plan Description
The City contributes to the SBRS, a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. The
System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries of the
following government units:

(1) City of Boston

(2) Boston Redevelopment Authority

(3) Boston Housing Authority

(4) Boston Water and Sewer Commission
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(5) Boston Public Health Commission
(6) Suffolk County Sheriff Department

On January 1, 2010, in accordance with Chapter 61 of the Acts of 2009, the Suffolk County Sheriff’s
Department and their respective retirement annuity savings funds were transitioned to the
Commonwealth. Furthermore, retirees who retired as employees of the Suffolk County Sheriff’s
Department prior to January 1, 2010, will remain members of the System and the respective pension
liability will remain the obligation of the City. Due to a collective bargaining agreement, a limited
number of employees retain the ability to retire as members of the System until November 1, 2010.

Chapter 32 of the M.G.L assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan to the
state legislature.

The System is administered by a five person Board of Retirement consisting of the City Auditor, who
serves as a member ex officio, two members who are elected by the participants, in or retired from the
service of the System, a fourth member appointed by the Mayor, and a fifth member chosen by the
other members. A complete set of financial statements for SBRS for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2010 can be obtained through the SBRS, Boston City Hall, Room 816, Boston, MA 02201.

b. Basis of Accounting
The System’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member

contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to
the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms
of each plan.

Investments of the System are stated as follows:

(1) Bonds are stated at quoted market value.

(1) Equity securities are stated at quoted market value.

(2) Real estate funds are stated at appraised value or partner’s account value, whichever is more readily
determinable.

(3) Venture capital funds are stated at contributed cost or fair market value, whichever is more readily
determinable.

(4) International investments are stated at quoted market value and are included in equities and fixed
income categories.

(5) Cash is stated at carrying amount, which is reconciled book balance.
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Membership
Membership in the System consisted of the following at December 31, 2010, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 14,067
Terminated plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits 14,551
Active plan members 19,663

Total membership 48,281
Total number of participating employers 6
Contributions

Plan members are required to contribute to the System. Depending on their employment date, active
members must contribute a range of 5% — 9% of their regular gross compensation. Members hired after
January 1, 1979 must contribute an additional 2% of regular compensation in excess of $30,000.
Participating employers are required to pay into the System their share of the remaining System-wide
actuarially determined contribution, which is apportioned among the employers based on active covered
payroll. The contributions of plan members and the participating employers are governed by Chapter 32
of the M.G.L. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the System was due $336.8 million from all
employers but received $463.7 million in employer contributions. The excess of $126.8 million was a
one-time contribution from the City to help reduce the unfunded liability of the System. For year ended
June 30, 2009 the City’s required and actual contribution was $213.0 million, or $108.0 million, net of
teachers’ retirement. For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2011, the City’s required and actual
contributions were $116.0 million and 190.9 million, respectively.

On May 22, 2010, the Commonwealth enacted Chapter 112 of the Acts of 2010 which resulted in
significant changes in the funding of pension benefits and related assets held for the benefit of City of
Boston Teachers (Boston Teachers) employee group and how that group is administered. The Legislation
stipulated that the Commonwealth is now responsible for the Boston Teachers pension liability and the
funding requirements thereto required. Further, the Legislation stipulated that the System was to
continue administering the membership and retiree activities related to the Boston Teachers.

The Legislation also stipulated that the assets attributable to the Boston teachers would be invested in
the Commonwealths Pension Reserves Investment Trust (PRIT) Fund. However, that investment would
be considered an asset of the System. In order to fund this asset, the System was required to liquidate
certain positions, rebalance the portfolio as necessary, and remit approximately $1.1 billion to PRIT.

During the fall of 1997, the System’s Retirement Board, the City Council, and the Mayor approved the
option for local funding of cost-of-living adjustments. As a result, a locally funded cost-of-living
adjustment of 3.0% on the first $12,000 of a retiree’s annual payment was awarded first in fiscal year
2001 and each year following. These cost-of-living adjustments will be awarded by the Retirement Board
each year, except in years in which the Retirement Board determines that such an adjustment would
substantially impair the funding schedule.
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e.

Legally Required Reserve Accounts
The balance in the System’s legally required reserves (on the statutory basis of accounting) at
December 31, 2010 is as follows (in thousands):

Description Amount Purpose

Annuity savings fund S 1,396,967 Active members’ contribution balance

Annuity reserve fund 451,582 Retired members’ contribution account

Military service credit 50 Members’ contribution account while on military
leave

Pension reserve fund 2,445,990 Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement
benefits

Pension fund 326,131 Remaining net assets

S 4,620,720

All reserve accounts are funded at levels required by state statute.

Securities Lending

The Public Employment Retirement Administration Commission of Massachusetts (PERAC) has issued
supplemental regulations that permit the System to engage in securities lending transactions. These
transactions are conducted by the System’s custodian, which lends certain securities owned by the
System to other broker dealers and banks pursuant to a form of loan agreement. The System and the
borrowers maintain the right to terminate all securities lending transactions on demand.

At the System’s direction, the custodian lends the System’s securities and receives cash (including both
U.S. and foreign currency), U.S. government securities, sovereign debt of foreign countries, and
irrevocable bank letters of credit as collateral. The custodian does not have the ability to pledge or sell
collateral unless the borrower defaults. Borrowers are required to deliver cash collateral in amounts
equal to not less than 100% of the market value of the loaned securities.

The System does not impose any restrictions on the amount of securities lent on its behalf by the
custodian. There were no failures by any borrowers to return loaned securities or pay distributions
thereon and there were no losses from a default of the borrowers or the custodian for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The cash collateral received by the custodian on each loan was invested, together
with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective investment pool. The
relationship between the average maturities of the investment pool and loans was affected by the
maturities of the loans made by other plans that invested cash collateral in the collective investment
pool, which the System could not determine. At December 31, 2010, the System had no credit risk
exposure to borrowers because the amounts the System owed the borrowers exceeded the amounts
owed to the System.
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At December 31, 2010, the fair value of securities loaned by the System amounted to $255.0 million,
against which was held collateral of $262.0 million as follows (in thousands):

Short-term collateral investment pool S 216,307
Noncash collateral 45,721
Total S 262,028

g. Commitments
At December 31, 2010, the System had contractual commitments to provide $58.0 million of additional
funding to private equity funds, and $56.0 million to real estate funds.

h. Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the System as of January 1, 2011 is as follows (in thousands):

Actuarially accrued liability (AAL) S 7,382,907
Actuarial value of plan assets 4,592,675
Unfunded AAL (UAAL) S 2,790,232
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 62.2%
Covered payroll (active plan members) S 1,371,363
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 203.5%

In the January 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the individual entry age normal actuarial cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included an 8.0% investment rate of return, projected salary increases
of 5.0%, and cost-of-living adjustments of 3.0% up to $12,000 annually. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using the fair value of investments. The System’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
being amortized as a level percentage of pay on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at
January 1, 2011 was 15 years.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

12. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, requires governments to account for OPEB, primarily healthcare, on an accrual basis.
The effect is the recognition of an actuarially required contribution as an expense on the Government-wide
Statement of Activities when a future retiree earns their postemployment benefit. To the extent that an
entity does not fund their actuarially required contribution, a postemployment benefit liability is recognized
on the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets over time. OPEB benefits are reported as expenditures
on a pay-as-you-go basis in the governmental funds.
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In addition to the pension benefits described in note 11, the City provides postemployment healthcare and
life insurance benefits, in accordance with state statute and City ordinance, to participating retirees and
their beneficiaries. Participating retirees are City retirees. As of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, approximately 14,000 retirees and 15,000 active members meet the eligibility requirements
as put forth in Chapter 32B of M.G.L. The City sponsors and participates in an agent multi-employer defined
benefit OPEB plan. The Boston Public Health Commission, a discretely presented component unit, also
participates and contributes to the plan. The OPEB plan is administered by the City and does not issue a
stand-alone financial report.

Medical and prescription drug benefits are provided to all eligible retirees not enrolled in Medicare through
a variety of plans offered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of Massachusetts, Harvard Pilgrim HealthCare, and
Neighborhood Health Plan. Medical and prescription drug benefits are provided to retirees enrolled in
Medicare through supplemental and Medicare Advantage plans offered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Massachusetts, Harvard Pilgrim HealthCare, and Tufts Health Plan.

Groups 1 and 2 retirees, including teachers, with at least 10 years or 20 years of creditable service are
eligible at age 55 or any age, respectively. Group 4 retirees with at least 10 years or 20 years of creditable
service are eligible at age 45 or any age, respectively. Retirees on accidental disability retirement are eligible
at any age, while ordinary disability requires 10 years of creditable service. The surviving spouse is eligible
to receive pre and postretirement death benefits, as well as medical and prescription drug coverage.

a. Funding Policy
Employer and employee contribution rates are governed by the respective collective bargaining
agreements. The OPEB Plan is currently funded on a pay-as-you-go basis plus periodic advance funding
contributions as amounts are available. The employers and plan members share the cost of benefits. As
of June 30, 2009, the valuation date, the plan members contribute 10% to 25% of the monthly premium
cost, depending on the plan in which they are enrolled. The plan members contribute the balance of the
premium cost.

b. Basis of Accounting
The OPEB Trust Fund is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the
plan are recognized when made. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of each plan.

Investments of the OPEB Trust fund are stated as follows:

(1) Bonds are stated at quoted market value.

(2) Equity securities are stated at quoted market value.

(3) Comingling funds are reported at net asset value.

(4) Cash is stated at carrying amount, which is reconciled book balance.



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ¢ 55

c. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual OPEB expense is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liability over a period of 30 years. The following
table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended June 30, 2011, the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and the change in the City’s net OPEB obligation based on an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2009 (in thousands):

ARC S 262,899
Interest on net OPEB obligation 28,157
Adjustment to ARC (20,307)

Annual OPEB cost 270,749
Contributions made (229,807)

Change in net OPEB obligation 40,942
Net OPEB obligation — beginning of year 536,352
Net OPEB obligation — end of year S 577,294

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation were as follows (in thousands):

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
2011 S 270,749 85% S 577,294
2010 258,991 59% 536,352
2009 346,425 37% 430,794

d. Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Plan

The funded status of the OPEB plan in the aggregate and the City’s individual OPEB Plan as of June 30,
2011, based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2009, was as follows (in thousands):

Plan City
AAL S 4,684,972 4,553,816
Actuarial value of plan assets - -
UAAL S 4,684,972 4,553,816
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) S 1,060,919 1,008,004
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 442% 452%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the City are subject to



56 e City of Boston Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the Notes to Basic Financial Statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

In January 2009, the Commonwealth adopted Chapter 479, which amends Chapter 32B and allows local
municipalities to establish an OPEB liability trust fund and a funding schedule for the trust fund. On
October 1, 2009, the City Council approved the establishment of a irrevocable OPEB trust fund and
$20.0 million was transferred to the fund. In FY11, the City Council approved the transfer of the
stabilization fund totaling $50.1 million from the General Fund to the OPEB trust fund and an additional
appropriation of $35.0 million for a total of $85.1 million.

e. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the City and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the City and plan members
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The City also adopted M.G.L. Chapter 32B, Section 18A for future retirees effective July 1, 2010. This
provision requires Medicare eligible retirees to enroll in a Medicare supplement plan upon reaching age
65. As a result, the actuarial assumptions for participation and coverage election changed, as presented
in the following table, reducing the City’s OPEB AAL by $937.0 million from the previous actuarial
valuation.

Participation and Coverage Election Assumptions

Medicare Plans Non-Medicare Plans
BCBS Master Medicare
Medical Carveout  Supplement Medicare Non-Medicare  Non-Medicare
Plan Plan Advantage Plan plan Master Medical
June 30, 2009 Valuation
future retirees hired
prior to 1986 and 65.0% 7.5% 7.5% 15.0% 5.0%
current retirees under
age 65
future retirees hired 80.0% 10.0% 10.0% 0.0% 0.0%
after 1986
June 30, 2007 Valuation
all future retirees and
current retirees under 50.0% 5.0% 5.0% 30.0% 10.0%

age 65

The most recent actuarial valuation was performed as of June 30, 2009. The projected unit credit cost
method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 5.25% investment rate of return and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 10.0% to 11.0% initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0%
after 5 — 6 years. The healthcare cost trend rate differs between the master medical and other
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healthcare plans. The City’s UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at July 1, 2009 was 30 years.

13. Transfers
Transfers and their purposes during the year ended June 30, 2011 were as follows (in thousands):

Proprietary

Governmental funds fund
Special Capital Other Convention
General revenue projects governmental center
Primary government:
Excess hotel/motel excise taxes S 39,569 - - - (39,569)
Cemetery fees/fund appropriation 2,109 - - (2,109) -
Parking meter fees/fund

appropriation payment 15,000 (15,000) - - -
Retirement Costs 22,437 (22,437) - - -
Unrestricted amounts 14,055 (14,055) - - -
Sale of surplus property balance 25,080 - (25,080) - -
Convention Center Defeasance - (2,470) (38,219) - 40,689
Debt Service (727) - - 727 -
Total $ 117,523 (53,962) (63,299) (1,382) 1,120

14. Excess of Expenditures over Budgets

The City had expenditures in excess of their budgeted amounts for the year ended June 30, 2011 in the
following categories (in thousands):

Public safety:

Police Department S 4,904
Fire Department 1,589
Public Works:
Snow Removal 5,517
Judgments and Claims:
Execution of Courts 17,522
S 29,532

The excess expenditures reported above are allowed under the budgetary laws governing the City.
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15. Fund Balance Classification Details

The components of fund balance for the City’s governmental funds as of June 30, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Other
Special Capital governmental
Fund Balances General revenue projects funds
Nonspendable
Permanent fund principal S - - - 4,974
Restricted for:
General Government - 5,223 2,872 691
Human Services - 2,590 - -
Property and development - 28,198 25,372 -
Parks and recreation - 330 1,804 33,671
Library - - 2,659 -
Schools - 54,952 35,691 1,280
Subtotal - 91,293 68,398 35,642
Assigned to:
General Government 28,543 5,548 - -
Human Services 403 274 - -
Public Safety 11,621 46,749 - -
Public Works 1,108 24,121 - -
Property and development 736 676 - -
Parks and recreation 172 1,331 - -
Library 1,178 117 - -
Schools 11,520 2,159 - -
Catastrophic Loss 13,410 - - -
Housing Initiative 25,080 - - -
Debt Service 6,938 - - -
Designated for subsequent year expense 41,182 - - -
Subtotal 141,891 80,975 - -
Unassigned 511,040 - - -
Total fund balances S 652,931 172,268 68,398 40,616

16. Commitments and Contingencies
The City has committed $220.6 million in encumbrances for purchase orders and contracts.
17. Public Health System

Effective July 1, 1996, the City’s Department of Health and Hospitals and Trustees of Health and Hospitals
were abolished. Substantially all their assets and liabilities, including title to the City’s two hospitals, BCH
and Boston Specialty and Rehabilitation Hospital (BSRH), were transferred to and assumed by PHC.

Also effective July 1, 1996, the operations of BCH and BSRH were consolidated with the operations of the
Boston University Medical Center under the licensure and control of the BMC.

The PHC receives the majority of its funding from federal and state grants, lease agreements with BMC, and
a City appropriation. During fiscal year 2011, the City appropriated $69.8 million to the PHC. As described
below, the PHC uses the appropriation to pay debt service on certain general obligation bonds and base
assistance grant payments to BMC. The remainder of the appropriation is used for administrative purposes
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and to support the various public health programs run by the PHC. The City has budgeted $72.9 million for
the PHC for fiscal year 2012.

Due from PHC/BMC

On July 1, 1996, in connection with the consolidation transaction described above, the PHC assumed a
liability of $149.8 million for a mortgage note due to the City. In August 2002, this note was refinanced such
that the stream of payments made by the PHC on the new note will be used to pay the outstanding balance
of $122.9 million of the City’s Special Obligation Refunding Bonds dated August 2002. The PHC receives
funding for the note payments from the BMC under a lease agreement whereby the BMC leases portions of
the former BCH for an initial period of 50 years. Rental payments received under this lease are equal to the
debt service costs on the new note and on all City general obligation bonds allocable to BCH. In fiscal year
2011, the City received $7.5 million in principal and $3.6 million in interest for a total of $11.1 million from
PHC in payments for this note.

General obligation bonds issued by the City between December 1967 and October 1995 total $4.1 million as
of June 30, 2011. These bonds pertain to the property and operations of the BCH Campus, South Block
Campus, BSRH Campus, Emergency Medical Services Operations, and the Long Island Campus.

In addition, the PHC and BMC are also responsible for reimbursing the City for health insurance, equipment
lease payments, workers’ compensation, and other miscellaneous expenses paid for by the City.

Payments to BMIC

PHC is obligated to make future base assistance grant payments to BMC of $10.8 million each year through
fiscal year 2019.

Risk Management

The Risk Management Program focuses on a planned strategy of self-insurance, supported by strong
prevention and cost reduction efforts, financial reserves and catastrophic insurance. The City is self-insured
in most areas of risk including general liability, property and casualty, workers’ compensation, certain
employee health care costs and unemployment compensation.

The City’s legal liabilities are capped per M.G.L. Chapter 258, and Corporation Counsel defends the City in
any lawsuits that arise from the normal course of operations. For workers’ compensation, the City is exempt
from state insurance requirements per M.G.L. Chapter 152 Section 25B. The City’s Workers’ Compensation
Division, as well as the Police and Fire Departments, manage employee injury claims internally. The City
budgets for and funds legal claims and employee injury costs through the General Fund, charging specific
departments for their share of costs in order to promote awareness and prevention efforts.

The City purchases health insurance coverage for employees and retirees through a variety of health
maintenance organizations (HMQ's), in addition to offering three self-insured indemnity plans, which are
administered by Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Massachusetts (BC/BS). HMO costs are funded through the
General Fund, and the self-insured plans are financially managed through an internal service fund
established in compliance with M.G.L Chapter 32B Section 3A.

For unexpected large losses, the City maintains a catastrophic risk reserve, which has an available balance of
$13.4 million at the end of fiscal 2011. To further protect the City’s assets and finances from adverse loss,
commercial insurance is purchased strategically for certain exposures. A catastrophic property insurance
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policy provides $100.0 million for all risk protection after a $10.0 million deductible. Boiler and machinery
losses are insured up to $10.0 million per incident, after a $50 thousand deductible.

The City has established a liability based on historical trends of previous years and attorney’s estimates of
pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. Changes in the self-insurance liability for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

Internal service fund

2011 2010
Health and life claims, beginning of year S 6,527 6,507
Incurred claims 85,074 86,140
Payments of claims attributable to events of both the
current and prior fiscal years:
Health and life (85,051) (86,120)
Health and life claims, end of year S 6,550 6,527

Government-wide statements

2011 2010
Judgments and claims, beginning of year S 115,738 79,068
Incurred claims 36,610 88,263
Payments of claims attributable to events of both the current
and prior fiscal years:

Workers’ compensation (25,816) (32,023)

Unemployment compensation (5,607) (6,666)

Court judgments (3,230) (12,904)
Judgments and claims, end of year S 117,695 115,738

The liabilities above have not been discounted to their present value. Incurred claims represent the total of
a provision for events of the current fiscal year and any change in the provision for events of the prior fiscal
years.

There are numerous pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City attorneys estimate
that the potential claims against the City not recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements
resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the basic financial statements.
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19. Discretely Presented Component Units

The following presents condensed financial statements for each of the discretely presented component

units:
Condensed Statements of Net Assets
June 30, 2011
(In thousands)
PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total
Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments S 23,151 41,193 8,162 9,205 81,711
Cash and investments held

by trustee - - 50,902 1,420 52,322
Receivables, net:

Other 46,459 4,146 1,430 4,967 57,002
Other assets 10,256 163 2,026 484 12,929
Due from primary

government 195 - - - 195

Total current assets 80,061 45,502 62,520 16,076 204,159

Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable 5,742 93,427 - - 99,169
Other assets 60,023 26,685 - - 86,708
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 13,448 14,919 - 2,101 30,468

Depreciable 17,725 3,499 620 30,419 52,263
Total noncurrent

assets 96,938 138,530 620 32,520 268,608

Total assets S 176,999 184,032 63,140 48,596 472,767
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Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Warrants and accounts
payable S

Accrued liabilities:
Other

Current portion of
long-term debt and leases

Due to BMC

Due to primary government

Deferred revenue

Total current
liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Bonds notes and leases due

in more than one year

Other noncurrent liabilities

OPEB

Deferred Revenue

Due to primary government

Total noncurrent
liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets S

Condensed Statements of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

(In thousands)

PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total
18,514 1,893 1,250 2,382 24,039
1,098 - 647 2,062 3,807
274 - - 1,155 1,429
2,099 - - - 2,099
10,439 - 878 - 11,317
5,903 2,175 - 107 8,185
38,327 4,068 2,775 5,706 50,876
664 1,475 - 17,467 19,606
3,641 137,265 - 620 141,526
52,716 4,135 - - 56,851
6,875 33,773 - - 40,648
60,690 - - - 60,690
124,586 176,648 - 18,087 319,321
162,913 180,716 2,775 23,793 370,197
29,486 6,448 620 15,319 51,873
- - 58,522 704 59,226
(15,400) (3,132) 1,223 8,780 (8,529)
14,086 3,316 60,365 24,803 102,570
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Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
Year ended June 30, 2011

(In thousands)

PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total
Expenses S 201,008 19,654 9,355 31,637 261,654
Program revenues:
Charges for services 79,136 7,696 1,452 15,960 104,244
Operating grants and
contributions 45,408 4,852 4,285 14,651 69,196
Capital grants and contributions 429 - - - 429
Total program
revenues 124,973 12,548 5,737 30,611 173,869
Net expenses (76,035) (7,106) (3,618) (1,026) (87,785)
General revenues:
Investment income 160 2,873 9,258 40 12,331
Sale of property - 3,936 - - 3,936
City appropriation 69,808 - - - 69,808
Miscellaneous income 13,540 1,924 - 409 15,873
Special item 4,250 - - - 4,250
Total general
revenues 87,758 8,733 9,258 449 106,198
Change in net assets 11,723 1,627 5,640 (577) 18,413
Net assets — beginning of year 2,363 1,689 54,725 25,380 84,157

Net assets — end of year S 14,086 3,316 60,365 24,803 102,570
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Schedule 1

Required Supplementary Information

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands)

Schedules of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAALas a
Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded Funded percentage of
valuation value of liability AAL (UAAL) ratio Covered covered payroll
date assets (a) (AAL) (b) (b-a) (a/b) payroll (c) ((b-a)/c)
Pension - Plan
01/01/11* 4,592,675 7,382,907 2,790,232 62.2% $ 1,371,363 203.5%
01/01/10 4,292,504 7,212,669 2,920,165 59.5 1,425,451 204.9
01/01/09%* 4,089,989 6,900,229 2,810,240 59.3 1,364,068 206.0
01/01/08 4,458,002 6,596,148 2,138,146 67.6 1,299,112 164.6
01/01/07* 4,138,146 6,223,154 2,085,008 66.5 1,221,404 170.7
01/01/06 3,836,807 5,957,373 2,120,566 64.4 1,168,808 181.4
OPEB - City
06/30/09 — 4,553,816 4,553,816 — 1,008,004 451.8%
06/30/07 — 5,490,836 5,490,836 — 919,662 597.0
OPEB - Plan
06/30/09 — 4,684,972 4,684,972 — 1,060,919 441.6%
06/30/07 — 5,654,817 5,654,817 — 967,584 584.4
*Liability and payroll estimated from prior year's valuations.
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
required Percentage
contribution contributed
Pension Plan
December 31, 2010 S 336,784 138 %
December 31, 2009 253,996 100
December 31, 2008 239,039 100
December 31, 2007 221,865 100
December 31, 2006 217,088 100
December 31, 2005 191,132 100
OPEB - Plan
June 30, 2011 283,577 82 %
June 30, 2010 270,882 57
June 30, 2009 364,303 36
OPEB - City
June 30, 2011 270,749 85 %
June 30, 2010 258,991 59
June 30, 2009 346,425 37

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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General Fund
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“Make Way for Ducklings” — Boston Public Garden

The General Fund is the operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all revenues,
expenditures and other financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.
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General Fund Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 2011 and 2010(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
ASSETS:
CaSh @Nd INVESTMENTS. ..eeeeeeeeeeeee et et e et e e eeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseneesneeenn S 823,210 S 880,912
Receivables:
P IO P EILY TaXES e e e e e e eaeaaes 18,277 18,550
Motor vehicle / Doat @XCISe......ccocuuiiiieeieiiieie et 49,994 64,446
INtergovernNMENTAl........ccciii i 63,689 86,549
Departmental and Other........c.uveiiiiiice e 33,253 34,039
Tax title aNd POSSESSION......uiiieeieeeiciee ettt e e see e e ee e 90,950 87,869
Total RECEIVADIES. ... e e e e e e 256,163 291,453
Allowance:
Motor vehicle / boat @XCISE.......cvecueiiieecieeccree ettt (45,010) (57,647)
Tax title aNd POSSESSION.....uuiiieciere ettt ere e sae e e sbeeeeeaes (90,950) (87,869)
(01 =T ST URTIN (7,081) (11,158)
TOtal AllOWANCE...cciiceiiteeeee ettt eerrar e e eas (143,041) (156,674)
NEL FECEIVADIE...vvveiiei ittt e st e e e e e saaes 113,122 134,779
Due from Other fUNAS......cooiiieieieeeeeeeeeeeceeec bbb araraeeeeeeeeeeeees 1,973 30,000
Due from COMPONENT UNILS......cccciieiiiiieeeiiiee et eire e eeee e e et e e era e e e 5,449 5,909
TOtAl @SSEES..ceiiierrrrrreerreiesssnnreeeereesssssssreeesseessssssseesssssssssssssesessssnnnns S 943,754 S 1,051,600
LIABILITIES:
Warrants and accounts payable............ccoeeieeieiieiicie e S 51,773 S 63,593
Accrued liabilities:
Payroll and related COStS.......ccimiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 126,222 151,554
Deposits aNd Other........ccuvii i 20,133 22,468
Deferred rEVENUE.......ueeieee ettt e e e eaara e e e e e 86,477 100,196
DUE T0 OtNer FUNAS.c.evviiiiei ittt e e abrreee s 6,023 6,054
Due t0 COMPONENT UNITS. ...ttt ettt e e e e e e 195 542
B o] = 1IN L= oY1 o= 290,823 344,407
FUND BALANCE:
ASSIZNEU. ..ttt e n e 141,891 -
L8 TXY F=d V=T R 511,040 -
Reserved for:
ENCUMBIANCES...coiiiee et e e e era e e e e e e e - 36,808
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent year expenditures..........ccccceevveiveeniiiennennneen. - 123,103
UNESIZNAtEA......eiii ittt et et e e e e e ere e et e e e ate e e ennes - 547,282
Total fund balance..........coorreeeiciirrrrrccccerrrrereeeree e eennnneeeeeenee 652,931 707,193
Total liabilities and fund balance..........cccveeeeveeeeeeeeiccinneeeeeecccssnnnnes S 943,754 S 1,051,600

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



68 o City of Boston C

General F

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

omprehensive Annual Financial Report

und

June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:
Real and p

ersonal Property taxes......cooveveeveeeceeseeseesreeeeesre e eeae e

ol 1 TP UUUTPPRN

Investmen

L8] aTolo] o o 1= TSR OPRRRURPRNt

Licenses and PerMitS......cccveeiiiieiiiiiieeee e e e e e e rrree e e e e
Departmental and other.........oooiiieei e
IntergovernmMeENtal........cooociieieciee e

TOtal REVENUES.....ccuuiieeireeeiireeiireeereaireeeiereaserennerensssesnsesenes

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General OVEIMMENT.........coiiciiieeeeciee ettt
HUM@N SEIVICES...ciiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt
0 o [ oY- ) {] 1Y 7SR
0] o] [ oY T o S
Property and development.......ccccvvvvvcieiicciee e,
Parks and recreation.........ccecceeeeeciiee e

Library

SCNOOIS. .. e e
Public health programs.......cccceeeecieer e,
Judgments and ClaimsS......occeieiriir e
Retirement COSTS.....ouiiiiiiiee e e
Other employee benefits.......cccvvveiciiiieiiceecee e

State a

NA diStriCt @SSESSMENTS....uvuvereeereeeeeerereieeeeeeeeeereeeeeereereeeeeeeee.

Total current eXpenditures.........c.coveeeerieeeeeeeceee e
Capital OULIAYS. ... e
[D7=Y o Y=Y Y/ ol SRR

Total EXpenditures........cccvvveiiiiiinnniiniinnniiiniinnieses.

Deficiencies of revenues under expenditures........ccccccceeeune.

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers i

N

TranSTers OUL....coovvviiiiiiiiiieee e

Total other financing SOUICES......ccccetreeenerreeenneeereenneereennnenns

Net change in fund balances...........cccccevriirirrinnnciiiiniininnnneee.

Fund balance

Fund balance

- BeGINNING. ...ttt e

B =1 Ue [T - PPN

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

2011 2010
1,526,361 1,467,605
124,214 121,120
65,461 67,265
64,751 70,627
4,733 3,246
41,676 32,907
65,498 74,861
395,374 404,619
2,288,068 2,242,250
65,459 70,514
29,233 29,324
516,725 511,365
105,318 96,641
35,138 30,247
16,634 16,818
30,532 29,853
812,949 815,694
70,092 70,000
811 10,181
195,976 235,282
294,200 224,156
152,042 146,323
2,325,109 2,286,398
2,588 734
132,156 129,670
2,459,853 2,416,802
(171,785) (174,552)
118,250 53,058
(727) -
117,523 53,058
(54,262) (121,494)
707,193 828,687
652,931 707,193




General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)
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2011
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Classification Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 2010 Actual
PROPERTY TAXES
Real EState TaXeS.....cuvveecueeeeirieecreeesreeesreeeseveeeeaee e s 1,366,162 S 1,366,162 S 1,366,860 S 698 S 1,304,982
Real and Personal Property Taxes.......ccceevveeeiveeerveeenns 136,162 136,162 137,706 1,544 135,211
Revenue class total 1,502,324 1,502,324 1,504,566 2,242 1,440,193
MOTOR VEHICLE EXCISE
33,500 33,500 34,859 1,359 28,691
- - 12,059 12,059 11,361
70 70 59 (11) 82
33,570 33,570 46,977 13,407 40,134
OTHER EXCISE TAXES
Hotel / Motel ROOM EXCIS€......ccccvevvevrerreeeeeieienresieeeens 34,500 34,500 34,500 - 30,000
Aircraft Fuel EXCISE.....ccueeviuieeeiie et ctee e ceree s 20,500 20,500 23,253 2,753 22,898
Condominium Conversion EXCIS€........ccccceeerveeecveennnns 400 400 259 (141) 414
Meals Tax EXCiS€.....ceeveruererrernenn 16,375 16,375 20,244 3,869 9,972
Urban Redevelopment Ch. 121A........cccecvevuervneneennene 35,000 35,000 33,808 (1,192) 40,616
Revenue class total 106,775 106,775 112,064 5,289 103,900
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
State Owned Lands........cocceevierieniiniinienieeieeeeeeeee 262 262 262 - 244
Exemption - Elderly.......cccoouieiiinienieniceesieeeseeieens - -
Exemption - Other 1,248 1,248 1,888 640 1,230
Loty e - -
Veterans Services - Local Aid........ccceeveeeeveeeeceecnneeennns 3,360 3,360 2,832 (528) 1,714
Police Career INCeNLIVE.......cccuevviviirieeieeie e 959 959 832 (127) 1,896
Unrestricted General Government Aid..........ccccuevveune. 160,247 160,247 160,247 - 166,924
Local Share of Racing TaXes.......ccccvevvvveeeveeeenveesieveennns 426 426 427 1 261
School CONSErUCION ...cevvveeeeeciieee et 11,158 11,158 11,158 - 12,957
Charter School Reimbursement.........c.cccocveeeiereennennen. 13,722 13,722 13,237 (485) 10,988
Chapter 70 Education Aid.........ccccovvueriieniienienienieenenn 204,318 204,318 204,318 - 216,995
Revenue class total 395,700 395,700 395,201 (499) 413,209

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

(continued)
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General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Classification Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 2010 Actual
DEPARTMENTAL & OTHER

Penalties & Interest - Property TaXes.........ccoevevevenns S 2,300 S 2,300 S 2,534 S 234 S 2,428
Penalties & Interest - Motor Vehicle........ccccceveevnveenne. 2,900 2,900 2,807 (93) 2,962
Penalties & Interest - Tax Title......ccevveeeireeeceeenreeennen. 2,500 2,500 3,846 1,346 2,561
Penalties & Interest - Boat EXCiSe.........cccovevuverueeereennnen. 10 10 5 (5) 11
Penalties & Interest - Ch. 121A......ccccoevvevvveeriieenienne - - - - -
Sidewalk Paid in Advance....... - - - - -
Unapportioned Assessments - - 20 20 1
Other Departmental Fees & Charges.......c..cccoceveeunneee. 2,000 2,000 1,767 (233) 2,220
Registry DiViSiOn FEES.......ccovvuviiiiiiiiiieeiieiieeeeeriieee e 1,425 1,425 1,451 26 1,438
LN vt eeteeeteeete ettt ettt et eeae et eaeere e 550 550 579 29 552
Other Departmental........ccocevierienieniesieee e 4,001 4,001 5,080 1,079 5,960
City Clerk FEES....cuiiiiiiieiieteeeee ettt 450 450 554 104 494
Muni Medicaid Reimbursement.........cccceeeeeveeeeveeeneenn. 12,000 12,000 11,889 (111) 23,066
POlICE SEIVICES.....eeciieeiieeeeee ettt eete e e 675 675 693 18 674
Fire Services..... 3,275 3,275 3,698 423 3,474
Parking Facilities.........cecveeieeiieiiicreeseeseecee e 1,200 1,200 1,283 83 1,193
Street OCCUPANCY....uurieeeiriiieeeeeiereee e e e e e ee e e 1,900 1,900 2,251 351 1,912
Street and Sidewalk Permits.........cccccceeeeieeecveecieeenen. 700 700 780 80 698
AdMINIStrative FEES......cccvvureeeieeiireeeeeeiree e eenaees 275 275 1,212 937 271
Demolition of Abandoned Structures...........ccccecveueenee. 35 35 15 (20) 78
Property Mgmt - Building Rents........ccccceveeviineenennen. 1,500 1,500 1,450 (50) 1,994
St. Furniture Program Fixed Fees.........cccevvuveervvvereneenne 750 750 1,500 750 750
St. Furniture Program Adm Fees........cccccuevvvveeenveernnnen. 700 700 863 163 701
Fiber Optics Access Fees......... 300 300 299 (1) 353
Public Works - Other Charges - - - - 3
Tuition and Transportation - Schools..........ccccceevvueenes 1,300 1,300 1,587 287 1,508
LIbrary FEES....c.umieierierirenieeieeeeteesee et 275 275 287 12 295
Other Penalties & Interest.......ccccevvveeeieeccveeccieeeeiees - - - - -
Cobra / Self-pay.......cceeciecieieiee e 1,200 1,200 1,514 314 1,335
Affirmative Recovery Unit........cccoeevveiieeviienieenieenieenneens 700 700 532 (168) 805
Fringe-Retirement........occcvveeieiiiieeiiiieee e, 5,000 5,000 5,259 259 5,162
Pensions and ANNUILIES.........ccoevuvieeeieiiveeee e 3,100 3,100 3,234 134 3,090
Indirect Costs Reimbursement.........c.ccccceeveevereennnenen. 850 850 737 (113) 889
Third-Party Payments........ccceeveevveveneneneeeenenieneeneenes - - 1,200 1,200 -
Prior Year Reimbursements........ccccoeevveeeeveeveeeeeeinnnnn. 81,987 81,987 82,537 550 (1,380)
Police Detail Administration Fee........ccccccovuvveevueererenenne 3,200 3,200 2,914 (286) 3,169
ReNtal INCOME.....iiviiiiiiicieecee e 6 6 18 12 6
Administrative Fee 3rd Party Payments.........cccceeeneene. 30 30 43 13 35
Tellers Adjustment ACCOUNT........cccuerieriierierienieeieeae - - - - (2)
Revenue class total 137,094 137,094 144,438 7,344 68,706

(continued)

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)
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2011
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Classification Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 2010 Actual
FINES
Parking FINES......ccveiieeiiiiecie et S 66,000 S 66,000 S 61,147 S (4,853) S 66,327
COUrt FINES.cciiiiiiiiiei ittt e et 125 125 160 35 153
Moving Violation Fines - Court..........ccevuerviiniienieeniinnnns 3,350 3,350 3,007 (343) 3,388
Fire Safety FINeS......cccvevvieiiiiieeiieciee e 8 8 8 - 12
ISD = FIN@S..uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e et e e rreeeeeeeeeaees - - - - -
Code Enforcement 650 650 729 79 496
Revenue class total 70,133 70,133 65,051 (5,082) 70,376
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES
IMI@SSPOIT...ceiiieiieee e 16,616 16,616 17,085 469 18,595
Miscellaneous PILOT'S.....cccccoeeveeneeneeneesieseesvesinenans 19,087 19,087 18,417 (670) 16,347
Miscellaneous Ch 121B Section 16.........cccoevuveeeeevvunnnnns 1,100 1,100 5,879 4,779 1,150
Miscellaneous Ch 121A Section 6A...........cccceeeeveeenneen. 20,500 20,500 30,618 10,118 24,828
Revenue class total 57,303 57,303 71,999 14,696 60,920
INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest on INVESTMENtS.....ccvvvviieeeviieieeeeeee e 2,000 2,000 1,392 (608) 3,182
Revenue class total 2,000 2,000 1,392 (608) 3,182
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Building Structures and Permits.........ccccceeevvveecveennnnen. 16,750 16,750 23,461 6,711 14,765
Weights and Measures.........ccceeeueeveeveecieevieenreeiieenieenns 330 330 254 (76) 211
Street and Curb Permits........cccceeeeveeevveeeiiveenvee e 2,200 2,200 2,207 7 2,406
Pre-rental INSpections.........ccccuevierieeiieeiiesiieeie e 120 120 105 (15) 118
Other Departmental Licenses & Permits..........ccceeune.. 785 785 733 (52) 786
Health INSPections.........cccvevveiieiiieeieeceeeie e 1,650 1,650 1,591 (59) 1,493
Alcoholic Beverages and LiCENSES.......c.ccevveerueereenueanne. 3,350 3,350 3,388 38 3,352
Entertainment LiCENSES.....cuvvveeeeeieeiiieeeeeececiineveeeees 1,750 1,750 1,996 246 1,891
Police Firearm Permits.......ccccovvveercveeinveeniieesniveesnneennns 25 25 77 52 29
Other Business Licenses and Permits..........cccccevveenee.. 130 130 153 23 138
Cable TelevisSioN.......ccueccieeecieeeeee et 5,400 5,400 5,922 522 5,369
Revenue class total 32,490 32,490 39,887 7,397 30,558
TRANSFERS AND OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS
Sale Of Property....cccceccveeecieeeciee et 4,030 4,030 4,030 - 4,030
Surplus Property FUNd........cccoeveeiieiecieciecie e 6,000 6,000 - (6,000) 5,979
Appropriated Cemetery TruStee......coceveeeeveveneerennens 2,109 2,109 2,109 - 2,079
Appropriated Parking Meter Receipts.......ccccoeevuereenee. 15,000 15,000 15,000 - 15,000
Appropriated Funds Balance..........ccocveevciveriveeriieennnnns 45,000 45,000 27,000 (18,000) 45,000
Revenue class total 72,139 72,139 48,139 (24,000) 72,088
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 5 2,409,528 $ 2,409,528 S 2,429,714 S 20,186 $ 2,303,266

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Classification Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 2010 Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Costs of Issuance - RANS S 750 S 750 S 248 S 502 S 648
Annual Audit Costs 750 808 808 - 563
Mayor's OffiCe.....ccuevuirieiiinieeeeeeee e 2,126 2,126 2,055 71 2,019
City Council 4,676 4,676 4,509 167 4,458
Office of New Bostonians.. 334 334 319 15 309
Consumer Affairs and Licensing ..........ccceceerverveennene 436 436 423 13 424
Election Department - Election Division . 2,641 2,756 2,756 - 3,296
Election Department - Listing Board........c..ccccoveevenne 501 480 480 - 512
Auditing Department. 2,270 2,270 2,153 117 2,254
Assessing Department 6,393 6,393 6,324 69 6,492
Treasury Department - Collecting Division.............. 2,529 2,558 2,497 61 2,438
Treasury Department - Treasury Division................ 1,777 1,748 1,711 37 1,789
Office of Budget Management.........cccccvceeeeerennene 2,694 2,813 2,813 - 3,007
Human Resources 2,654 2,654 2,553 101 2,534
Purchasing Division.. 1,720 1,720 1,621 99 1,306
Office of Administration & Finance 836 716 666 50 744
Graphic Arts - - - - 1,517
Office of Labor Relations... 1,411 1,411 1,324 87 1,371
Department of Innovation & Technology................ 18,615 18,615 18,576 39 19,338
Intergovernmental Relations 1,137 1,137 1,071 66 1,006
Law Department 5,477 5,477 5,448 29 5,331
Small & Local Business 600 621 618 3 594
Office of Boston Residents Job Policy 461 461 440 21 443
Risk Retention Reserved........c.cccccvveeiieevieeeiineeeennenn, 1,000 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Housing Trust Fund 330 330 295 35 311
City Clerk 1,006 1,006 969 37 975
Registry Division 996 996 965 31 933
Finance Commission... 178 178 174 4 220
Tregor Reserve Fund - 192 192 - 69
Office of Civil Rights 321 321 318 3 315
Emergency Shelter Commission - - - - 565
Public Information..........cccceeveevieneeienesesieseee 1,202 1,202 1,093 109 1,127
Neighborhood Services 1,280 1,280 1,182 98 1,258
Arts & Cultural Develop 1,631 1,631 1,570 61 1,608
Women's Commission 160 160 158 2 158
Reserve for Collective Bargaining 8,550 8,550 8,550 - -

Function total 77,442 77,806 75,879 1,927 70,932

HUMAN SERVICES

Boston Centers for Youth & Families...........ccccueeuee. 21,674 21,674 21,383 291 21,811
Elderly Commission 2,820 2,820 2,818 2 2,847
Veterans Services Department 4,810 5,176 5,176 - 4,808

Function total  $ 29,304 $ 29,670 $ 29,377 $ 293 3 29,466

(continued)

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Classification Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 2010 Actual
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police Department.........cocueeeeeeeenenenenesenenennens $ 270,875 S 270,875 $ 275,779 S (4,904) S 282,413
Fire Department......coceeeceeeieeenieenieeeeeeseee e 175,970 176,432 178,021 (1,589) 173,632
Mayor's Office - Emergency Preparedness.............. 311 311 308 3 284
Transportation - Traffic DiviSion.........ccccecevereeennns 21,716 22,096 21,956 140 21,014
Transportation - Parking Clerk.... 719 8,421 7,914 507 649
Licensing Board.... 8,801 719 599 120 9,315
Inspectional Services Department 15,511 15,751 15,545 206 15,614
YOULh FUNG...iiiiiiiieicieeeee s 4,638 4,638 4,637 1 4,637
Function total 498,541 499,243 504,759 (5,516) 507,558
PUBLIC WORKS
Public Works Department..........ccoecvevveenieneeneenenens 81,246 81,246 81,050 196 1,271
Chief of PWD - Transportation 1,385 1,385 1,271 114 81,495
Central Maintenance Facility... 1,992 2,457 2,457 - 2,404
Snow Removal 15,944 15,944 21,461 (5,517) 11,968
Function total 100,567 101,032 106,239 (5,207) 97,138
PROPERTY AND DEVELOPMENT
Property Management...... 19,433 21,812 21,812 - 21,095
Neighborhood Development... 3,243 3,393 3,333 60 3,411
Leading the Way.......cccoevvveierienieeee e 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 4,979
Function total 27,676 30,205 30,145 60 29,485
PARKS AND RECREATION
Parks and Recreation Department..........c.ccccueevennen 13,087 13,408 13,408 - 13,545
Environment Department.... 1,321 1,321 1,252 69 1,304
Cemetery Division... 2,109 2,109 2,087 22 2,067
16,517 16,838 16,747 91 16,916
LIBRARY
Library Department........ccccveceeeeeeeneenieeiesie s 30,369 30,378 30,378 - 29,862
Function total 30,369 30,378 30,378 - 29,862
SCHOOLS
Boston Public Schools 821,383 821,382 821,375 7 817,830
Function total 821,383 821,382 821,375 7 817,830
PUBLIC HEALTH
Public Health CommissSion.........cocuveevveeevveeeeveeenenn. 69,793 69,808 69,808 - 70,000
Function total $ 69,793 $ 69,808 $ 69,808 S - $ 70,000

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures Compared to Budget (Budgetary Basis)

June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Classification Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 2010 Actual
JUDGMENTS AND CLAIMS
Execution of COUMS........ovuviiiviieiieciecee e S 3,500 S 3,500 S 21,022 (17,522) S 15,970
Function total 3,500 3,500 21,022 (17,522) 15,970
OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Medicare Payments 7,250 7,047 5,697 1,350 6,595
Human Resources - Health Insurance 569 569 542 27 532
Health Benefits & INSUraNCe........cceevvveevveeeenvreennen. 242,415 239,315 235,780 3,535 216,077
Unemployment Compensation..........cccceeeveeerennens 350 350 160 190 16
Workers' Compensation Fund 2,200 2,200 1,445 755 2,022
Function total 252,784 249,481 243,624 5,857 225,242
PENSION COSTS
State-Boston Retirement System 192,007 192,007 191,856 151 108,459
Pensions and Annuities - City 4,100 4,100 4,100 - 4,100
Pensions and Annuities - County........cccceeveereenieens 100 100 42 58 49
Function total 196,207 196,207 195,998 209 112,608
DEBT REQUIREMENTS
Redemption of City Loans..........cccceevenee. 86,549 86,550 86,547 3 84,396
City Debt and Interest Payments. 38,796 38,796 38,796 - 39,359
Temporary NOeS.......ccevviiiiiieniieiiceeccec s 6,000 4,517 - 4,517 -
MWPAT PrinCipal......cceceeeeeeineneneneneeesesienennens 436 436 436 - 451
MWPAT Interest 126 126 126 - 137
Section 108 - Dudley Square 505 505 505 - 505
Function total 132,412 130,930 126,410 4,520 124,848
STATE & DISTRICT ASSESSMENTS
Heath Insurance/Retirement.........c..coveveeeeereeneens 186 186 186 - 201
Parking Surcharge 3,360 3,360 3,187 173 3,360
Mosquito Control Projects 225 225 225 - 227
Special Education Chapter 766 725 725 635 90 725
Metropolitan Air Pollution Center.. 187 187 187 - 181
Metropolitan Area Planning 187 187 187 - 180
M.B.T.A. Assessments 74,532 74,532 74,532 - 74,729
M.D.C. Assessments 11 11 11 - 12
School Choice 242 257 257 - 237
Charter School Sending Tuition 69,035 69,035 68,293 742 62,020
Suffolk County Jail 4,343 4,343 4,343 - 4,451
Function total 153,033 153,048 152,043 1,005 146,323
Total Expenditures S 2,409,528 $ 2,409,528 S 2,423,804 (14,276) $ 2,294,178

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Special Revenue Fund
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The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than
debt service, trust funds or capital projects that are legally restricted or committed for specific
purposes.

This fund accounts for a number of federal and state grants administered by the City’s individual
departments. The Special Revenue Fund also includes funds received through the American
Reinvestment and Recovery Act (ARRA).
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Special Revenue Fund

Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
ASSETS:
Cash and iINVESTMENTS.....ceovveiereiiiecreesee e S 128,083 S 132,917
Receivables, net
Intergovernmental.......cccccveevcieeeicie e, 117,942 119,160
Departmental and other.........cccoceeeeecvieeeecnnneen. 73,752 65,831
Total receivables........ccccoeecvieeicicieee e, 191,694 184,991
Due from other funds........cccoecvvercieiiiiee e 6,709 3,787
Total ASSEtS...cceveeeeeennnnnneniiiiiiessserrereeeeneenns S 326,486 S 321,695
LIABILITIES:
Warrants and accounts payable.........cccccooeeueeennnne. S 20,921 S 32,203
Accrued liabilities:
Payroll and related costs......cccocevvvieeiiveeencieennne 1,871 1,941
Deposits and other.........ccoveveevcieeeiccceeee e, 45,129 34,716
Deferred revenuUEe........coooccvvveieeiieeeeee e 81,751 79,703
Due to other fuNdsS......cccuvveeeeeeiieeeiiieiieeeeeeeeee, 4,546 -
Total liabilities....cccccceevrirenniiiiiiieenniccnnnnnnes 154,218 148,563
FUND BALANCE:
T {01 (=T IS SRR 91,293 -
ASSIZNEd...iiiiiiieeiiee ettt 80,975 -
Reserved for:
ENCUMbBranCes......uveeeeeieiieeciirrireeeeeeee e - 49,418
Unreserved:
Undesignated.......ccccooeevveeeiiccieee e - 123,714
Total fund balance........ccccoevveecirrencireennnnnne. 172,268 173,132
Total liabilities and fund balance................ S 326,486 S 321,695

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Special Revenue Fund

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
REVENUES:
FIIES vttt ettt ettt e e et et et et et e ss et e b et e s ese s e s s et e te s et ete s enrententerenne S 21 S 22
INVESTMENT INCOME.....iiiiiiieiiiee ettt et e s e e s sbrae e e 33 25
LiCeNSES @Nd PEIMILS...uviiiiiiiiiiie ittt st e e st e s sare e sareeenaeaeens 74 -
Departmental and other...........uoeeiiiee e 34,659 14,381
INTErOVEINMENTAL...ccc i e e eaeae s 283,658 327,213
Total revenues 318,445 341,641
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General GOVEIMMENT........evii it e e e e e e ar e e e e e 7,492 3,165
HUM@N SEIVICES. ..uiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeerre e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaeeeeaeaes 6,775 8,690
PUDBIIC SAfELY...uiiie e ere e e 9,607 12,150
U] o T To VYo o R 4,317 8,482
Property & development.....ccoueeiiieieciec e 76,469 87,147
Parks and recreation.........eeeecciieeeiecciee e 3,132 716
] o =Y V2SR 3,024 3,578
Yol g ToTo ] K3 PURURRRRIRPPRORt 161,883 147,009
Public health programs........ccccueeiiie e 288 1,214
6o 10T o) 4V PR - 69,040
Total current eXpPenditures.....occvieeceeeecieeecie e 272,987 341,191
(07T o1 =1 o 1 1 =12 2,383 5,485
[DI<Y o Y <] VA (ol T UPPUPRTRRRRURRRSURR 1,626 3,414
Total eXpenditures.........ccceeeeiiiiiieenniiiiiiieeeniiiniinneineneeee. 276,996 350,090
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures.......... 41,449 (8,449)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Long-term debt and capital leases issued..........ccccvvveeeeeiireeeeeeecciieee e, 1,366 11,360
Payments to refunded bonds escrow agent........cccocceeveeereeniieeneeccieeseeenne, (1,118) (5,384)
Premiums on long-term debt issued........ccccccveveiieiiiiiiccie e 11,401 9,805
TrANSTEIS OUL....eiieiee ettt e et e e e e e abre e e e e eabreeeeen (53,962) (15,000)
Total other financing sources (USes)........cccevrriiirinieeeeeneennnnnnnnenans (42,313) 781
Net change in fund balances..........cceeeeeueerceeeecccccieieneeneeeeeeeeennnne. (864) (7,668)
Fund balance - beginning........cccccoiviiiiiiiiiiiiniicre e e 173,132 180,800
FUund balance - @Nding........ceeeeeieeeeiieiiiieicieiiresrnneeeerereeeereessssessssssssnsssssssenes S 172,268 S 173,132

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Capital Projects Fund

Boston skyline from Boston Harbor

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. Such resources are derived principally
from proceeds of general obligation bonds and from federal and state grants.
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Capital Projects Fund

Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
ASSETS:
Cash and iINVESTMENTS.....ccvieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et s S 88,394 S 62,006
Cash and investments held by trustees........c.ccccevvveeeeeccrneeenn. 1,838 2,341
Intergovernmental receivables.........cccccoecvieeeeecciiieee e, 10,619 11,674
Due from other funds.......cccceecieiiiiieicee e 1,457 1,846
TOtal @SSES..iieeeeeeerrrrrerensnnssssssssssesessrereeeeeereeeesssssnnes S 102,308 S 77,867
LIABILITIES:
Warrants and accounts payable..........cccoeeeveeeeeeeeeceereenee, S 20,907 S 18,948
Accrued Liabilities:
Deposits and Other.......cccocvvivciee e, 2,827 2,427
Deferred rEVENUE..........coouvveeetieeeeeeeeeee e 10,176 11,174
Total liabilities.....ccceiiieirieiiieciiiiricrrcc e eeeeeens 33,910 32,549
FUND BALANCE:
RESEIICLEA ..eeviiiiiieeeite et 68,398 -
Reserved for:
ENCUMDBIaNCES....ccoiiiiiieeeeee et - 86,234
Future appropriations......ccceeveveeeciiciiiireeceeeeeeee e - 24,108
Unreserved:
Undesignated deficit.......ccceevvieinnveriniiiiereeeeeeeeen, - (65,024)
Total fund balance..........ccoeveiimirrniriniireireeiereccnennns 68,398 45,318

Total liabilities and fund balance...........cccccceveenreneene. S 102,308 S 77,867
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Capital Projects Fund

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
REVENUES:

INtErgovernMENtal.........ccoevevvieeiiieeriee et S 28,722 S 10,632

Total REVENUES.....cccivuiieiieirieieieiireieeeereeereesensernennes 28,722 10,632
EXPENDITURES:

Capital OULIAYS....cccecieeeee e 135,434 120,449
Total expenditures.......cccccceeeeiiiieenniiiiiiennnnieennennesnennn 135,434 120,449
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures................. (106,712) (109,817)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Long-term debt and capital leases issued...........ccccevveeeeennnns 154,743 133,132

Refunding bonds issued..........cccoueeeeveciieeeeeciiieee e, 52,720 68,345

Payments to refunded bonds escrow agent............cc........... (14,372) (68,256)

Premiums/discounts on long-term debt issued.................... - (2,271)

Operating transfers OUt........ccocvvvvvieeivcee e (63,299) (5,979)
Total other financing sources (USeS)........cceceeeeerrrevnnnnnns 129,792 125,071
Net change in fund balances.........c.ccccceeeiririeenncinnnnne. 23,080 15,254

Fund balance - beginning.......ccccciveiiiieiiiieciiiieciinieccnienennenn. 45,318 30,064
Fund balance - ending........ccccovceeeeereeeeeeerireeresesssssnennneneeeeen S 68,398 S 45,318

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Other Governmental Funds
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Prudential Center
Other Governmental Funds are those funds that are not defined as major funds.

Permanent Fund, established by GASB Statement No. 34, is used to report resources that are legally restricted
to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs, that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry. The permanent fund is
composed of the following pools:

Pool#1 is used for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries and the erection and
maintenance of statues and monuments for the use and enjoyment of City residents.

Pool#2 is used for scholarship awards, the purchase of educational equipment, and the aid of needy students.

Pool#7 is a co-mingled investment fund of various non-testamentary trust funds of the City of Boston. The
non-expendable portion of the fund is composed of donations/contributions from either individuals or
organizations. Donations/contributions are to be expended in conformity with their respective trust
instruments.

Debt Service Fund is used to account for resources accumulating for principal and interest for the 2009
Qualified Construction School Bond.
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Other Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

Total Other
Permanent Funds Debt Service Governmental Funds
Pool 1 Pool 2 Pool 7 Fund 2011 2010
ASSETS:
Cash and iNVeStMENTS.......c.ccveveeeeeerreieseereere e S 219 S - S - 727 S 946 S 229
Cash and investments held by trustees..........cceeueeen. 39,138 576 699 - 40,413 37,619
Receivables, Net......ccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiesecceeee e 124 1 - - 125 153
Total @SSetS...ccurrrreeerenenrerieererreeeennnnneeneens . $ 39,481 S 577 S 699 S 727 S 41,484 $ 38,001
LIABILITIES:
Warrants and accounts payable..........cccoeeeevieieecnnns S 836 S 24 8 S - 868 S 417
Due to other funds - - - - - S -
Total liabilities......ccccevreiiiiiiiiiiiisssssnennnnennennennnnnnns 836 24 8 - 868 417
FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable.... . 4,138 145 691 - 4,974 -
[ A [0 1Yo PO ORSRRRRRRRY 34,507 408 - 727 35,642 -
Reserved for encumbrances..........cccocceevvveevieeeceeenen. - - - - - 486
Unreserved, reported in permanent funds................... - - - - - 37,098
Total fund balance.........eeeeereeeiiiiiiiiniiiiinn. 38,645 553 691 727 40,616 37,584
Total liabilities and fund balance...........cccceeeuernenne $ 39,481 S 577 $ 699 S 727 S 41,484 $ 38,001

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Other Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:
INvestment iNCOME.......coceiiiiieiiieee e
Departmental and other

Total revenuUEes......uueieeeiiiiiiiiiiiininsene
EXPENDITURES:
General goVernmMeNt........ccovvveeeeeereeresese e

Total expenditures..........ccovvevnnenneenennennenneenneneennen

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures........cccoeceereiiiiinenniiiinnes

OTHER FINANCING USES:
TranSfers iNuouiieiie e
Transfers OUL.....cccueeceueeecreeeereecere et

Total other financing uses..........cccceveiiineeriniiisnnenns

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses..................

Fund balance - beginning.........ccccceeeereeneeeneniiinnininniinnnen

Fund balance - ending..........cccoecevereiriiisneeniniinnnnnnsenscnnens

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

Total Other Governmental

Permanent Funds Debt Service Funds
Pool 1 Pool 2 Pool 7 Fund 2011 2010
S 7,104 86 - S - S 7,190 S 5,636
2,224 25 597 - 2,846 2,226
S 9,328 111 597 S - $ 10,036 S 7,862
S 4,765 52 805 S - S 5,622 S 4,469
4,765 52 805 - 5,622 4,469
4,563 59 (208) - 4,414 3,393
- - - 727 727
(2,109) - - - (2,109) (2,079)
(2,109) - - 727 (1,382) (2,079)
2,454 59 (208) 727 3,032 1,314
36,191 494 899 - 37,584 36,270
S 38,645 553 691 S 727 S 40,616 S 37,584
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Internal Service Fund

Boston Public Library — Copley Square

Internal Service Fund accounts for the City’s self-insurance for health benefits provided by Blue
Cross Blue Shield of Massachusetts for City employees, their dependents and retirees. The Internal
Service Fund is included in the governmental activities column in the government-wide statements.
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Internal Service Fund

Comparative Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
ASSETS:
Cash and INVESTMENTS...ceeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeneeas S 54,042 S 56,708
[ TNV o] (=T 1= USRS 164 134
Due from Other fUNAS.......oiiiecieiiiiccee e 430 421
(014 1= g TY =) TR 1,885 1,042
TOtaAl @SSEES...ciieeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeessssssssssssssssssssessessssssssnseeeens S 56,521 S 58,305
LIABILITIES:
ACCIUEA [IabilEIES. e veeeeeeeee ettt ettt eeee e e e s eee e S 6,550 S 6,532
Total liabilities.....cccceeireeiirieniiiiicirriccreerc e e e rennes 6,550 6,532
NET ASSETS:
L0 =Ty 4 g Lot (=Y PN 49,971 51,773
TOtal NEt ASSEES...uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeesssesssssessssssssssssssnnnnns S 49,971 S 51,773

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Internal Service Fund

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
REVENUES:

EMployer CONtrDULIONS. .....cveiviieeeeeceectece et S 61,845 S 64,655

Employee CoNtribULIONS. ....cocueiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 21,404 21,849
TOtAl FEVENUES....cceieiriiriirireeeeeeeeeeeeeeesessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssenes S 83,249 S 86,504

EXPENSES:

HEAIEN DENETIES. e ettt e e e e e eeeee e e e e e eeaee s S 85,051 S 86,121
Total EXPENSES.....cieeeirreeniireeirreeneereeneereansesennsserennsessensesnens 85,051 86,121
Changes in Nt assStS......cceeiieieeenneiereeennneereeeeennssseeeeeennnseseeees (1,802) 383

Net assets - beginnNing......c.cccueuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiicniiic e rreeeaes 51,773 51,390
Net assets - eNAING.....ccieeeiiiiieiiiieiiiiiccrreer e rrenseeernsseernasessensnnse 49,971 51,773

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Internal Service Fund

Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from employees and employer........c.ccoooeeveeeeeereereceereenns S 83,210 S 86,582
Cash Paid tO VENUOIS.......ueieereecereeceeeeete ettt eeree e ete e eereeeereeeeans (85,876) (85,635)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities...........ccccevvvennes (2,666) 947
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year........ccceeeeiriiireecciiiinennnccinneees 56,708 55,761
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year.........ccceeevverrvemmeeerieeeereeerieeeessssnnens S 54,042 S 56,708
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH (USED IN)
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating (10SS) INCOME......c.eccuiireereeeeeeceteee ettt eaeens S (1,802) S 383
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
AccoUNts receiVable.........oiivcciiiiie e (30) 36
(0] 1 g [T =TT =] ST (843) 461
Due from component UNItS.......ccceervrereeeieeiieeeeiieessiee e esvee s (9) 42
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........cccccecvveevieeccceeecnnenn. 18 25
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities............... S (2,666) S 947

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Fiduciary Funds
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

State-Boston Retirement System is a defined benefit contributory retirement plan covering employees of
the City of Boston, Suffolk County, Boston Public Health Commission, Boston Housing Authority, Boston
Redevelopment Authority, and the Boston Water and Sewer Commission. The System is subject to benefit
provisions and financing requirements set forth primarily in Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws.

OPEB TRUST FUND

OPEB Trust Fund is a co-mingled investment fund of various non-testamentary trust funds of the City of
Boston. The pool enables the City to maximize their return on investments by providing for a City
administered fund where monies can be co-mingled for investment purposes in order to realize the
economics of large-scale investing and professional fund management.

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Private purpose trust funds are used to report any trust arrangement not otherwise classified as pension
trusts, or an investment trust fund, “under which principal and income benefit individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.”

Pool#1 is a co-mingled investment fund of various trust funds of the City. A number of the Pool#1 trust
funds are for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries for the use and
enjoyment of City Residents. The other portion of Pool#1 trust funds lack a general government purpose
and are therefore classified here as private purpose trust funds.

Pool#2 is used for scholarship awards, the purchase of educational equipment, and the aid of needy
students.

Pool#5 is formed by the will of George R. White dated May 21, 1920. The will requires that the fund’s
income be used for the creation of public utility and beauty for the use and enjoyment of the inhabitants of
the City.

Pool#7 is a co-mingled investment fund of various non-testamentary trust funds of the City of Boston. The
nonexpendable portion of the fund is composed of donations/contributions from either individuals or
organizations. Donations/contributions are to be expended in conformity with their respective trust
instruments.

AGENCY FUND

Law Enforcement Trust Fund accounts for proceeds from property seized from illegal drug-related activities.
Funds can be used to defray the costs of protracted investigations, to provide technical equipment or
expertise, and to provide matching funds for federal grants.
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State-Boston Retirement System

Comparative Statement of Plan Net Assets
December 31,2010 and 2009
(Amounts in thousands)

Total State-Boston Retirement

System
2010 2009
ASSETS:
Cash aNd INVESTMENTS....eiveiieeeeee ettt ettt et e et e s ereesaesereesaesereeseveeans S 4,512,298 S 3,872,774
Receivables:
Interest and diVideNndsS........cooecvieiiiiiiieee e 20,624 21,347
SECUIEIES SOI..uuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiii e e e e e e e e 90,340 8,253
(01 V=T SRR 140,642 126,633
Total receivables........ooo i 251,606 156,233
Securities lending short-term collateral investment pool...........ccccveeeeennnee 214,410 299,975
B o) £ L= T =] £ 4,978,314 4,328,982
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities.........cccccceenneeeee. 26,754 20,355
SECUrities PUrCASEd......cciii i e 114,507 8,866
Collateral held on securities [eNdiNG.......ccveveeveeiiiiie e 216,333 299,975
Total liabilities.....ccccevrrrririeeiiiirierrrrrerrcer e eeane e 357,594 329,196
NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.........ccccceeeeveanennee S 4,620,720 S 3,999,786

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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OPEB Trust Fund
Comparative Statement of Plan Net Assets
June 30,2011 and 2010

(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash and iINVESTMENTES.......uuiuiiiiiiiieieiicceeee e

Receivables:

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabiliti

Total [labilities....ccccvuiiiiiiiiiiiiirrcc e e rea e eneeeens

NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Private Purpose Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

Pool 1 Pool 2
ASSETS:
Cash AN INVESTMENTS....eiieeeeeeee ettt ettt ee e st e ete e s et esreesereeseresaeesaneens S 24,907 470
Receivables:
(@ 1= SRR 346 1
Total reCEIVADIES. ... 346 1
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation ........cccccvvveeeecciveeeeecciveneen, - -
o) £ 1 T =Y £ NS 25,253 471
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE...... e e 249 18
Total liabilities....ccccciveiiiiiiiiiiiirrec e seeeaes 249 18
NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.........cccceeevvencereanennne S 25,004 453

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Total Private Purpose Trust
Funds
Pool 5 Pool 7 2011 2010

S 25,559 S 38,448 S 89,384 S 82,639

33 978 1,358 1,891
33 978 1,358 1,891

30 - 30 30
25,622 39,426 90,772 84,560
120 3,159 3,546 1,135
120 3,159 3,546 1,135

$ 25,502 $ 36,267 S 87,226 S 83,425

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Agency Fund

Comparative Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

Law Enforcement Trust Fund

2011 2010
ASSETS:
Cash aNd INVESTMENTS. ...eeiveierie ettt ettt e sere e et e srveeereesenesereesane S 5,801 S 5,834
) 7 LI = PP 5,801 5,834
LIABILITIES:
Refunds payable and other.......ccooviiieiiiii e 5,801 5,834
Total lIabilities. .cuuuireeeiireniireniireeiereeniereeesireeeseerenseerenserenssenennnen S 5,801 S 5,834

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



State-Boston Retirement System

Comparative Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
December 31,2010 and 2009
(Amounts in thousands)

Combining, Individual Fund Statements and Schedules ¢ 101

2010 2009
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
EMPIOYEIS. ..ttt ettt et e te et e et e b e tesbeeteereesteeneeteens S 463,656 S 257,348
300 0] (o) V7T TSP 126,450 127,528
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments...........c.cccecveenneen. 440,862 550,551
Interest and diVIENAS........uuveviiiiiiieiiciceeeeeeee e e e eesaans 94,165 85,921
Management and related fEes.........cocvevieicieiie e (15,648) (10,972)
Securities [ending INCOME.......cociiiiiiiiie e e 1,814 3,456
BOrrower rebates and fEES.......ccuveiiii et (685) (1,278)
INEEIrEOVEINMENTAL...ciiiiie i eciee e e e e et e et e e rateeeaeee e 12,850 14,914
Total AdditioNns.....ccceveeeurieiirireeniieerieeennieeneeeeenneeeeeeennsseseeeesnnnssenens 1,123,464 1,027,468
DEDUCTIONS:
2= g L] {5 444,535 415,756
Reimbursements to other SyStEMS........oovciviiciie e 9,533 9,203
Refunds of cONtribULIONS.......coo v 42,627 14,098
Fi¥e [0 oY1 o YISy 4 =1 o o PRI 5,835 5,514
Total dedUCHIONS. ... cccuiieiiieiiiicrriircrecreee e eeeerneerenesrneeseessnnees 502,530 444,571
Changes in Net assets.......ccceeeireeirrrencrrenneiieenerreeseerennerennsserenssessanns 620,934 582,897
Net assets - beginning of year........ccccvveeciiieiiiiireireecireeee e reeneerenseeereaseenes 3,999,786 3,416,889
Net asSets - €N OF YEAI......ciccvveeerrierrrneeriirrseeeereessenreereesssseessessssssesssssssnseees S 4,620,720 S 3,999,786

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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OPEB Trust Fund

Comparative Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
[0 ] o] (o) V7= 5SS
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments..........cccccuue...e.
Interest and diVIdeNdS..........uvviiiieiee e
Management and related fEes........ovvviviiiciinie e

Total AdditioNs.....cceuieeiiieiiiiiiiiircreiirr e e ree e reatseseesenssennens

DEDUCTIONS:
BN it it e e e e e e e e e s e e rraaeaeees

Total dedUCHIONS. ... cceuiieiieiiieiriirr et reereneerneerenesenssseensanens
Changes in Net @SSets......ccuuiieiiieeiirreeeennnnnnseeeeeeeseseesseeseeeeereennnnnnnns

Net assets - beginning of Year........cccccvieeeciiieeiiiieretreerreeeerrreerreeneerensesssneneenes

Net assets - eNd Of Year.......cccvueciiiiiiieeeiiiiiiiierccee e eee s s ernnseeesseesasssssseennnes

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

2011 2010
232,667 19,992
5,696 (194)
2,689 192
(300) (30)
240,752 19,960
149,674 -
149,674 -
91,078 19,960
19,960 -
111,038 19,960
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Private Purpose Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets
June 30,2011 and 2010
(Amounts in thousands)

ADDITIONS:
INVESEMENT INCOMEB... i
Departmental and other revenue...........ccccoeevvveerecciieeeeeenns

Total additions.......cceeieiieeiiiniiiniiieiiiierecrecreeieeeereenee

DEDUCTIONS:
Accounts Payable.........coociee i

Total operating eXpPenses.........ceeeeeeeeeecrsnnnnnneeeeeeeeeeeeenns

Net changes in net assets.........ccccceeiiiiiienniiinninennnnens
Other Financing Uses (Sources)
TraNSTEIS INuceuiieeieie e st st s enees

TranSfers OUL....ccei i ettt s e ee s

Net assets - beginning of year.........ccccceeeeiirirreciiiiieennicinneennn.

Net assets - end Of Year.......cceueriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniieeeennesee.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

Pool 1 Pool 2
S 3,577 60
1,640 18
5,217 78
1,984 37
1,984 37
3,233 41
260 -
21,511 412
S 25,004 453
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Total Total
Pool 5 Pool 7 2011 2010
S 4,058 129 7,824 S 4,636
1,230 17,196 20,084 19,071
5,288 17,325 27,908 23,707
1,596 20,490 24,107 19,482
1,596 20,490 24,107 19,482
3,692 (3,165) 3,801 4,225
- - 260 -
- (260) (260) -
21,810 39,692 83,425 79,200
S 25,502 36,267 87,226 S 83,425

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Agency Fund

Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets
June 30, 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

Law Enforcement Trust Fund

Balance July 1, Balance June
2010 Additions Deletions 30, 2011
ASSETS:
Cash and investments................. S 5,834 1,081 1,114 S 5,801
LIABILITIES:
Refunds payable and other......... S 5,834 1,081 1,114 S 5,801

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited)

This part of the City of Boston’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 108

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time (See accompanying Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, Statement of Net Assets, and Statement of Activities):

General Government Expenditures by Function (GAAP Basis) — Last Ten Fiscal Years
General Government Revenues by Source (GAAP Basis) — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net Assets by Component — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Changes in Net Assets — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Capacity 122

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s most significant revenue
source, the property tax:

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of All Taxable Property — Last Ten Fiscal Years
Property Tax Rates — Direct and Overlapping Governments — Last Ten Fiscal Years
Largest Principal Taxpayers — Current Year and Five Years Ago
Property Tax Levies and Collections — Last Ten Fiscal Years
Debt Capacity 126
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government’s current

levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future (See
accompanying note 10 of the basic financial statements):

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net
Bonded Debt Per Capita — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Legal Debt Margin Information — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Demographic and Economic Information 132

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the government’s financial activities take place:

Demographic and Economic Statistics — Last Ten Fiscal Years
Principal Employers — Fiscal Year 2011 and Five Years Before

Operating Information 134
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information

in the government’s financial report relates to the services the government provides and the activities it
performs:

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Department — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Operating Indicators by Function — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Capital Asset Statistics by Department — Last Ten Fiscal Years

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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General Government Expenditures by Function

(GAAP Basis)*
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)

Fiscal Year
FUNCTION 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
General Government S 65,459 S 70,514 S 69,524 S 66,927 S 65,223
% of Total 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.1 3.2
% Change (7.2) 1.4 3.9 2.6 13.9
Public Safety S 516,725 S 511,365 S 521,898 S 509,293 S 477,403
% of Total 21.0 21.2 23.2 233 23.1
% Change 1.0 (2.0) 2.5 6.7 6.9
Public Works S 105,318 S 96,641 S 112,168 S 108,831 S 97,897
% of Total 4.3 4.0 5.0 5.0 4.7
% Change 9.0 (13.8) 3.1 11.2 (3.5)
Library S 30,532 S 29,853 S 31,268 S 27,089 S 31,225
% of Total 1.2 1.2 1.4 1.2 1.5
% Change 2.3 (4.5) 15.4 (13.2) 10.1
Schools S 812,949 S 815,694 S 818,338 S 782,500 S 743,848
% of Total 33.0 33.8 36.4 35.8 36.0
% Change (0.3) (0.3) 4.6 5.2 3.4
Retirement Costs S 195,976 S 235,282 S 82,332 S 95,193 S 92,873
% of Total 8.0 9.7 3.7 4.4 4.5
% Change (16.7) 185.8 (13.5) 2.5 (4.1)
Employee Benefits S 294,200 S 224,156 S 191,597 S 190,167 S 175,862
% of Total 12.0 9.3 8.5 8.7 8.5
% Change 31.2 17.0 0.8 8.1 11.4
State & District Assessments S 152,042 S 146,323 S 142,055 S 132,792 S 124,243
% of Total 6.2 6.1 6.3 6.1 6.0
% Change 3.9 3.0 7.0 6.9 4.6
County $ - S - S -8 -8 -
% of Total 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Change 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Property & Development S 35,138 S 30,247 S 28,959 S 29,876 S 35,506
% of Total 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7
% Change 16.2 4.4 (3.1) (15.9) 6.6
Other S 251,514 S 256,727 S 247,084 S 241,360 S 224,703
% of Total 10.2 10.6 11.0 11.1 10.9
% Change (2.0) 3.9 2.4 7.4 (1.0)
Total Expenditures S 2,459,853 S 2,416,802 S 2,245,223 S 2,184,028 S 2,068,783
% of Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
% Change 1.8 7.6 2.8 5.6 4.1

*General fund only

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Fiscal Year

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 FUNCTION

57,262 S 57471 § 30,061 $ 53,343 § 77,019  General Government
2.9 3.0 1.7 31 4.4 % of Total
(0.4) 91.2 (43.6) (30.7) 134 % Change

446784 S 457541 S 390,854 S 394,692 $ 405844  Public Safety
225 24.1 22.2 2.7 234 %ofTotal
(2.4) 17.1 (1.0) (2.7) 87  %Change

101,441 S 106,749 S 87,045 S 86,819 S 74,651  Public Works
5.1 5.6 49 5.0 43 % of Total
(5.0) 26 03 16.3 (34)  %Change

28365 S 27,594 § 24089 $ 27,715 $ 28,695  Library
14 15 14 16 1.7 % of Total
2.8 14.6 (13.2) (3.4) (5.5) % Change

719,715 S 673,009 S 656,291 S 654,958 S 627,653  Schools
36.2 35.5 373 37.6 36.2 % of Total
6.9 25 0.2 4.4 2.7 % Change

9,853 S 59419 S 87,934 $ 74720 S 82,034  Retirement Costs
49 3.1 5.0 43 47  %ofTotal
63.0 (32.4) 17.7 (8.9) (35) % Change

157,885  $ 142,721 $ 129,937 § 114512  § 107,701  Employee Benefits
7.9 7.5 7.4 6.6 6.2 % of Total
10.6 9.8 13.5 6.3 19.0 % Change

118,817  § 115,894  § 111,061 $ 69,009 § 67,769  State & District Assessments

6.0 6.1 6.3 4.0 39 % of Total

2.5 44 60.9 1.8 15 % Change
-8 -8 -8 4539 S 4,537  County

0.0 0.0 0.0 03 0.3 % of Total

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (24.8) % Change

33322 § 29,836 S 31,088 § 29,260 $ 48,774  Property & Development
1.7 1.6 1.8 1.7 2.8 % of Total
117 (4.0) 6.2 (40.0) 181 % Change

226885 $ 225187 $ 210451 $ 230292 $ 210,468 Other
114 11.9 12.0 132 121 %ofTotal
0.8 7.0 (8.6) 9.4 (2.8) % Change

1,987,329 S 1895421 S 1,758811 $ 1739859 $ 1,735145 Total Expenditures
100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 % of Total
4.8 7.8 1.1 0.3 4.1 % Change
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General Government Revenues by Source

(GAAP Basis)*
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)
Fiscal Year

SOURCE 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Property Taxes S 1,526,361 S 1,467,605 S 1,393,371 S 1,316,734 S 1,258,878
% of Total 66.7 65.5 62.5 59.5 59.5
% Change 4.0 5.3 5.8 4.6 5.8
Motor Vehicle Excises S 46,977 S 40,134 S 37,354 S 56,883 S 34,082
% of Total 2.1 1.8 1.7 2.6 1.6
% Change 17.1 7.4 (34.3) 66.9 (45.3)
Other Excises S 77,237 S 80,986 S 78,100 S 58,926 S 65,734
% of Total 3.4 3.6 3.5 2.7 3.1
% Change (4.6) 3.7 325 (10.4) 46.0
Departmental & Other S 65,498 S 74,861 S 82,087 S 79,030 S 65,661
% of Total 2.9 3.3 3.7 3.6 3.1
% Change (12.5) (8.8) 3.9 20.4 26.3
State Distributions S 395,374 S 404,619 S 454,252 S 493,227 S 484,510
% of Total 17.3 18.0 20.4 22.3 22.9
% Change (2.3) (10.9) (7.9) 1.8 (13.1)
Payment in Lieu of Taxes S 65,461 S 67,265 S 56,686 S 56,667 S 56,146
% of Total 2.9 3.0 2.5 2.6 2.7
% Change (2.7) 18.7 0.0 0.9 (7.3)
Fines S 64,751 S 70,627 S 69,711 S 67,940 S 67,546
% of Total 2.8 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.2
% Change (8.3) 1.3 2.6 0.6 (0.5)
Investment Income S 4,733 S 3,246 S 18,289 S 37,822 S 43,068
% of Total 0.2 0.1 0.8 1.7 2.0
% Change 45.8 (82.3) (51.6) (12.2) 33.1
Licenses & Permits S 41,676 S 32,907 S 40,822 S 45,989 S 40,694
% of Total 1.8 1.5 1.8 2.1 1.9
% Change 26.6 (19.4) (11.2) 13.0 0.8
Total Revenues S 2,288,068 S 2,242,250 S 2,230,672 S 2,213,218 S 2,116,319
% of Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
% Change 2.0 0.5 0.8 4.6 0.4

*General fund only

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Fiscal Year

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 SOURCE

1,190,347 S 1,138,254 S 1,082,574 S 1,053,945 S 990,848 Property Taxes

56.5 59.5 59.3 58.7 55.0 % of Total
4.6 5.1 2.7 6.4 13.3 % Change
62,328 S 73,855 S 38,135 S 58,263 S 42,776 Motor Vehicle Excises
3.0 3.9 2.1 3.2 2.4 % of Total
(15.6) 93.7 (34.5) 36.2 2.3 % Change
45,033 S 20,051 S 47,219 S 35,870 S 68,338 Other Excises
2.1 1.0 2.6 2.0 3.8 % of Total
124.6 (57.5) 316 (47.5) 121.7 % Change
51,992 S 60,704 S 45,556 S 62,373 S 62,200 Departmental & Other
2.5 3.2 2.5 3.5 35 % of Total
(14.4) 33.3 (27.0) 0.3 6.7 % Change

557,418 S 460,898 S 459,836 S 444,751 S 492,299  State Distributions

26.4 24.1 25.2 24.8 27.3 % of Total
20.9 0.2 3.4 (9.7) (0.2) % Change
60,584 S 42,218 S 42,373 S 40,910 S 36,332 Payment in Lieu of Taxes
2.9 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.0 % of Total
435 (0.4) 3.6 12.6 (50.0) % Change
67,876 S 65,280 S 66,342 S 59,187 S 60,601 Fines
3.2 3.4 3.6 3.3 3.4 % of Total
4.0 (1.6) 12.1 (2.3) 4.8 % Change
32,351 S 17,970 S 8,253 S 8,951 S 14,596  Investment Income
1.5 0.9 0.5 0.5 0.8 % of Total
80.0 117.7 (7.8) (38.7) (44.5) % Change
40,353 S 33,491 S 33,900 S 30,217 S 33,325 Licenses & Permits
1.9 1.8 1.9 1.7 1.9 % of Total
20.5 (1.2) 12.2 (9.3) (9.4) % Change

2,108,282 $ 1,912,721 S 1,824,188 S 1,794,467 $ 1,801,315 Total Revenues
100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 % of Total
10.2 4.9 1.7 (0.4) 6.4 % Change




112 e City of Boston Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Net Assets by Component

(Accrual basis of accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)

Governmental activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related

debtueiie.

RESEIICEEA ottt

UNFeStriCted. ..o

---------------------------

Total governmental activities net assets.........ceuerernene

Business-type activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related

RESEACERA ottt
UNFESEHICER. ...

debt.niennn,

Total business-type activities net assets.......c.oeverrereens

Primary government:
Invested in capital assets, net of related

debt...cvcrriernes

T £ ot =T [P PPPTTRT
UNEESTIICERO. ..ttt s e s s s eses e s s eeeeenaens

Total primary government net assets

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

Fiscal Year
2011 2010 2009 2008
S 402,646 S 427,097 S 384,389 334,467
156,989 234,339 217,070 234,902
(108,780) (69,124) 221,418 405,878
$ 450,855 $ 592312 § 822,877 975,247
S -5 -5
14,832 14,901 - -
(52,069) (42,803) (50,997)
$ 14832 $ (37,168) S  (42,803) (50,997)
S 402646 S 427,097 S 384,389 334,467
171,821 249,240 217,070 234,902
(108,780) (121,193 178,615 354,881
$ 465687 $ 555144 $ 780,074 924,250




Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
$ 285756 S 230,636 108,924 S 92,802 $  (6784) (92,711)
280,949 276,769 294,453 258,940 210,077 266,999
592,425 545,940 556,773 155,816 120,009 82,442
$ 1,159,130 $ 1,053,345 960,150 $ 507,558 $ 323,302 256,730
S . : -8 s : :
(70,008) (78,251) (84,482) (89,654) (82,582) (59,517)
$ (70,008 $ (78251) (84,482) ¢ (89,654) S (82,582) (59,517)
$ 285756 S 230,636 108,924 S 92,802 $  (6784) (92,711)
280,949 276,769 294,453 258,940 210,077 266,999
522,417 467,689 472,291 66,162 37,427 22,925
$ 1,089,122 $ 975,004 875668 § 417,904 $ 240,720 197,213

Statistical Section ¢ 113
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Changes in Net Assets

(Accrual basis of accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)

EXPENSES:
Governmental activities:
General gOVErNMENT........ccvevvevveerrerreree e serereseenes
HUM@N SEIVICES ..ot eee e,
PUDIIC SATELY..vuevuiveriereicrenenreere e sesasaneens
PUBIC WOPKS...v.vecvcvereercreiee v
Property and development..........cceverernnenernernenens
Parks and recreation........eeeveeveereereennenenesesnennes
LIDEArY .o
SCNOOIS...cveveverereree bbb

Total governmental activities expenses............
Business-type activities:

CONVENLION CENEET ..vivircritiii bbb

HOSPITAL vvevvevcriereie e,

Total business-type activities..........coevererereennnn.

Total primary government eXpenSeS........uveverersrsssersrsssessrsssessrssnsens

PROGRAM REVENUES:
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
PUDIIC SATELY.cvuivircrereere e,
PUDIIC WOTKS...v.cvevcrciiie et

Operating grants and cONtribULIONS. ..o
Capital grants and contribULIONS........cuevveeieieiennrsssse e ssssesenes

Total governmental activities program revenues.........oe.eevevenerensinens

Business-type activities:

Operating grants and cONtribULIONS. ..o

Total business-type activities program revenues........c.evveevereerenens

Total primary government program revenues

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

Fiscal Year

2011 2010 2009
80,968 § 106,435 103,420
49,974 52,310 48,396
875,111 930,779 920,790
133,830 131,883 145,867
117,871 118,456 105,581
31,956 31,204 30,026
47,320 50,050 52,881
1,317,108 1,314,601 1,316,314
70,619 71,453 71,618
40,329 39,832 28,041
2,765,086 2,847,003 2,823,434
1,516 13,751 4,902
3,336 3,635 3,924
4,852 17,386 8,826
2,769,938 S 2,864,389 2,832,260
89,485 85,305 115,013
12,029 12,190 10,174
9,451 20,318 16,077
33,410 39,236 28,562
501,441 547,812 594,914
33,338 12,555 56,517
679,154 717,416 821,257
1,172 5,567 1,116
1,172 5,567 1,116
680,326 S 722,983 822,373
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Fiscal Year

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

S 109,121 S 82,793 S 82,387 § 113,636 S 77,547 S 60,703 S 84,930

50,827 41,697 39,956 36,413 32,180 32,357 11,730
908,353 730,627 767,403 724,716 590,357 588,149 604,605
148,497 125,228 127,379 121,513 95,104 94,316 82,891
110,272 112,857 112,875 89,213 118,764 93,265 112,787

30,134 20,371 22,485 20,310 14,170 20,269 18,987

47,340 45,498 41,665 37,878 30,479 33,938 38,112

1,272,997 1,187,826 1,061,634 963,928 824,277 792,159 769,085
68,718 65,439 63,604 62,296 58,848 63,897 64,537
31,058 28,725 33,312 35,877 39,042 48,397 38,514

- - - 10,134 214,474 213,738 185,817
2,777,317 2,441,061 2,352,700 2,215,914 2,095,242 2,041,188 2,011,995
5,122 5,202 10,814 6,165 38,541 40,786 19,035
4,201 4,979 4,915 5,104 5,285 8,881 8,232
9,323 10,181 15,729 11,269 43,826 49,667 27,267

$ 2,786,640 S 2,451,242 S 2368429 S 2,227,183 $ 2,139,068 $ 2,090,855 $ 2,039,262

127,460 120,887 121,090 112,585 105,405 89,480 90,498
2,564 16,748 13,670 15,114 3,806 4,196 3,412
16,910 25,562 15,105 15,308 12,868 18,223 17,278
33,135 25,717 17,731 15,506 18,339 15,468 19,666
593,767 594,457 614,685 581,220 644,429 503,696 541,589
18,267 19,306 24,746 21,079 38,595 30,327 30,946
792,103 802,677 807,027 760,812 823,442 661,390 703,389
1,196 1,152 3,537 297 24,256 12,877 38,695
1,196 1,152 3,537 297 24,256 12,877 38,695

$ 793,299 $ 803,829 $ 810,564 $ 761,109 $ 847,698 $ 674,267 $ 742,084
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Changes in Net Assets (continued)

(Accrual basis of accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)

Fiscal Year
2011 2010 2009

NET EXPENSE:

GOVEINMENtAl ACHIVILIES.....vvcvvvecriesiiesiisssie s ssssssees $ (2,085932) $§ (2,129,587) S (2,002,177)

BUSINESS-tYPE ACIVILIES. ... vvvvrvrerirnrenrirrssnesesesessssssssssessessssssesessessessessssnes (3,680) (11,819) (7,710)

Total primary government net eXPENSE.......ceureeressssssrsssrssssssarses $ (2,089612) S (2,141,406) $ (2,009,887

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:

Governmental activities:

Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general pUrPOSES........coccvervvrerrvvessveserieereans, § 1525494 S 1468340 § 1,389,218

EXCISES..vivriiisiiice bbbt b bbb s 122,399 123,121 115,237

PayMENL iN lIEU Of tAXES....ceverrrerireriseieresesss s sssssseseens 65,461 67,265 56,686
Grants and contributions NOt restricted. ... 187,322 171,174 230,475
INVESEMENE INCOME....iuiverirereieterreretet e bbb bbb benes 21,724 17,221 22,584
MISCEIIANEOUS. ....vvcvvvveriirriiinreerere bbb bbb saesanes 23,195 21,901 12,107
SPECIAl IEBMS...o.cveveeierieiectes sttt sens - - -
TEANSTRIS ottt b s sa bbbt bbb ee (1,120) 30,000 27,000

Total governmental aCtiVItIES. ....vuerveeierereseressesrsie s 1,944,475 1,899,022 1,853,307
Business-type activities:
Taxes:

EXCISES cvvuiretrriretrte ettt bbb a s 58,508 43,887 36,605
INVESEMENE INCOME....iviveicietrieie ettt 3,561 3,567 6,299
MISCRIANEOUS. ..vovvererrrsssrseesesesssssssss st ssesss st ssssssssssssnnes (7,509) - -
TEANSTEIS. oottt neas 1,120 (30,000) (27,000)

Total busingss-type aCtiVILIES.......overerrreriernerernssssesessseesessseesesenes 55,680 17,454 15,904

Total primary GOVEINMENt.........vuueevverurersserssssssssssssssssssssssssssssenns $ 2000155 S 1916476 $ 1,869,211
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:

GOVEINMENtAl ACHIVILIES.....vvocvvveerveeiieesiess e $  (141457) §  (230,565) §  (148,870)

BUSINESS-LYPE ACHIVITIES...vvivieereieiriieie s 52,000 5,635 8,194

Total Primary GOVErNMENL.......ovuuerernneessessssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss $ (89,457) $  (224930) $  (140,676)

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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2008

2007

2006

2005 2004 2003

2002

$ (1,985,214)

(8,127)

$ (1,638,384)
(9,029)

$ (1,545,673)

(12,192)

$ (1,455,102)
(10,972)

$ (1,271,800)
(19,570)

$ (1,379,798)
(36,790)

$ (1,308,606)

11,428

$ (1,993,341)

$ (1,647,413)

$ (1,557,865)

$ (1,466,074) $ (1,291,370) S (1,416,588)

$ (1,297,178)

$ 1316165 $ 1,261,159 $ 1195564 S 1,136,487 ¢ 1,103,003 $ 1,005684 S 967,762
97,262 111,079 94,743 100,888 91,551 95,157 109,503
56,668 56,146 60,584 42,218 42,373 40,910 36,332
259,931 246,538 225,731 231,258 171,976 234,719 272,150
47,072 52,528 42,082 28,072 18,304 18,655 23,097
1,531 539 2,164 2,344 11,849 33,245 33,568

(298) (3,820) - 348,427 - - 13,300
23,000 20,000 18,000 18,000 17,000 18,000 -
1,801,331 1,744,169 1,638,868 1,907,694 1,456,056 1,446,370 1,455,712
40,342 35,092 30,503 28,028 23,845 23,348 5,079
9,796 2,180 5,920 6,116 5,653 8,377 8,594

- - - - - 7,303
(23,000) (20,000) (18,000) (18,000) (17,000) (18,000) -
27,138 17,272 18,423 16,144 12,498 13,725 20,976

$ 15828469 $ 1,761,441 $ 1657291 $ 1923838 $ 1468554 $ 1,460,095 $ 1,476,688

¢ (183,883) $ 105785 $ 93,195 $ 452592 ¢ 184256 S 66572 S 147,106
19,011 8,243 6,231 5,172 (7,072) (23,065) 32,404

$ (164,872) $ 114028 $ 99426 S 457,764 $ 177,184 $ 43507 $ 179,510
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Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

(Accrual basis of accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)

General Fund
ASSIENEU....ucvvereerierieriirnsseeer et saesaens
UNGSSIBNEH....urvuieeirireierire st sisssse s ssssssssesssssssesssssaens
Total general fund..........cceeecrnrrevenenneresensnienesensnsesesssnssesenens

All other Governmental Funds
NONSPENAADIE.....eucvvcrereiere et saenes
1L (ot LT TP
ASSIBNE.....veveeriririrrirrs st saesaens
Total all other governmental funds.........cccourvsusersnnsersensnnns

General Fund
Reserved for:
ENCUMDBIANCES ...ttt
DEDL SEIVICE. ..ttt
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent years expenditures..................
UNdESIBNALEH. ...
Total general fund.........ccceeerveverernnnenessnnresesnnesesessesesssnes

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved for:
ENCUMBIANCES....vvrvrveerirrieie s sse s sesenes
DEDBL SEIVICE...uurvuverire ettt sesssans
FULUre apPropriations.......coceeercereeresernsesessessesssessssssesees
Unreserved:
Undesignated:
SPECIAI FEBVENUE....vvvvrtrietriereree e bbb s esasees
Capital ProOJECES. ..ottt anees
Reported in permanent funds.........cc.cccvvnenevenenenenennesinins
Total all other governmental funds.........coeveeernrrerererenrenes

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

2011

141,891
511,040

652,931

4,974
195,333
80,975

281,282

2010 2009

36,808 37,534
123,103 240,824
547,282 550,329
707,193 828,687
136,138 116,878

24,108 30,087
123,714 138,594
(65,024) (74,168)
37,098 35,743
256,034 247,134
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
32519 $ 38617 S 44573 S 33,155 56,132 20787 $ 20,262
216,429 198,098 178,157 164,621 139,986 139,028 36,000
553,101 495,334 438,667 415,248 377,102 331,539 345,847
802,09 $ 732,049 $ 661397 $ 613,024 573,220 491354 $ 402,109
125858 $ 187565 ¢ 138992 ¢ 136,023 85,643 133379 $ 156,131
30,087 35,756 43,756 43,724 50,374 42,875 55,874
144,043 154,404 149,791 130,236 124,127 62,493 76,600
(110,745) (144,877) (100,639) (109,563) (45,918) (70,289) (93,240)
44,678 48,101 44,869 43,837 44,714 41,619 43,773
233921 $ 280,949 $ 276,769 $ 244,257 258,940 210077 $ 239,138
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Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)

Fiscal Year

2011 2010 2009 2008
REVENUES:
Real and personal property taxes........coeeeeeverernereneneneneneeneneneenenenes $ 1,526,361 1,467,605 S 1,393,371 1,316,734
EXCISES...veviuiiireriterese ettt ettt s st re e s bbbt et s st ebebe s e sn b b nensene 124,214 121,120 115,454 115,809
Payments in lieU Of taXES......cociveviereriiicieeeee et 65,461 67,265 56,686 56,667
FINES e retitiitst ettt b 64,772 70,649 69,723 68,090
INVESTMENT INCOME...c..iiiiiiiiirece e 11,956 8,907 15,275 38,554
Licenses and PEIMILS.......ccceeveeuereirieiereee ittt e e e esnnes 41,750 32,907 41,130 46,049
Departmental and Other.......ccoveciinicccee e 103,003 91,468 104,208 111,982
INtErgovernMENtAl.....cccccivivieeiririeeererre e 707,754 742,464 875,912 850,392
TOtal FEVENUES.....ccveeeereirererceerceesceeeeseeesaressenessasessanessnnesssans 2,645,271 2,602,385 2,671,759 2,604,277
EXPENDITURES:
General GOVEIMMENT.......cocvuvirieeicerieeieieieiet ettt seees 78,573 78,148 81,905 81,877
HUM@N SEIVICES. .. evivietiiieiteriesteseste e e st srestesreste e srestesreeressesreeneesenns 36,008 38,014 37,307 38,575
PUDIIC SAfELY..viiieieeeiiirieee s 526,332 523,515 529,425 530,379
PUBIIC WOTKS... .ttt 109,635 105,123 121,422 122,038
Property and developmeNt.........cceeeeeveeeiniereinninirssesssesese e 111,607 117,394 93,408 102,682
Parks and reCreation......c.cvveveieeenreienereseesereeese e srenesnens 19,766 17,534 18,195 17,928
LIy .ottt b et 33,556 33,431 36,634 32,051
SCNOOIS ...ttt bbb aens 974,832 962,703 973,327 931,569
Public health Programs...........ccccvieeivensecenss e 70,380 71,214 71,393 68,394
COUNTY vttt ettt b ettt b e e nne - 69,040 129,603 121,180
Judgments and Claims........c.oeeirnieeiinnre s 811 10,181 9,946 1,967
RetireMENT COSES. .. iviiiriiineririreeiceee st 195,976 235,282 82,332 95,193
Other employee beNefits.......ccvveeiiririncieieirseeeese e 294,200 224,156 191,597 190,167
State and district aSSESSMENTS.....ccvvvivveeeriririeenerse e 152,042 146,323 142,055 132,792
CapPital OULIAYS....cvevevieeeeierceeee ettt 140,405 126,668 141,309 183,244
Debt service:
PrINCIPAl cveveieciecc e 91,690 91,784 87,700 83,460
INEEIEST. vttt r et 42,092 41,300 31,594 32,311
Total EXPenditures........cciveeeiceennnennnncsnnsessnnssnsssnscssssnsssssssnssnns 2,877,905 2,891,810 2,779,152 2,765,807
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures...........ccoccvevreerenene (232,634) (289,425) (107,393) (161,530)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS:
Long-term debt and capital leases isSUed.........ccccvreverrereiririsnereenens 156,109 144,492 113,962 153,510
Issuance of refunding bonds.........cceeeeeeeensnnrnsrr e 52,720 68,345 40,425 28,155
Payments to refunded bonds escrow agent.........c.occcoeeueeiereeniennnns (15,490) (73,640) (42,230) (28,565)
Premiums on long-term debt issued.........coecevrerrieeiicirneeinrereienns 11,401 7,634 8,087 8,402
TraNSTErs, NEL...cvcicecesiccreer e rs (1,120) 30,000 27,000 23,000
Proceeds from sale of capital @ssets.........ccceeveveereeeierineseiererereenne - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) and special items............ 203,620 176,831 147,244 184,502
Net change in fund balances.........cccceeeererernnreereeseeseseesenens S (29,014) (112,594) § 39,851 22,972
Debt Service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures........c.cecueunee 4.80% 4.83% 4.51% 4.44%

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

1,258,878 $ 1,190,347 S 1,138,254 $ 1,082,574 $ 1,053,945 S 990,848

99,816 107,361 93,906 85,354 94,133 111,114
56,146 60,584 42,218 42,373 40,910 36,332
67,557 67,894 65,297 66,361 59,206 60,645
43,818 32,892 18,322 8,480 9,490 14,368
40,759 40,424 33,565 33,970 30,274 33,577
124,369 109,768 122,600 89,451 79,679 82,943
843,503 944,427 802,029 827,308 769,193 840,869
2,534,846 2,553,697 2,316,191 2,235,871 2,136,830 2,171,196
77,390 67,325 84,508 39,788 66,053 90,434
35,031 34,884 32,499 31,979 31,969 11,724
505,981 476,788 481,879 411,906 417,811 427,732
106,939 110,402 109,468 87,331 87,005 75,058
102,399 105,071 86,990 117,687 93,111 111,855
17,354 16,107 16,709 12,490 15,453 16,626
36,391 34,035 33,173 29,498 32,901 33,956
898,622 869,400 808,001 780,647 786,341 757,815
65,333 63,267 62,296 58,848 63,897 64,537
114,218 106,270 101,832 102,044 100,991 109,291
2,257 11,590 6,620 (3,544) 2,880 2,724
92,873 96,853 59,419 87,934 74,720 82,034
175,862 157,885 142,721 129,937 114,512 107,701
124,243 118,817 115,894 111,061 69,009 67,769
131,413 105,815 91,462 134,879 167,862 144,770
82,280 76,565 84,855 85,930 86,060 81,470
30,932 133,481 34,793 38,062 73,965 37,790
2,599,518 2,584,555 2,353,119 2,256,477 2,284,540 2,223,286
(64,672) (30,858) (36,928) (20,606) (147,710) (52,090)
115,051 89,871 84,609 84,786 216,824 174,754
85,425 - 52,775 78,200 91,710 -
(85,350) - (103,744) (40,426) (130,740) -
4,378 3,872 10,409 11,775 12,100 -
20,000 18,000 18,000 17,000 18,000 -
- - - - - 13,300
139,504 111,743 62,049 151,335 207,894 188,054

74,832 $ 80,885 S 25,121 S 130,729 S 60,184 S 135,964

4.58% 8.44% 5.27% 5.81% 7.48% 5.74%
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Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of All Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)

Personal

Real Property Property
Total Direct
Fiscal Residential Commercial Industrial Assessed Total Assessed ~ Tax Rate

Year Value Value Value Value Value (e

2011 $ 56,563,231  $25171,149 $ 679520 S 4,386,681  $ 86800582 ¢ 19.15
2010 56,279,025 25,931,406 798,982 4,247,118 87,256,531 18.09
2009 57,465,174 28,198,212 809,682 3,914,103 90,387,171 16.63
2008 59,387,385 26,011,520 875,894 3,792,499 90,067,298 16.06
2007 59,293,474 22,937,239 769,744 3,515,648 86,516,105 15.99
2006 50,688,907 20,041,911 679,680 3,327,503 74,738,001 17.42
2005 46,816,633 18,663,279 640,350 3,133,267 69,253,529 17.84
2004 44,313,799 17,761,725 642,201 3,424,005 66,141,730 17.72
2003 35,147,998 18,640,038 602,730 3,142,579 57,533,345 19.15
2002 31,774,558 18,905,256 619,670 2,889,815 54,189,299 19.00

(1) The assessed valuation of taxable property reflects 100% of the full and fair cash value.

(a) Exempt residential properties not included.

(b) Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value and are reported in whole dollars in the above table.

(c) Total direct tax rate is the weighted average calculation of the residential, commercial, and industrial values.

Source: City of Boston Assessing Department

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



Property Tax Rates Direct and Overlapping Governments (1) (2)

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal Year Class City General Total % Change Total Direct

2011 Residential S 12.79 12.79 7.7% S 19.15
C.IP. 31.04 31.04 5.7%

2010 Residential 11.88 11.88 11.8% 18.09
C.I.P. 29.38 29.38 8.4%

2009 Residential 10.63 10.63 (3.1%) 16.63
C.I.P. 27.11 27.11 4.6%

2008 Residential 10.97 10.97 (0.2%) 16.06
C.I.P. 25.92 25.92 (3.5%)

2007 Residential 10.99 10.99 (1.2%) 15.99
C.IP. 26.87 26.87 (12.5%)

2006 Residential 11.12 11.12 3.6% 17.42
C.I.P. 30.70 30.70 (6.1%)

2005 Residential 10.73 10.73 5.7% 17.84
C.I.P. 32.68 32.68 (1.2%)

2004 Residential 10.15 10.15 (10.1%) 17.72
C.I.P. 33.08 33.08 5.0%

2003 Residential 11.29 11.29 2.5% 19.15
C.I.P. 31.49 31.49 3.8%

2002 Residential 11.01 11.01 4.1% 19.00
C.I.P. 30.33 30.33 0.5%

(1) Per the initiatives of Proposition 2 1/2 adopted by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the City cannot levy

more than 2.5 percent of the total full and fair cash value of all taxable real and personal property. The City's

levy is also limited in that it cannot increase more than 2.5 percent from the prior year, with certain exceptions

for new growth or through overrides and exclusions adopted by City voters
(2) Real and personal property tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.

C.I.P. = Commercial, Industrial, and Personal Property.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Largest Principal Taxpayers (1)
Current and Nine Years Ago

2011
% of Total % of Total
Taxable Taxable
Taxable Assessed Assessed Taxable Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Blackstone Real Estate Partners.........ccocceeveeerecrcnenene 2,608,421,220 1 3.01% S - -
NSTAR/ Boston Edison Company ...........ccceeeeeverernnnnnns 1,674,541,170 2 1.93% 1,213,096,630 2 2.24%
BOStON Properties ......c.ccoevevveverinineeneeseseeeeenenen 1,307,575,720 3 1.51% - -
Tishman Speyer Properties .........cccvvvvveveeererereneneenas 899,789,970 4 1.04% - -
Normandy Real Estate Partners (2).......ccoceevevvvernnnnn. 701,985,766 5 0.81% -
Fort Hill ASSOCIAtES.....cvvvrvrirrirereciiriririsie e 693,356,670 6 0.80% 644,366,512 5 1.19%
Brookfield Properties Corporation...........ccceeeceriririrnnes 673,566,390 7 0.78% - -
Teacher's Insurance and Annuity Association ............. 577,598,000 8 0.67% - -
National Grid INC..vvveveeeeiirererseeess s 443,608,710 9 0.51% -
One Hundred Federal Street, LPS .......cccoceevvviivevennenenn 436,892,360 10 0.50% - -
UIDC of Massachusetts, INC. .......cccccevievievecieneceiienns 429,196,810 11 0.49% 418,987,496 9 0.77%
Fortis Property Group .....c.ccoevereeeneneneneeneeesiesieeenens 395,482,680 12 0.46% - -
Dewey Square Tower ASSOCIates .......ccovvvevvuirireereenne 393,935,800 13 0.45% - -
John Hancock Financial........ccccecevvecinieneeninieininiannns 388,601,550 14 0.45% 749,271,684 3 1.38%
Equity Office Properties ........ccocveeeveeeveeevenereesrerenens - - 1,908,194,000 1 3.52%
BP Prudential.......cccccvvivevrierennierirrseeeeeneseseseee s - - 705,203,900 4 1.30%
World Financial Partners.........cccooeeveeveeereerevvevveeereenne. - - 630,495,008 6 1.16%
TST (One Twenty Five High Street).........cccccevvvvvririennae - - 503,178,484 7 0.93%
VEIIZON ittt - - 420,400,647 8 0.78%
Equitable Federal Street Realty Co.......ccovvvueeeueririnenne - - 387,936,000 10 0.72%
$ 11,624,552,816 13.39% $ 7,581,130,361 13.99%

(1) The methodology used in creating the table involves the search of the title holder, or holders, of all major parcels in
the City. This methodology does not necessarily locate all parcels owned by affiliates nor does it differentiate

between percentage ownership in a particular parcel.

(2) Normandy Real Estate Partners acquired the Hancock Tower at auction in March 2009 (previously owned by
Broadway Partners). Normandy Real Estate Partners, in turn, sold the Hancock Tower to Boston Properties in
December 2010. The Hancock Tower is reflected in Normandy’s real estate figure since they were owner of record as

of the FY 2011 assessment date of January 1, 2010.

Source: City of Boston Assessing and Treasury Departments

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts in millions)

Collected within the Fiscal

Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collections in
Ended June for the Fiscal Percentage of Subsequent Percentage of
30, Year Amount Levy Years Amount Levy

2011 S 1,541.1 S 1,523.5 98.86% - S 1,523.5 98.86%
2010 1,465.5 1,447.2 98.75% 7.7 1,454.9 99.28%
2009 1,398.9 1,382.3 98.81% 7.9 1,390.2 99.38%
2008 1,334.6 1,317.2 98.70% 7.2 1,324.4 99.24%
2007 1,270.8 1,245.2 97.99% 13.3 1,258.5 99.03%
2006 1,208.2 1,184.5 98.04% 11.3 1,195.8 98.97%
2005 1,150.1 1,127.2 98.01% 13.2 1,140.4 99.16%
2004 1,094.2 1,071.1 97.89% 19.6 1,090.7 99.68%
2003 1,035.9 1,016.3 98.11% 8.9 1,025.2 98.97%
2002 972.7 958.8 98.57% 6.9 965.7 99.28%

(1) Includes omitted assessments billed in June of each fiscal year and subsequently reduced residential exemption.

Source: City of Boston Treasury Department

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts in thousands, except per capita amount)

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Convention Center

Boston City
General Capital Lease Special Hospital Special
Fiscal Year  Obligation Bonds  Notes Payable @ Agreements Obligation Bonds Obligation Bonds
2011 S 1,026,305 S 36,602 28,123 S - S 73,080
2010 952,830 40,285 35,504 93,505 80,605
2009 916,820 32,611 39,545 97,085 87,840
2008 903,215 35,421 36,773 100,485 94,800
2007 860,915 34,170 24,386 103,715 101,490
2006 839,125 51,400 17,620 106,785 107,985
2005 835,690 149,603 13,413 109,700 114,290
2004 893,485 150,676 12,600 112,480 120,415
2003 873,875 137,589 17,492 114,790 127,800
2002 829,465 127,279 26,036 116,890 141,095

Note: Details regarding the City’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(1) Includes Bond Anticipation Notes, MWPAT Notes, and Other Notes.

(2) See Table 7 for the City’s total assessed value of property.

(3) See Table 14 for the City’s population data.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands, except per capita amount)

Total Primary % of Total
Government Assessed Value ¥ Per Capita @

S 1,164,110 134% § 1.80
1,202,729 1.38% 1.86
1,173,901 1.30% 1.82
1,170,694 1.30% 1.84
1,124,676 1.30% 1.81
1,122,915 1.50% 1.83
1,222,696 1.77% 2.01
1,289,656 1.95% 2.12
1,271,546 2.21% 2.09
1,240,765 2.29% 2.04

Statistical Section ¢ 127
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Ratios of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and
Net Bonded Debt per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands, except per capita amount)

General Bonded Ratio of General  General Bonded
Debt Assessed Value Bonded Debt to Debt per Capita
Fiscal Year Outstanding M Assessed Value @

2011 1,026,305 86,800,582 1.2% 1.59
2010 952,830 87,256,531 1.1% 1.48
2009 916,820 90,387,171 1.0% 1.42
2008 903,215 90,067,298 1.0% 1.42
2007 860,915 86,516,105 1.0% 1.38
2006 839,125 74,738,001 1.1% 1.37
2005 835,690 69,253,529 1.2% 1.37
2004 893,485 66,141,730 1.4% 1.47
2003 873,875 57,533,345 1.5% 1.44
2002 829,465 54,189,299 1.5% 1.36

(1) See table 7 for the City's total assessed value of property.

(2) See Table 14 for the City's population data.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts in thousands)

2011 2010 2009 2008

Debt limit. oo $ 5,301,711 S 5,293,826 S 4,387,466 S 4,387,466
Total net debt applicable to limit........c..ccceevnenee. 1,345,702 1,257,207 369,724 1,187,532
Legal debt Margin.......ccceveeereveeveeeneeeseseeen, S 3,956,009 S 4,036,619 S 4,017,742 S 3,199,934
Total net debt applicable to the limit

as a percentage of debt limit.......ccccoevveviveciniennnee 25.38% 23.75% 8.43% 27.07%
Legal Debt margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2011
Equalized valuation as of January 31, 2011 (1)..ccccvevevevineeerireeiereceseeree e S 106,034,217
Maximum debt limits as of July 1, 2011 (2)..ccveveievereeeceeeceeeeeree e 5,301,711
Less: Debt outstanding June 30, 2010 .....c.ccooveivieerieinieeeteeceeeeeee et (792,646)
Less: Debt authorized but unissued as of June 30, 2010 (3).....cccevvveverreveerereereereeeree e (467,711)

Debt incurring capacity as of June 30, 2010.........cceveieenenereeecececee e 4,041,354

Add: Debt redeemed during fiscal year 2011.........ccccevveeieiieceniese e 52,270
Less: City Council Authorizations during fiscal year 2011........cccceovvevvreeeneveeceseeeseesens (138,231)

Debt Adjustments approved through fiscal year 2011........ccccecvvevererenevieececseesenenns -
Add: Increase in normal debt limit based on new equalized valuation

effective January 31, 2011 ...t aas -
Add: RefUNded aMOUNTS........ccvciieieiiicieeseee et re et e st se b e 616
Debt incurring capacity as of June 30, 2011.......cccccovieeievereieesee e S 3,956,009

(1) Includes the value of Chapter 121A tax agreement properties

(2) The laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts provide for general debt limits for the City, consisting of a Normal Debt Limit
and a Double Debt Limit. The Normal Debt Limit is 5.0% of the assessed valuation of taxable property in the City as last equalized by
the State Department of Revenue, and may authorize debt up to this limit without State approval. The City may also authorize debt
up to twice this amount (the Double Debt Limit) with the approval of the State Commonwealth’s Secretary of Administration and
Finance.

(3) The debt authorized but unissued as of June 30, 2011 and City Council authorizations during fiscal year 2011 are reported for
purposes of the computation of legal debt margin within the Normal Debt Limit.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
S 3,814,054 S 3,814,054 S 3,287,567 S 3,187,567 S 1,743,783 S 1,246,458
524,358 1,043,419 480,943 882,198 977,123 899,487

S 3,289,696 S 2,770,635 S 2,806,624 S 2,305,369 S 766,660 S 346,971

13.75% 27.36% 14.63% 27.68% 56.03% 72.16%
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Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years

Total Personal

Per Capita

Income (in Personal Income  Unemployment
Fiscal Year Population ) thousands)(z) @) Rate ¥
2011 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2010 N/A N/A N/A 9.0%/8.7%
2009 645,169 N/A N/A 8.1%
2008 636,748 S 38,826,315 S 60,976 5.2%
2007 622,748 37,704,838 60,546 4.4%
2006 612,192 35,062,332 57,273 4.9%
2005 609,690 32,313,638 53,000 5.2%
2004 607,367 30,633,188 50,436 5.6%
2003 607,871 28,780,755 47,347 6.4%
2002 607,931 28,060,850 46,158 5.9%

N/A = Information not available for this fiscal year

(1) See Debt Ratios table in the City’s Official Statement for population data.

(2) Suffolk County’s population comprises 87% for Boston and 13% for Revere, Chelsea, and
Winthrop. Take 87% of the number shown to get the Boston estimate.

(3) According to the 2000 census, Boston’s 1999 per capita income was 2.58% greater than that for
Suffolk County. Numbers shown are the official Suffolk data. To get Boston’s per capita number,
assuming the ratio of Boston to Suffolk has not changed, multiply numbers by 1.0258.

(4) Most recent unemployment rates are preliminary and subject to revision.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Current and Nine Years Ago

Statistical Section ¢ 133

2011 2006

Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees = Rank Employment
Massachusetts General Hospital................. 14,207 1 2.15% 16,146 1 2.52%
Brigham and Women's Hospital.................. 11,607 2 1.76% 11,225 2 1.75%
Boston UNIVersity.....cocvvvvvevenveneninenennens 9,301 3 1.41% 9,087 4 1.42%
Children's Hospital, Boston...........cccccveuuee. 7,603 4 1.15% 3,832 9 0.60%
Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center........ 7,192 5 1.09% 10,861 3 1.69%
Liberty Mutual Holding Company Inc.......... 7,125 6 1.08%
State Street Bank & Trust Co......ooveverurenee 5,600 7 0.85%
Fidelity. oo 5,457 8 0.83% 8,000 5 1.25%
Boston Medical Center Corporation........... 4,875 9 0.74% 4,000 8 0.62%
Tufts Medical Center........coevvevvevevvenvennen. 3,915 10 0.59%
New England Medical Center...................... 5,508 6 0.86%
Northeastern University..........ccoceevrvevvrreneen. 4,417 7 0.69%
Harvard University.....ccocoeevveveeeneeeeenennens 3,654 10 0.57%
Total 76,882 11.64% 76,730 11.97%

Note 1: This list does not include large public sector agencies or nonprofit firms except for some hospitals, colleges, and media

companies.

Note 2: Used previous data from 2006 due to specific number of employees known for each employer

Source: Dun and Bradsteet, Info USA, New England Board of Higher Education, American Hospital Association, and BRA

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Department (1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2011 2010 2009 2008"
CITY-FUNDED:
Public safety (2)....ccoveveveeeeeceeceeeee e 4,476 4,431 4,685 4,737
PUBIIC WOTKS....cvtrvereeeriiriiieciiseee e 359 378 388 404
Other city departments (3)....cccocevevevvneecerenreeierennenas 2,596 2,712 2,841 2,771
Boston Public Health Commission (4) ........ccceevvveveuee. 794 797 820 752
SCROOIS.....ectictecrecteceececec e b 8,047 8,211 8,572 8,476
Total city-funded.......ccoceevveerriiieerrccceeeeeccceeee, 16,272 16,529 17,306 17,140
GRANT-FUNDED:
SCROOIS....oectectece e e 792 754 755 912
All OthErs (6)....ccveveveeriieriieieiereie e 292 378 1,433 1,391
Total grant-funded.........ccceeveiiiiiiriinerinnnniiisnenennns 1,084 1,132 2,188 2,303
Total employees........ccceereecrneerrccrnneerrecsseeennennnne 17,356 17,661 19,494 19,443

(1) The methodology used in compiling these data was established jointly by the City and the Boston

Municipal Research Bureau.

(2) Public Safety includes both the Police Department and the Fire Department

(3) Includes State - Boston Retirement System funded solely from the investment income account of the

system

(4) Boston Public Health Commission employees are funded by the City, but are not employees of the

City.
(5) Prior years restated to include part-time school custodians.

(6) Does not include grants managed by the Boston Public Health Commission.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



Fiscal Year

Statistical Section ¢ 135

2007" 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

4,554 4,421 4,451 4,393 4,608 4,662
418 415 424 409 426 451
2,747 2,772 2,739 2,762 2,913 3,221
750 738 743 728 745 768
8,300 8,087 8,009 7,792 8,440 8,510
16,769 16,433 16,366 16,084 17,132 17,612
93 954 924 866 934 925
1,429 1,491 1,449 1,468 1,480 1,640
2,392 2,445 2,373 2,334 2,414 2,565
19,161 18,878 18,739 18,418 19,546 20,177
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Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

Function/Program 2011 2010 2009 2008

Police

Service calls aNSWEred........ovvvevviviiiiniiceceseceee e 543,424 621,794 577,126 577,163

Moving/traffic Violations ........cccceveerereeveveniseeeeceee e 107,822 138,441 137,217 132,546

Parking violations as of June 30........cccceevvvireieneveneereeeeenn 1,435,022 1,571,688 1,591,832 1,529,537
Fire

Calls AaNSWEIEM.......ccveereeeericriirereeeeere ettt v 71,244 69,859 71,247 70,176

Inspections coNAUCLE........cccuevvrereiereereieseee e 24,297 23,900 22,093 23,810
Library

Personnel full-time......ccoeiveiiniereesecc e 385 431 464 518

Personnel part-time........cccvrrerreeeeninnnseeeeeseseses s 54 57 96 158

Central and branch libraries.......ccoevevvevineiinnenneneenisieens 26 26 27 27

Books, audio and video materials,

newspapers, and magazines in circulation...........ccceevvevernenne 3,534,413 3,587,136 3,403,538 3,116,540

Library cards in fOrCe......cuevrevirieeveeeeseeseeeeere s 639,700 610,352 518,080 552,797
Schools

Student enrollment as of JUNE 30.....c.ccveveiieevriereeeeeiceerene 56,789 56,219 56,144 56,074
Streets, sidewalks, and bridges

Streets iN MIlES..c.uvveiriciirece e 988 968 810 809
Hospitals

Births as of JUNE 30.....ccvcvevereiirererseeree e 21,568 21,064 21,387 8,430

Deaths as of JUNE 30....c..cciiiiiiiiiiiiieciciecee et 7,572 6,987 7,185 3,043

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
538,330 512,437 499,580 480,349 454,150 489,951
136,263 136,297 122,185 126,361 159,211 202,521

1,527,061 1,606,863 1,549,559 1,683,673 1,683,573 1,769,376

72,071 71,632 70,463 73,218 75,542 78,826
23,500 28,321 29,124 32,244 35,115 34,930
476 464 458 478 482 565

117 119 119 117 104 110

27 27 27 27 27 27
2,848,813 2,593,476 2,431,222 2,392,554 2,407,309 2,476,715
1,621,133 2,690,461 1,476,334 1,314,167 1,350,231 1,115,481
56,369 57,139 57,457 60,300 60,491 62,315
809 730 785 785 785 785
22,107 21,673 22,315 23,200 23,165 23,318
7,615 7,702 7,538 8,837 8,201 8,477
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Capital Asset Statistics by Department

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

Function/Program 2011 2010 2009 2008

Police

Officers and PErsoONNEl......ccccceeeireirreereee e 2,948 2,885 3,011 3,085

SEATIONS. ettt et 11 11 11 11
Fire

Officers and PersoNNEl........ccccveeeeeirineereee e 1,559 1,557 1,573 1,525

SEALIONS. ettt e e 35 35 35 35
Parks and Recreation

Personnel (Parks DiviSiON)........ccccveeereeiecieeieere et 218 212 224 224

Neighborhood (City) Parks........cceeeerieevnevenieieseereeee e 251 251 257 257

Neighborhood (city) playgrounds — Tot LOtS........ccceveerrererenreennenens 128 128 132 129

Community Centers — (BCYF operated)........ccouvvevveveenveeresieennsnenes 38 45 46 46

GOIf COUPSES....viviirieirieirisieeeee et 2 2 2 2

Swimming pools (BCYF operated)........cccoevveevriereveniereneseresieeeenens 17 21 23 20

TENNIS COUIS.. ettt st se e 78 78 67 67
Public Education

Total number of Boston Public Schools employees.........cccccveuenee.e. 9,982 9,240 9,188 9,754

Total number of SChOOIS........cecerveiriicicce e 135 135 135 144
Public Works

Traffic signals (signalized intersections)........ccoeeevvrevereeevesieieneerennns 833 823 813 800

Parking meters (approximately)......c.cccevveeveeievinieienneisecesseees 7,195 7,304 7,038 6,300

BrIOES. .ottt et e 4 4 4 4
Hospitals

Number of hoSPItals.......ccuviicinieiineecere s 20 20 22 22

PatieNt DEAS.....cvciciieeieeeee e s 5,584 5,564 5,629 5,618

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
3,048 2,868 2,887 2,855 2,925 3,079
11 11 11 11 11 11
1,511 1,467 1,486 1,468 1,511 1,541
34 34 34 34 34 34
207 191 203 225 204 244
266 246 246 225 225 215
121 125 125 164 164 192
46 46 39 37 37 43
2 2 2 2 2 2
21 18 21 20 20 20
66 78 78 107 107 75
7,774 7,819 7,695 7,950 9,035 10,348
145 145 144 139 139 131
822 814 885 885 885 784
6,449 6,676 7,000 7,000 7,000 6,800
4 4 4 4 4 4
22 20 21 19 19 19
5,692 5,181 4,876 5,860 5,899 5,847





